
 
Loyalsock Township School District 

 
Meeting of School Directors 

 
May 7, 2025 

 

7:00 p.m. 
 

Donald E. Schick Elementary School  
Multi-Purpose Room  
2800 Four Mile Drive 

Montoursville, PA 17701 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Call to Order – President 
  
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Presentation of Oath – David W. Pfleegor, II 
 
4. Administrative Report/Executive Session Purpose – Mr. Christopher Kenyon, Solicitor 
 
5. Roll Call – Mr. M. Daniel Egly, Board Secretary 

 

MEMBER    MEMBER 
 
     David Bjorkman        David W. Pfleegor, II 
     Charles W. Edmonds, Ed.D., Treasurer          Melvin E. Wentzel  
     Lynn Frey, Vice President           Michael J. Zicolello   
     Hal C. Gee, Jr., President         *Christopher Kenyon, Solicitor 
       Robert D. Leidhecker       *Gerald L. McLaughlin, Superintendent 
       JacLynne Lindsay       *M. Daniel Egly, Business Mgr./Bd.Secretary 
        *Brooke Beiter, Ph.D., Assistant Superintendent 
                 *(Non-Voting Member)  
OTHERS 

 
   Stephen Hafele, High School Principal 
   Richard Cummings, High School Assistant Principal 
   Rachelle Ackerman, Middle School Principal 
   Dayne Waller, Middle School Assistant Principal  
   Marc Walter, Elementary Principal  
   Megan Renninger, Elementary Assistant Principal  
   Eric Gee, Director of Technology 
   Lisa Fisher, Supervisor of Special Education 
   Teri Key, Supervisor of Curriculum & Instruction 
                                             , Williamsport Sun-Gazette 
 
6. 

A. Recognition of Guests or Scheduled Speakers/Public Comments  
 2025 PIAA AAA State Champions – Girls’ Varsity Basketball Team 



 
Page 2 
Loyalsock Township School Directors 
Agenda 
May 7, 2025 

 
B. Presentations  

 K-12 Music Department 
 Elementary Math Intervention  

 
C. Public Comments Relative to Agenda Items  

 
 
7. Minutes 

 
A. Approval of Minutes  
 

It is recommended (Board Secretary) the Board approve the Minutes of the following 
meetings: 
 April 9, 2025 – School Board  
 April 30, 2025 – Special Meeting 

 
 Motion:    Second: 

Yes: 
No:    
Absent: 
Result: 
 
 

8. Finance 
 

A. Approval of Bills – March 2025 
 

It is recommended (Business Manager) the Board approve expenditures from 
March 1, 2025 through March 31, 2025, in the amount of $2,425,869.49.   
   

 Motion:    Second: 
Yes: 
No:    
Absent: 
Result: 

 

 

B. Treasurer’s Report – March 2025 
 

It is recommended (Business Manager) the Board approve the attached Treasurer’s 
Report for the month of March 2025. 
 

 Motion:    Second: 
Yes: 
No:    
Absent: 
Result: 

 
  



 
Page 3 
Loyalsock Township School Directors 
Agenda 
May 7, 2025 

 
C. Student Activities Fund Quarterly Report  

 
It is recommended (Business Manager) the Board approve the attached Student 
Activities Fund Quarterly Report for the period ended March 2025. 

 
 Motion:    Second: 

Yes: 
No:    
Absent: 
Result: 
 
 

D. Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
It is recommended (Business Manager) the Board accept the Independent Auditors’ Report 
as submitted by the firm of Larson, Kellett & Associates, P.C., 40 Choate Circle, 
Montoursville, PA 17754, for the year ended June 30, 2024. 

 
 Motion:    Second: 

Yes: 
No:    
Absent: 
Result: 

 
 

E. 2025-2026 Proposed Final Budget 
 

It is recommended (Business Manager) the Board adopt the 2025-2026 proposed final 
budget with revenues and expenditures of $   with taxes as follows: 
 

 Real Estate   15.6 mills (2024/2025-15.35 mills) 
 Realty Transfer  1% 
 Earned Income  1.65% (1.15% to Loyalsock Twp. School 

      District; .50 to Loyalsock Twp.)  
 Local Services Tax  $5/per individual employed within Loyalsock 

Township  
 Business Privilege  1 mill/Wholesale Gross Sales 
 Business Privilege  1.5 mills/Retail, Service or Rental Gross   

 
 Motion:    Second: 

            ROLL CALL  
Yes: 
No:    
Absent: 
Result: 
 
 
 
 



 
Page 4 
Loyalsock Township School Directors 
Agenda 
May 7, 2025 

 
F.  Authorization to Transfer Funds for Future Capital Projects 
 

It is recommended (Business Manager) the Board authorize the transfer of funds from the 
general fund unassigned fund balance to the capital projects fund for future capital projects 
in the amount of $500,000.00. 

 

 Motion:    Second: 
Yes: 
No:    
Absent: 
Result: 
 

 
9. School/District Programs and Operations 
 

A. Graduating High School Seniors  
 

It is recommended (High School Administration) the Board approve the attached list of 
High School Seniors for the 2025 graduation, pending completion of all graduation 
requirements. 
 

 Motion:    Second: 
Yes: 
No:    
Absent: 
Result: 

 
 
B. Athletic Ticket Prices 
   

It is recommended (Athletic Director) the Board approve the following athletic ticket prices 
for the 2025-2026 school year:   

Basketball, Football, Volleyball, Soccer & Wrestling 
 Varsity/JV – Adult   $5.00  *JV Football will be $4.00/adult 
 Varsity/JV – Student  $2.00 
 J/H – Adult    $3.00 
 J/H – Student    $2.00 

        SEASON PASS:  $150.00/Individual; $250.00/Family 
Additionally, the Board authorizes administration to utilize student discounts up to 100% for 
behavior, attendance, and grade-based incentive programs. 
 *The 2025-2026 athletic ticket prices reflect no increase. 

 
 Motion:    Second: 

Yes: 
No:    
Absent: 
Result: 
 
 
 



 
Page 5 
Loyalsock Township School Directors 
Agenda 
May 7, 2025 

 
C. 2025-2026 School Breakfast/Lunch Prices 
   

It is recommended (Business Manager) the Board approve the following school 
breakfast/lunch prices for the 2025-2026 school year: 
 
Students will be entitled to one free breakfast and one free lunch each school day through 
the Community Eligibility Program.   
-Additional Student Meal Prices: 

  *Elementary Student: Breakfast: $2.50; Lunch: $3.25   
  *Secondary Student:   Breakfast: $3.00; Lunch: $4.00  
 -Adult Meal Prices: Breakfast: $3.50; Lunch: $5.50  
  *The 2025-2026 breakfast/lunch prices reflect a $.25 increase. 

  
 Motion:    Second: 

Yes: 
No:    
Absent: 
Result: 

 
 

10. Personnel  
  
 A. LTEA Personnel 
 

It is recommended (Superintendent/Building Principal) that the Board appoint the 
following individuals, pending documentation/certification: 
 

 Evan Laudenslager as a Temporary Professional Employee assigned as an 
elementary (5th grade) teacher effective August 18, 2025. Mr. Laudenslager 
will receive a salary based on Step 1-B of the Teacher Salary Schedule.   

 Amanda Pearl as a Professional Employee assigned as an elementary (3rd 
grade) teacher effective August 18, 2025. Ms. Pearl will receive a salary 
based on Step 10-M of the Teacher Salary Schedule.   

 Landon Sanford as a Temporary Professional Employee assigned as an 
English teacher effective August 18, 2025. Mr. Sanford will receive a salary 
based on Step 1-B of the Teacher Salary Schedule. 
 

 Motion:    Second: 
Yes: 
No:    
Absent: 
Result: 
  

  



 
Page 6 
Loyalsock Township School Directors 
Agenda 
May 7, 2025 

 
 B. LTESPA Personnel 
 

It is recommended (Business Manager/Building Principal) that the Board appoint 
the following individuals pending documentation: 
 Elvia Maher; transfer from part-time to full-time (math intervention) 

paraprofessional effective August 18, 2025 
 Sierra Barnes as a full-time (223) high school secretary. Ms. Barnes will 

receive an hourly rate of $15.30. 
 Larry Stoner as a full-time custodial employee effective April 23, 2025. Mr. 

Stoner will receive an hourly rate of $15.50. 
 

 Motion:    Second: 
Yes: 
No:    
Absent: 
Result: 
 
 

C. School Resource/Police Officer 
 

It is recommended (Superintendent) the Board appoint Timothy Pohlig as a School 
Resource/Police Officer and to grant Timothy Pohlig jurisdiction to exercise said 
authority and power of a School Resource/Police Officer for the Loyalsock Township 
School District, pending documentation/certification and an Order of the Court of 
Common Pleas of Lycoming County pursuant to the Public School Code at 24 P.S. § 2-
201, et seq. 

 
 Motion:    Second: 

Yes: 
No:    
Absent: 
Result: 

  
 
 D. Summer Custodial/Maintenance Workers 
  
  It is recommended (Business Manager) the Board approve the attached list of 

custodial/maintenance employees for the summer of 2025.  Summer custodial/maintenance 
employees will receive an hourly rate of $14.00. 
 
Motion:    Second: 
Yes: 
No:    
Absent: 
Result: 

  
 
 

 



 
Page 7 
Loyalsock Township School Directors 
Agenda 
May 7, 2025 

 
11.  Other 

 

A. Agreement with Loyalsock Township Education Support Professionals 
 
It is recommended (Superintendent) the Board approve the attached Agreement between 
the Loyalsock Township School District and Loyalsock Township Education Support 
Professionals Association for the period July 1, 2025 – June 30, 2030.    
 

 Motion:    Second: 
Yes: 
No:    
Absent: 
Result: 

 
 
B. Athletic – Bids  
 

It is recommended (Business Manager) the Board award the athletic bids (per bid 
specifications) on the attached list.   

 
 Motion:    Second: 

Yes: 
No:    
Absent: 
Result: 

 
 
C. Purchase of Furniture – Tanner Furniture  
 

It is recommended (Business Manager) the Board authorize the purchase of furniture (see 
attached quote) for the Donald E. Schick Elementary School Media Center from Tanner 
Furniture, 7813 Derry Street, Harrisburg, PA 17111, at a cost of $19,387.35.  (PA State 
Contract 126583; COSTARS-035-E22-183)  Funds for this project will come from the 
Capital Projects. 

 
 Motion:    Second: 

Yes: 
No:    
Absent: 
Result: 

 
  



 
Page 8 
Loyalsock Township School Directors 
Agenda 
May 7, 2025 

 
D. Contribution toward Girls’ Basketball Championship Rings 
  

It is recommended (Athletic Director) the Board approve a contribution not to exceed 
$3,000.00 (1/2 of the total estimated cost) for the purchase of basketball championship 
rings.   
 

  Motion:    Second: 
Yes: 
No:    
Absent: 
Result: 
 
 

E. PSBA 2025 Delegate Assembly – Voting Delegate 
 
It is recommended (Board) the Board appoint      as a 2025 voting 
delegate to the PSBA 2025 Delegate Assembly.   

 
 Motion:    Second: 

Yes: 
No:    
Absent: 
Result: 
 

 

F. Facility Improvement Project (Locker Room/Restrooms Secondary Campus) 
 
It is recommended (Business Manager) the Board approve the attached proposal for the 
purchase of lockers for the for facility improvement project (Locker Room/Restrooms 
Secondary Campus) from CM Eichenlaub, Co., 1500 Ardmore Boulevard, Suite 303, 
Pittsburgh, PA 15221, in the amount of $144,759.00. COSTARS #014-E23-315. Funds for 
this project will come from the Capital Projects Fund. 

 
 Motion:    Second: 

Yes: 
No:    
Absent: 
Result: 

 
 
  



 
Page 9 
Loyalsock Township School Directors 
Agenda 
May 7, 2025 

 
G. Position of Board President Temporarily Granted to Director Charles Edmonds for 

Signing Diploma 
  

1. Temporary Resignation of Board President 
2. Appointment of Temporary Board President 

  
It is recommended Dr. Charles Edmonds be appointed Temporary Board President for the 
purpose of signing his son’s diploma.   
 
Motion:    Second: 
Yes: 
No:    
Absent: 

 Result: 
 

3. Resignation of Dr. Edmonds.   
4. Return of Office to Mr. Gee. 

 
 
H. Treasurer for 2025-2026 School Year 
 

Nomination of     by          . 
Seconded by        . 

 
It is recommended (Board)  the Secretary cast the ballot electing    as 
Treasurer for the 2025-2026 school year. 

 
 Motion:    Second: 

Roll Call Vote 
Yes: 
No:    
Absent: 
Result: 

 
 

I.   Adoption of Resolution – Student #   
 

 It is recommended the Board adopt the attached Resolution relating to Student #  .   
 

 Motion:      Second:   
ROLL CALL 

 Yes:   
No:  
Absent:   
Result:  

  



 
Page 10 
Loyalsock Township School Directors 
Agenda 
May 7, 2025 

 
12. Information/Discussion Items  

 
A. Random Drug Policy Discussion 

 
 

B. Board Comments/Reports 
 

 Community Wide Safety Committee – Mr. Bjorkman  
 Recreation Board – Mr. Leidhecker  
 Wellness Committee – Mr. Bjorkman 
 IU 17 – Mr. Zicolello 
 Act 48 Committee – Mr. Wentzel 
 LycoCTC – Mrs. Frey 
 The Lancer Foundation – Dr. Edmonds 
 PSBA Liaison – Mrs. Lindsay 

 
C. Administrative Reports/Discussion 

 
 

13.   Public Comments & Responses to Public Comments at Previous Meeting 
 
 

14.   Upcoming Board Meeting – June 11, 2025 (Final Budget) 
   
 
15. Adjournment  
 

Motion:    
 Second:    



 
Loyalsock Township School District 

 
Meeting of School Directors 

 
April 9, 2025 

 

7:01 p.m. 
 

Loyalsock Township School District 
Secondary Campus 

Multi-Purpose Room (D10/11) 
2101 Loyalsock Drive 

Williamsport, PA 17701 
 

MINUTES 
 

1. Call to Order – President 
  
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Administrative Report/Executive Session Purpose – Mr. Christopher Kenyon, Solicitor 
 6-6:56 pm –Personnel; Contracts; Legal 
4. Roll Call – Mr. M. Daniel Egly, Board Secretary 

 

MEMBER    MEMBER 
 
   x  David Bjorkman (remote)    ab   Tyler B. Richardson 
   ab  Charles W. Edmonds, Ed.D., Treasurer      x    Melvin E. Wentzel  
   x  Lynn Frey, Vice President     x     Michael J. Zicolello   
   x  Hal C. Gee, Jr., President      x   *Christopher Kenyon, Solicitor 
   x    Robert D. Leidhecker    x   *Gerald L. McLaughlin, Superintendent 
   x    JacLynne Lindsay    x   *M. Daniel Egly, Business Mgr./Bd.Secretary 
       Absent – Richardson & Edmonds; Personal    x   *Brooke Beiter, Ph.D., Assistant Superintendent 
                 *(Non-Voting Member)  

 
OTHERS 

 
   x   Stephen Hafele, High School Principal 
   x   Richard Cummings, High School Assistant Principal 
   x   Rachelle Ackerman, Middle School Principal 
   x   Dayne Waller, Middle School Assistant Principal  
   ab   Marc Walter, Elementary Principal  
   x   Megan Renninger, Elementary Assistant Principal  
   x   Eric Gee, Director of Technology 
   x   Lisa Fisher, Supervisor of Special Education 
   x   Teri Key, Supervisor of Curriculum & Instruction 
 
5. 

A. Recognition of Guests or Scheduled Speakers/Public Comments  
 OMer Award Recipient, Marshall Johnson   

    Michelle Bartley, Odyssey of the Mind Advisor   
 



 
Page 2 
Loyalsock Township School Directors 
Minutes 
April 9, 2025 

 
B. Public Comments Relative to Agenda Items  

 
 
6. Minutes 

 
A. Approval of Minutes  
 

It is recommended (Board Secretary) the Board approve the Minutes of the following meeting: 
 March 5, 2025 – School Board 

 
 Motion:  Mr. Wentzel   Second:  Mrs. Lindsay 
 Yes: Bjorkman, Frey, Gee, Leidhecker, Lindsay, Wentzel, Zicolello 

No: None 
Absent:  Edmonds, Richardson 
Result: Motion Carried 

 
 

7. Finance 
 

A. Approval of Bills – January 2025 
 

It is recommended (Business Manager) the Board approve expenditures from January 
1, 2025 through January 31, 2025, in the amount of $1,005,932.42.   
   

 Motion:  Mr. Leidhecker  Second:  Mrs. Lindsay 
 Yes: Bjorkman, Frey, Gee, Leidhecker, Lindsay, Wentzel, Zicolello 

No: None 
Absent:  Edmonds, Richardson 
Result: Motion Carried 
 

 

B. Treasurer’s Report – January 2025 
 

It is recommended (Business Manager) the Board approve the attached Treasurer’s 
Report for the month of January 2025. 
 

 Motion:  Mr. Bjorkman  Second:  Mr. Wentzel 
 Yes: Bjorkman, Frey, Gee, Leidhecker, Lindsay, Wentzel, Zicolello 

No: None 
Absent:  Edmonds, Richardson 
Result: Motion Carried 

 
  



 
Page 3 
Loyalsock Township School Directors 
Minutes 
April 9, 2025 

 
C. Approval of Bills – February 2025 
 

It is recommended (Business Manager) the Board approve expenditures from 
February 1, 2025 through February 28, 2025, in the amount of $887,120.62.   
   

 Motion:  Mrs. Lindsay  Second:  Mr. Zicolello 
 Yes: Bjorkman, Frey, Gee, Leidhecker, Lindsay, Wentzel, Zicolello 

No: None 
Absent:  Edmonds, Richardson 
Result: Motion Carried 

 

 

D. Treasurer’s Report – February 2025 
 

It is recommended (Business Manager) the Board approve the attached Treasurer’s 
Report for the month of February 2025. 
 

 Motion:  Mr. Zicolello  Second:  Mr. Wentzel 
 Yes: Bjorkman, Frey, Gee, Leidhecker, Lindsay, Wentzel, Zicolello 

No: None 
Absent:  Edmonds, Richardson 
Result: Motion Carried 

 
 

E. 2025-2026 Tentative Budget 
 
            Budget Presentation 
 

It is recommended (Business Manager) the Board adopt the 2025-2026 tentative budget with 
revenues and expenditures of $30,059,367 with taxes as follows: 
 

 Real Estate   15.6 mills (2024/2025-15.35 mills) 
 Realty Transfer  1% 
 Earned Income  1.65% (1.15% to Loyalsock Twp. School 

      District; .50 to Loyalsock Twp.)  
 Local Services Tax  $5/per individual employed within Loyalsock 

Township  
 Business Privilege  1 mill/Wholesale Gross Sales 
 Business Privilege  1.5 mills/Retail, Service or Rental Gross   

 
 Motion:  Mr. Leidhecker  Second:  Mr. Zicolello 
 ROLL CALL 
 Yes: Bjorkman, Frey, Gee, Leidhecker, Lindsay, Wentzel, Zicolello 

No: None 
Absent:  Edmonds, Richardson 
Result: Motion Carried 
 
 
 

 



 
Page 4 
Loyalsock Township School Directors 
Minutes 
April 9, 2025 

 
8. School/District Programs and Operations 
 

A. Secondary – Program of Studies 
   

It is recommended (Secondary Administration) the Board approve the attached Program of 
Studies for the Loyalsock Township High School and the Loyalsock Township Middle 
School for the 2025-2026 school year.   
 

 Motion:  Mrs. Lindsay  Second:  Mr. Leidhecker 
 Yes: Bjorkman, Frey, Gee, Leidhecker, Lindsay, Wentzel, Zicolello 

No: None 
Absent:  Edmonds, Richardson 
Result: Motion Carried 

 
 
B.        2025-2028 K-12 Guidance Plan 
              

It is recommended (Supervisor of Curriculum & Instruction) the Board adopt the 2025-2028 
K-12 Guidance Plan as presented.  The document has been available for public inspection 
since March 5, 2025. 
  

 Motion:  Mrs. Lindsay  Second:  Mr. Leidhecker 
 Yes: Bjorkman, Frey, Gee, Leidhecker, Lindsay, Wentzel, Zicolello 

No: None 
Absent:  Edmonds, Richardson 
Result: Motion Carried 
 
 

C. Agreement with River Rock Academy 
 

 It is recommended (Superintendent) the Board approve the attached agreement with River 
Rock Academy, LLC, 1605 Sheridan Street, Williamsport, PA 17701, for educational services 
during the 2025-2026 school year.   
 

 Motion:  Mr. Wentzel   Second:  Mr. Zicolello 
 Yes: Bjorkman, Frey, Gee, Leidhecker, Lindsay, Wentzel, Zicolello 

No: None 
Absent:  Edmonds, Richardson 
Result: Motion Carried 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Page 5 
Loyalsock Township School Directors 
Minutes 
April 9, 2025 

 
9.         Policy 

  
A. Policies 
   

It is recommended the Board adopt the following policies as attached:   
 Policy 247 (Revised) – Hazing 
 Policy 249 (Revised) – Bullying/Cyberbullying 
 Policy 252 (Revised) – Dating Violence 
 Policy 254 (New) – Educational Opportunity for Military Children 
 Policy 317.1 (Revised) – Educator Misconduct 

 
 Motion:  Mrs. Lindsay  Second:  Mr. Zicolello 
 Yes: Bjorkman, Frey, Gee, Leidhecker, Lindsay, Wentzel, Zicolello 

No: None 
Absent:  Edmonds, Richardson 
Result: Motion Carried 

 
 

10. Personnel  
  
 A. Intervention Specialist 
 

It is recommended the Board approve the following appointment/transfer:   
 (Superintendent) Gregory Pride; Full-Time Intervention Specialist to Part-

Time (20-25 hrs./week during the school year) Intervention Specialist 
effective July 1, 2025.  
 

 Motion:  Mrs. Frey   Second:  Mrs. Lindsay 
 Yes: Bjorkman, Frey, Gee, Leidhecker, Lindsay, Wentzel, Zicolello 

No: None 
Absent:  Edmonds, Richardson 
Result: Motion Carried 

  
B. Appointment of Spring Athletic Personnel – Revised  

 
It is recommended (Athletic Director/Superintendent) the Board appoint the attached 
revised list of spring athletic personnel (pending documentation) for the 2024-2025 
sports season.   
 

 Motion:  Mr. Wentzel   Second:  Mrs. Lindsay 
 Yes: Bjorkman, Frey, Gee, Leidhecker, Lindsay, Wentzel, Zicolello 

No: None 
Absent:  Edmonds, Richardson 
Result: Motion Carried 

 
 
 
 
 



 
Page 6 
Loyalsock Township School Directors 
Minutes 
April 9, 2025 

 
C. Retirements/Resignations 
 

The Board acknowledges notice of the following resignations/retirements: 
 Brian Bubb; Supervisor of Buildings & Grounds; Retirement; effective June 30, 2025 
 Cynthia Woodward; Food Service Employee; Retirement; effective March 1, 2025 
 Camilo Lopez-Medina; Special Education Teacher; Resignation; effective June 30, 

2025 
 Kaylene Francis; Elementary Teacher; Resignation; effective June 30, 2025 
 Mikenah Hoffman; Custodial Employee; Resignation; effective April 4, 2025 
 Jamie Diemer; High School Secretary; Resignation; effective March 18, 2025 

 
 

11.  Other 
 

A.   Adoption of Resolution – Student # 33175  
 

 It is recommended the Board adopt the attached Resolution relating to Student #33175.   
 

 Motion:  Mr. Wentzel   Second:  Mr. Leidhecker  
 ROLL CALL 
 Yes: Bjorkman, Frey, Gee, Leidhecker, Lindsay, Wentzel, Zicolello 

No: None 
Absent:  Edmonds, Richardson 
Result: Motion Carried 

 
 

B. Resignation of School Board Director 
 

It is recommended the Board accept the attached letter of resignation from Tyler 
Richardson as a School Board Director effective March 6, 2025. Due to the resignation of 
Mr. Richardson, there is a School Board Director vacancy. 

 
 Motion:  Mrs. Lindsay  Second:  Mrs. Frey 
 Yes: Bjorkman, Frey, Gee, Leidhecker, Lindsay, Wentzel, Zicolello 

No: None 
Absent:  Edmonds 
Result: Motion Carried 

 
 
 

C. Band Shell at James Short Park 
 
It is recommended (Business Manager) the Board contribute up to $20,500.00 to Loyalsock 
Township toward the cost of a band shell at James Short Park.   
 

 Motion:  Mr. Wentzel   Second:  Mr. Leidhecker 
 Yes: Bjorkman, Frey, Gee, Leidhecker, Lindsay, Wentzel, Zicolello 

No: None 
Absent:  Edmonds 
Result:    Motion Carried 

 



 
Page 7 
Loyalsock Township School Directors 
Minutes 
April 9, 2025 

 
D&E - Facilities Improvement Project Information – Recommended by Business Manager 

 
D. Facility Improvement Project – Secondary Campus Parking Lot  

 
i. Site Testing & Inspection Services – Proposal 

 
It is recommended the Board approve the attached proposal for site testing and 
inspection services CMT Laboratories, Inc., 2701 Carolean Industrial Drive, 
State College, 16801, at a cost not to exceed $22,500.00.  Funds for these 
services will come from the Capital Projects Fund.   

  
Motion:  Mrs. Lindsay  Second:  Mr. Zicolello 
Yes: Bjorkman, Frey, Gee, Leidhecker, Lindsay, Wentzel, Zicolello 
No: None 
Absent:  Edmonds 
Result: Motion Carried 

 
ii. Site Construction 

  
It is recommended the Board award the bid and approve for the site 
construction for the secondary campus parking lot to Glenn O. Hawbaker, Inc., 
1952 Waddle Road, Suite 203, State College, PA 16803, in the amount of 
$309,550.00. Funds for these services will come from the Capital Projects 
Fund.   

 
Motion:  Mrs. Frey  Second:  Mr. Wentzel 
Yes: Bjorkman, Frey, Leidhecker, Lindsay, Wentzel, Zicolello 
No: None 
Abstain: Gee 
Absent:  Edmonds 
Result: Motion Carried 

 
iii. Authorization to Execute Contracts 

 
It is recommended the Board authorize Gerald McLaughlin or M. Daniel Egly 
to execute construction contracts relating to the Facility Improvements –  
Secondary Campus Parking Lot. 

 
Motion:  Mrs. Lindsay  Second:  Mr. Wentzel 
Yes: Bjorkman, Frey, Gee, Leidhecker, Lindsay, Wentzel, Zicolello 
No: None 
Absent:  Edmonds 
Result: Motion Carried 

 
  



 
Page 8 
Loyalsock Township School Directors 
Minutes 
April 9, 2025 

 
E. Facility Improvement Project – Locker Room/Restrooms Secondary Campus 

 
 i. General Construction  
 

It is recommended the Board award the bid and approve the General Construction 
Contract for the Facility Improvement Project – Locker Room/Restrooms Secondary 
Campus, to J&M Construction Specialty, Inc., 799 Foresman Street, Williamsport, 
PA 17701, in the amount of $1,069,095.00.  
 

Motion:  Mrs. Lindsay  Second:  Mr. Leidhecker 
Yes: Bjorkman, Frey, Gee, Leidhecker, Lindsay, Wentzel, Zicolello 
No: None 
Absent:  Edmonds 
Result: Motion Carried 

   
 ii. Electrical Construction  
 

It is recommended the Board award the bid and approve the Electrical Construction 
Contract for the Facility Improvement Project – Locker Room/Restrooms Secondary 
Campus, to Lecce Electric, 1843 Liberty Drive, Williamsport, PA 17701, in the 
amount of $169,800.00.   
 

Motion:  Mr. Wentzel  Second:  Mr. Zicolello 
Yes: Bjorkman, Frey, Gee, Leidhecker, Lindsay, Wentzel, Zicolello 
No: None 
Absent:  Edmonds 
Result: Motion Carried 

 
 iii. Plumbing Construction  
 

It is recommended the Board award the bid and approve the Plumbing Construction 
Contract for the Facility Improvement Project – Locker Room/Restrooms Secondary 
Campus, to Myco Mechanical, Inc., One North Washington Street, Telford, PA 
18969, in the amount of $757,000.00.   
 

Motion:  Mr. Leidhecker Second:  Mrs. Lindsay 
Yes: Bjorkman, Frey, Gee, Leidhecker, Lindsay, Wentzel, Zicolello 
No: None 
Absent:  Edmonds 
Result: Motion Carried 

  



 
Page 9 
Loyalsock Township School Directors 
Minutes 
April 9, 2025 

 
 
 iv. Mechanical Construction  
 

It is recommended the Board award the bid and approve the Mechanical Construction 
Contract for the Facility Improvement Project – Locker Room/Restrooms Secondary 
Campus, to Myco Mechanical, Inc., One North Washington Street, Telford, PA 
18969, in the amount of $306,000.00.   
 

Motion:  Mrs. Lindsay  Second:  Mr. Wentzel 
Yes: Bjorkman, Frey, Gee, Leidhecker, Lindsay, Wentzel, Zicolello 
No: None 
Absent:  Edmonds 
Result: Motion Carried 

 
v. Authorization to Execute Contracts 

 
 It is recommended the Board authorize Gerald McLaughlin or M. Daniel Egly 

to execute construction contracts relating to the Locker Room/Restrooms 
Secondary Campus. 

 
Motion:  Mrs. Lindsay  Second:  Mr. Leidhecker 
Yes: Bjorkman, Frey, Gee, Leidhecker, Lindsay, Wentzel, Zicolello 
No: None 
Absent:  Edmonds 
Result: Motion Carried 

 
 
F. Lycoming Career & Technology Center Budget 
   

It is recommended (Superintendent) the Board approve the attached Lycoming Career & 
Technology Center Budget (Resolution attached) for the 2025-2026 school year.   
 

 Motion:  Mrs. Frey   Second:  Mr. Zicolello 
 Yes: Bjorkman, Frey, Gee, Leidhecker, Lindsay, Wentzel, Zicolello 

No: None 
Absent:  Edmonds 
Result: Motion Carried 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Page 10 
Loyalsock Township School Directors 
Minutes 
April 9, 2025 

 
12. Information/Discussion Items  

 
A. Board Comments/Reports 

 
 Community Wide Safety Committee – Mr. Bjorkman  
 Recreation Board – Mr. Leidhecker  
 Wellness Committee – Mr. Bjorkman 
 IU 17 – Mr. Zicolello 
 Act 48 Committee – Mr. Wentzel 
 LycoCTC – Mrs. Frey 
 The Lancer Foundation – Dr. Edmonds 
 PSBA Liaison – Mrs. Lindsay 

 
B. Administrative Reports/Discussion 

 
 
 

13.   Public Comments & Responses to Public Comments at Previous Meeting 
 Julia French – Employment/Title IX 

 
14.   Upcoming Board Meeting – May 7, 2025 (Proposed Final)  
   Meeting will be held at Donald E. Schick Elementary School 
   
 
15. Adjournment @ 8:30 p.m. 
 

Motion:   Mrs. Frey 
 Second:   Mr. Wentzel 
 

 
              

                          M. Daniel Egly 
 
 



 
 Loyalsock Township School District 

 
Special Meeting of School Directors 

 
April 30, 2025 

5:00 p.m. 
 

Board Conference Room 
1605 Four Mile Drive 

Williamsport, PA 17701 
 

MINUTES 
 

1. Call to Order – President 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Administrative Report/Executive Session Purpose – None  
 

4. Roll Call – President 
 

MEMBER   MEMBER 
 

   x  David Bjorkman (remote)   n/a  Vacant 
   ab  Charles W. Edmonds, Ed.D., Treasurer      x    Melvin E. Wentzel  
   x  Lynn Frey, Vice President     x     Michael J. Zicolello   
   x  Hal C. Gee, Jr., President      ab  *Christopher Kenyon, Solicitor 
   x    Robert D. Leidhecker    ab  *Gerald L. McLaughlin, Superintendent 
   x    JacLynne Lindsay    ab  *M. Daniel Egly, Business Mgr./Bd.Secretary 
       Absent – Edmonds; Personal    ab  *Brooke Beiter, Ph.D., Assistant Superintendent 
                 *(Non-Voting Member)  
5. 

A. Recognition of Guests or Scheduled Speakers/Public Comments – None  
 

B. Public Comments Relative to Agenda Items – None  
 

 
6. Other 
 
 A. Interviews for School Board Director Vacancy 

 Larry Allison, Jr. 
 Brett Leinbach 
 David W. Pfleegor, II 

  
 
 B. Discussion for Appointment of School Board Director 
 

 After three interviews, the School Board was very impressed with all of the candidates.  The 
School Board expressed their pleasure with the interest received from the public. Discussion 
ensued regarding the candidates.  

 



 
Page 2 
Loyalsock Township School Directors 
Minutes 
April 30, 2025 

 
 
7.  Appointment of School Board Director  
 

It is recommended the Board appoint Larry Allison, Jr., Brett Leinbach, or David W. Pfleegor, II 
(choose one) as a School Board Director. It should be noted that this appointment will fill the 
vacancy as a result of Tyler Richardson’s resignation. 

 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Bjorkman: Allison 
Edmonds:  Absent 
Frey:  Pfleegor 
Gee:  Pfleegor 
Leidhecker:   Pfleegor 
Lindsay: Pfleegor 
Wentzel:   Pfleegor 
Zicolello:  Pfleegor 
 
 
David W. Pfleegor, II, 2614 Haas Lane, Montoursville, PA 17754, received the majority of the votes of 
the current seated Board Members and is appointed to serve as a School Board Director to fill the 
vacancy as a result of the resignation of Tyler Richardson. 

 
 
8. Public Comments – None  
 
9. Adjournment  @ 6:35 p.m. 
 

Motion:   Mrs. Lindsay 
 Second:   Mrs. Frey 
 

 
              

                          Hal C. Gee, Jr./M. Daniel Egly 
 



F
U

N
D

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
IN

G
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
B

an
k 

A
cc

o
u

n
t:

 G
F

 -
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L 

F
U

N
D

   
  P

ay
m

en
t 

D
at

es
: 

03
/0

1/
20

25
 -

 0
3/

31
/2

02
5 

   
O

m
it

 D
at

es
: 

20
25

-0
3-

30

P
ay

m
en

t 
C

at
eg

o
ri

es
: 

R
eg

ul
ar

 C
he

ck
s,

 N
on

-n
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

ts
, D

ire
ct

 D
ep

os
its

, M
an

ua
l C

he
ck

s,
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t C

ar
ds

, C
re

di
t C

ar
ds

 
  S

o
rt

:  
P

ay
m

en
t 

N
u

m
b

er

P
ay

m
en

t 
#

P
ay

m
n

t 
D

t
V

en
d

o
r 

N
am

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 O
f 

P
u

rc
h

as
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 O

f 
P

u
rc

h
as

e
A

m
o

u
n

t

00
00

06
58

86
03

/0
6/

20
25

A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
 H

E
A

R
T

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
IO

N
D

O
N

A
T

IO
N

S
 R

A
IS

E
D

 F
R

O
M

 L
T

S
D

61
9.

00

00
00

06
58

87
03

/1
0/

20
25

LO
Y

A
LS

O
C

K
 C

A
F

E
T

E
R

IA
 F

U
N

D
M

E
E

T
 P

R
IN

C
IP

A
L 

N
IG

H
T

 
R

E
F

R
E

S
H

M
E

N
T

S
87

.5
0

00
00

06
58

88
03

/1
0/

20
25

R
O

B
E

R
T

 M
 S

ID
E

S
T

E
N

O
R

 S
A

X
 M

O
U

T
H

P
IE

C
E

-H
O

P
K

IN
S

M
U

S
IC

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

C
E

R
T

 B
A

N
D

-T
IN

I
67

.5
0

00
00

06
58

89
03

/1
0/

20
25

S
T

A
P

LE
S

O
F

F
IC

E
 C

H
A

IR
S

25
9.

98

00
00

06
58

90
03

/1
0/

20
25

C
R

E
A

T
IV

IT
Y

 U
N

LI
M

IT
E

D
 IN

 P
A

.
O

M
 S

T
A

T
E

 T
O

U
R

N
A

M
E

N
T

20
0.

00

00
00

06
58

91
03

/1
0/

20
25

eP
LU

S
 T

E
C

H
N

O
LO

G
Y

 IN
C

D
U

O
 S

U
B

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
-A

D
V

A
N

T
A

G
E

G
O

O
G

LE
 C

H
R

O
M

E
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 

E
D

 L
IC

E
N

S
E

-H
S

3,
58

1.
70

00
00

06
58

92
03

/1
0/

20
25

LE
A

R
N

IN
G

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
S

P
E

E
C

H
 T

H
E

R
A

P
Y

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
21

8.
89

00
00

06
58

93
03

/1
0/

20
25

M
IN

D
F

IE
LD

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

IN
G

 C
O

R
P

LT
S

D
 M

O
O

D
LE

 A
D

M
IN

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
58

0.
00

00
00

06
58

94
03

/1
0/

20
25

N
A

S
P

 IN
C

A
R

C
H

E
R

Y
 S

U
P

P
LI

E
S

3,
23

4.
00

00
00

06
58

95
03

/1
0/

20
25

S
O

N
O

V
A

 U
S

A
 IN

C
R

E
C

E
IV

E
R

 F
O

R
 F

M
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
-S

P
E

C
IA

L 
E

D
34

6.
36

00
00

06
58

96
03

/1
0/

20
25

P
M

E
A

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 8
D

IR
E

C
T

O
R

'S
 M

E
A

L 
(L

U
N

C
H

)
5.

50

00
00

06
58

97
03

/1
0/

20
25

P
M

E
A

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 8
JA

Z
Z

 B
A

N
D

 R
E

G
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

62
5.

00

00
00

06
58

98
03

/1
0/

20
25

P
M

E
A

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 8
R

E
G

IO
N

 C
H

O
IR

 R
E

G
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

24
0.

00

00
00

06
58

99
03

/1
0/

20
25

S
C

H
O

O
L 

S
P

E
C

IA
LT

Y
 L

LC
S

C
H

O
O

L 
S

M
A

R
T

 P
O

C
K

E
T

-2
49

.5
1

00
00

06
59

00
03

/1
3/

20
25

A
D

E
LP

H
O

I K
E

T
T

E
R

E
R

 C
H

A
R

T
E

R
 

S
C

H
O

O
L

T
U

IT
IO

N
 (

1)
 S

T
U

D
E

N
T

 2
/1

/2
5-

2/
28

/2
5 

(S
H

)
T

U
IT

IO
N

 (
1)

 S
T

U
D

E
N

T
 2

/1
/2

5-
2/

28
/2

5 
(J

P
)

3,
95

2.
00

00
00

06
59

01
03

/1
3/

20
25

A
P

R
 S

U
P

P
LY

 C
O

LI
G

H
T

S
 F

O
R

 F
O

O
T

B
A

LL
 F

IE
LD

50
.2

7

00
00

06
59

02
03

/1
3/

20
25

A
S

C
E

N
D

A
N

C
E

 T
R

U
C

K
S

 
P

E
N

N
S

Y
LV

A
N

IA
 L

LC
P

A
 IN

S
P

E
C

T
IO

N
 &

 R
E

P
A

IR
1,

48
1.

44

00
00

06
59

03
03

/1
3/

20
25

B
E

N
 L

O
R

S
O

N
C

E
LL

 P
H

O
N

E
 R

E
IM

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
19

5.
00

00
00

06
59

04
03

/1
3/

20
25

B
I-

LO
 S

U
P

P
LY

O
V

E
R

F
LO

W
 H

E
A

D
37

.3
2

00
00

06
59

05
03

/1
3/

20
25

B
U

F
F

A
LO

 V
A

LL
E

Y
 D

O
O

R
 S

E
R

V
.  

IN
C

T
R

A
C

K
F

O
O

T
B

A
LL

16
6.

90

04
/0

7/
20

25
 0

1:
31

:0
2 

P
M

LO
Y

A
LS

O
C

K
 T

O
W

N
S

H
IP

 S
C

H
O

O
L 

D
IS

T
P

ag
e 

1 
of

 1
2

*
- 

N
on

-N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

t  
 +

 -
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t C

ar
d 

N
on

-N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

 #
 -

 P
ay

ab
le

 w
ith

in
 P

ay
m

en
t  

P
 -

 P
re

no
te

  D
 -

 D
ire

ct
 D

ep
os

it 
 C

 -
 C

re
di

t C
ar

d 
 ^

 -
 V

irt
ua

l P
ay

m
en

t



F
U

N
D

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
IN

G
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
B

an
k 

A
cc

o
u

n
t:

 G
F

 -
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L 

F
U

N
D

   
  P

ay
m

en
t 

D
at

es
: 

03
/0

1/
20

25
 -

 0
3/

31
/2

02
5 

   
O

m
it

 D
at

es
: 

20
25

-0
3-

30
   

   
   

P
ay

m
en

t 
C

at
eg

o
ri

es
: 

R
eg

ul
ar

 C
he

ck
s,

 N
on

-n
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

ts
, D

ire
ct

 D
ep

os
its

, M
an

ua
l C

he
ck

s,
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t C

ar
ds

, C
re

di
t C

ar
ds

 
  S

o
rt

:  
P

ay
m

en
t 

N
u

m
b

er

P
ay

m
en

t 
#

P
ay

m
n

t 
D

t
V

en
d

o
r 

N
am

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 O
f 

P
u

rc
h

as
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 O

f 
P

u
rc

h
as

e
A

m
o

u
n

t

00
00

06
59

06
03

/1
3/

20
25

C
O

LU
M

N
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 P

B
C

A
D

V
E

R
T

IS
IN

G
 T

O
 B

ID
-R

E
S

T
R

O
O

M
 &

 
LO

C
K

E
R

 R
O

O
M

 R
E

N
O

V
A

T
IO

N
S

58
6.

52

00
00

06
59

07
03

/1
3/

20
25

C
O

M
C

A
S

T
 C

A
B

LE
C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
-D

S
C

31
.8

0

00
00

06
59

08
03

/1
3/

20
25

C
R

E
S

T
/G

O
O

D
 M

F
G

 C
O

 IN
C

M
A

IN
T

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
46

.1
0

00
00

06
59

09
03

/1
3/

20
25

D
A

Y
N

E
 W

A
LL

E
R

C
E

LL
 P

H
O

N
E

 R
E

IM
B

U
R

S
E

M
E

N
T

19
5.

00

00
00

06
59

10
03

/1
3/

20
25

D
O

R
O

T
H

Y
 R

. W
H

IT
E

 M
E

R
T

Z
- 

O
A

 &
 

P
C

B
P

T
 &

 L
IC

E
N

S
E

S
-M

A
R

C
H

 2
02

5
5,

34
4.

00

00
00

06
59

11
03

/1
3/

20
25

E
C

O
N

O
M

Y
 A

U
T

O
 P

A
R

T
S

 IN
C

B
U

S
 P

A
R

T
S

99
.5

1

00
00

06
59

12
03

/1
3/

20
25

E
LE

R
Y

 W
 N

A
U

  I
N

C
.

M
A

IN
T

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
M

A
IN

T
 S

U
P

P
LI

E
S

-S
C

H
IC

K
25

1.
83

00
00

06
59

13
03

/1
3/

20
25

E
R

IC
 G

E
E

C
E

LL
 P

H
O

N
E

 R
E

IM
B

U
R

S
E

M
E

N
T

19
5.

00

00
00

06
59

14
03

/1
3/

20
25

F
IN

K
'S

 P
A

IN
T

 S
T

O
R

E
P

A
IN

T
14

9.
96

00
00

06
59

15
03

/1
3/

20
25

F
R

E
D

 H
A

M
M

  I
N

C
.

H
S

S
C

H
IC

K
2,

06
6.

18

00
00

06
59

16
03

/1
3/

20
25

F
U

LM
E

R
'S

 S
T

O
R

A
G

E
 T

R
A

IL
E

R
S

S
C

H
IC

K
M

S
18

0.
00

00
00

06
59

17
03

/1
3/

20
25

G
E

R
A

LD
 M

C
LA

U
G

H
LI

N
C

E
LL

 P
H

O
N

E
 R

E
IM

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
19

5.
00

00
00

06
59

18
03

/1
3/

20
25

H
C

 N
Y

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

B
LO

W
E

R
 W

H
E

E
L

15
9.

48

00
00

06
59

19
03

/1
3/

20
25

H
E

A
T

H
E

R
 W

H
A

R
Y

C
E

LL
 P

H
O

N
E

 R
E

IM
B

U
R

S
E

M
E

N
T

19
5.

00

00
00

06
59

20
03

/1
3/

20
25

H
IL

LY
A

R
D

/M
ID

-A
T

LA
N

T
IC

S
C

H
IC

K
M

S
20

4.
80

00
00

06
59

21
03

/1
3/

20
25

LA
N

D
P

R
O

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 L
LC

B
R

U
S

H
 A

N
D

 B
LA

D
E

1,
04

6.
68

00
00

06
59

22
03

/1
3/

20
25

LI
S

A
 F

IS
H

E
R

C
E

LL
 P

H
O

N
E

 R
E

IM
B

U
R

S
E

M
E

N
T

19
5.

00

00
00

06
59

23
03

/1
3/

20
25

LO
W

E
'S

M
A

IN
T

 S
U

P
P

LI
E

S
M

A
IN

T
 S

U
P

P
LI

E
S

-H
S

1,
35

8.
94

00
00

06
59

24
03

/1
3/

20
25

LY
C

O
M

IN
G

 C
A

R
E

E
R

 &
 

T
E

C
H

N
O

LO
G

Y
 C

E
N

T
E

R
S

T
U

D
E

N
T

 T
U

IT
IO

N
-P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

 1
0 

O
F

 
10

 (
48

 S
T

U
D

E
N

T
S

)
25

,5
33

.0
0

00
00

06
59

25
03

/1
3/

20
25

M
. D

A
N

IE
L 

E
G

LY
C

E
LL

 P
H

O
N

E
 R

E
IM

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
19

5.
00

00
00

06
59

26
03

/1
3/

20
25

M
A

R
C

 W
A

LT
E

R
C

E
LL

 P
H

O
N

E
 R

E
IM

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
19

5.
00

00
00

06
59

27
03

/1
3/

20
25

M
A

R
C

O
 T

E
C

H
N

O
LO

G
IE

S
 L

LC
M

X
-4

10
0N

 D
S

C
 U

S
A

G
E

M
X

-4
10

0N
 D

S
C

21
5.

47

04
/0

7/
20

25
 0

1:
31

:0
2 

P
M

LO
Y

A
LS

O
C

K
 T

O
W

N
S

H
IP

 S
C

H
O

O
L 

D
IS

T
P

ag
e 

2 
of

 1
2

* 
- 

N
on

-N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

t  
 +

 -
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t C

ar
d 

N
on

-N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

 #
 -

 P
ay

ab
le

 w
ith

in
 P

ay
m

en
t  

P
 -

 P
re

no
te

  D
 -

 D
ire

ct
 D

ep
os

it 
 C

 -
 C

re
di

t C
ar

d 
 ^

 -
 V

irt
ua

l P
ay

m
en

t



F
U

N
D

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
IN

G
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
B

an
k 

A
cc

o
u

n
t:

 G
F

 -
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L 

F
U

N
D

   
  P

ay
m

en
t 

D
at

es
: 

03
/0

1/
20

25
 -

 0
3/

31
/2

02
5 

   
O

m
it

 D
at

es
: 

20
25

-0
3-

30
   

   
   

P
ay

m
en

t 
C

at
eg

o
ri

es
: 

R
eg

ul
ar

 C
he

ck
s,

 N
on

-n
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

ts
, D

ire
ct

 D
ep

os
its

, M
an

ua
l C

he
ck

s,
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t C

ar
ds

, C
re

di
t C

ar
ds

 
  S

o
rt

:  
P

ay
m

en
t 

N
u

m
b

er

P
ay

m
en

t 
#

P
ay

m
n

t 
D

t
V

en
d

o
r 

N
am

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 O
f 

P
u

rc
h

as
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 O

f 
P

u
rc

h
as

e
A

m
o

u
n

t

00
00

06
59

28
03

/1
3/

20
25

M
A

T
T

H
E

W
 A

 R
E

IT
Z

C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
N

T
 F

E
E

-2
/2

4/
25

-3
/7

/2
5

2,
80

0.
00

00
00

06
59

29
03

/1
3/

20
25

M
A

Y
E

R
 e

LE
C

T
R

IC
 S

U
P

P
LY

 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

 IN
C

H
U

B
C

S
 S

W
IT

C
H

R
O

U
N

D
 H

U
B

S
84

.7
8

00
00

06
59

30
03

/1
3/

20
25

M
E

G
A

N
 R

E
N

N
IN

G
E

R
C

E
LL

 P
H

O
N

E
 R

E
IM

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
19

5.
00

00
00

06
59

31
03

/1
3/

20
25

M
IR

A
B

IT
O

 E
N

E
R

G
Y

 P
R

O
D

U
C

T
S

B
IO

D
IE

S
E

L 
17

77
35

1
2,

34
4.

27

00
00

06
59

32
03

/1
3/

20
25

N
A

V
IG

A
T

E
H

C
R

20
25

 A
C

A
 F

IL
IN

G
 F

E
E

2,
10

0.
00

00
00

06
59

33
03

/1
3/

20
25

N
O

A
H

 B
O

W
E

R
C

E
LL

 P
H

O
N

E
 R

E
IM

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
19

5.
00

00
00

06
59

34
03

/1
3/

20
25

N
O

R
T

H
 C

E
N

T
R

A
L 

S
IG

H
T

 S
R

V
C

S
H

R
E

D
D

IN
G

-M
S

S
H

R
E

D
D

IN
G

-S
C

H
IC

K
15

0.
00

00
00

06
59

35
03

/1
3/

20
25

Q
U

A
D

IE
N

T
 L

E
A

S
IN

G
 U

S
A

  I
N

C
Q

T
LY

 L
E

A
S

E
 P

Y
M

T
-P

O
S

T
A

G
E

 
M

A
C

H
IN

E
 H

S
34

0.
23

00
00

06
59

36
03

/1
3/

20
25

R
A

C
H

E
LL

E
 A

C
K

E
R

M
A

N
C

E
LL

 P
H

O
N

E
 R

E
IM

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
19

5.
00

00
00

06
59

37
03

/1
3/

20
25

R
IC

H
A

R
D

 C
U

M
M

IN
G

S
C

E
LL

 P
H

O
N

E
 R

E
IM

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
19

5.
00

00
00

06
59

38
03

/1
3/

20
25

R
IV

E
R

 V
A

LL
E

Y
 T

R
A

N
S

IT
 

A
U

T
H

O
R

IT
Y

F
E

B
R

U
A

R
Y

 2
02

5 
T

R
IP

S
1,

02
0.

00

00
00

06
59

39
03

/1
3/

20
25

R
O

B
E

R
T

 M
 S

ID
E

S
IN

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

 R
E

P
A

IR
-S

C
H

IC
K

15
5.

00

00
00

06
59

40
03

/1
3/

20
25

S
T

E
P

H
E

N
 H

A
F

E
LE

C
E

LL
 P

H
O

N
E

 R
E

IM
B

U
R

S
E

M
E

N
T

19
5.

00

00
00

06
59

41
03

/1
3/

20
25

T
E

R
I K

E
Y

C
E

LL
 P

H
O

N
E

 R
E

IM
B

U
R

S
E

M
E

N
T

19
5.

00

00
00

06
59

42
03

/1
3/

20
25

T
H

E
 H

A
R

T
M

A
N

 A
G

E
N

C
Y

 IN
C

W
O

R
K

E
R

'S
 C

O
M

P
E

N
S

A
T

IO
N

 IN
S

-4
 O

F
 

4 
IN

S
T

A
LL

9,
23

4.
25

00
00

06
59

43
03

/1
3/

20
25

T
U

LP
E

H
O

C
K

E
N

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 

S
P

R
IN

G
 W

A
T

E
R

27
21

37
7

27
31

30
1

38
.3

5

00
00

06
59

44
03

/1
3/

20
25

U
S

 P
O

S
T

A
L 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 -
 M

O
W

P
E

R
M

IT
 #

32
35

0.
00

00
00

06
59

45
03

/1
3/

20
25

W
E

B
B

 W
E

E
K

LY
A

D
V

E
R

T
IS

IN
G

76
.0

0

00
00

06
59

46
03

/1
3/

20
25

W
IL

LA
R

D
 B

A
T

T
E

R
Y

 O
U

T
LE

T
B

A
T

T
E

R
Y

 6
5-

60
 B

U
C

K
E

T
 T

R
U

C
K

18
6.

00

00
00

06
59

47
03

/1
3/

20
25

Y
O

U
N

G
'S

 T
R

U
C

K
 R

E
P

A
IR

F
O

R
D

 T
R

U
C

K
 R

E
P

A
IR

-R
E

P
LA

C
E

 
S

T
E

E
R

IN
G

 L
IN

K
A

G
E

 &
 B

R
O

K
E

N
 

S
P

R
IN

G
S

2,
95

9.
00

04
/0

7/
20

25
 0

1:
31

:0
2 

P
M

LO
Y

A
LS

O
C

K
 T

O
W

N
S

H
IP

 S
C

H
O

O
L 

D
IS

T
P

ag
e 

3 
of

 1
2

* 
- 

N
on

-N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

t  
 +

 -
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t C

ar
d 

N
on

-N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

 #
 -

 P
ay

ab
le

 w
ith

in
 P

ay
m

en
t  

P
 -

 P
re

no
te

  D
 -

 D
ire

ct
 D

ep
os

it 
 C

 -
 C

re
di

t C
ar

d 
 ^

 -
 V

irt
ua

l P
ay

m
en

t



F
U

N
D

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
IN

G
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
B

an
k 

A
cc

o
u

n
t:

 G
F

 -
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L 

F
U

N
D

   
  P

ay
m

en
t 

D
at

es
: 

03
/0

1/
20

25
 -

 0
3/

31
/2

02
5 

   
O

m
it

 D
at

es
: 

20
25

-0
3-

30
   

   
   

P
ay

m
en

t 
C

at
eg

o
ri

es
: 

R
eg

ul
ar

 C
he

ck
s,

 N
on

-n
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

ts
, D

ire
ct

 D
ep

os
its

, M
an

ua
l C

he
ck

s,
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t C

ar
ds

, C
re

di
t C

ar
ds

 
  S

o
rt

:  
P

ay
m

en
t 

N
u

m
b

er

P
ay

m
en

t 
#

P
ay

m
n

t 
D

t
V

en
d

o
r 

N
am

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 O
f 

P
u

rc
h

as
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 O

f 
P

u
rc

h
as

e
A

m
o

u
n

t

00
00

06
59

48
03

/1
4/

20
25

A
LA

N
 H

U
F

F
H

S
 F

IE
LD

 T
R

IP
-B

E
LL

E
F

O
N

T
E

 C
T

Y
 

C
O

U
R

T
H

O
U

S
E

10
.0

0

00
00

06
59

49
03

/1
4/

20
25

A
LD

I I
N

C
R

E
F

U
N

D
 F

O
R

 R
E

A
L 

E
S

T
A

T
E

 T
A

X
E

S
 

P
D

 2
02

4
3,

23
5.

90

00
00

06
59

50
03

/1
4/

20
25

A
P

P
LE

   
IN

C
B

R
O

K
E

N
 IP

A
D

 A
D

A
P

T
E

R
17

.1
0

00
00

06
59

51
03

/1
4/

20
25

B
A

R
B

 W
E

R
T

Z
W

IN
T

E
R

 G
A

M
E

 W
O

R
K

E
R

S
-T

R
A

IN
E

R
60

.0
0

00
00

06
59

52
03

/1
4/

20
25

B
A

R
R

Y
 K

IN
LE

Y
A

T
H

LE
T

IC
 T

R
IP

10
.0

0

00
00

06
59

53
03

/1
4/

20
25

B
LA

S
T

 IU
 1

7
E

S
Y

32
,8

80
.8

5

00
00

06
59

54
03

/1
4/

20
25

B
LA

S
T

 IU
 1

7
P

R
O

F
 E

D
 S

V
C

S
 -

 IU
13

0,
71

0.
00

00
00

06
59

55
03

/1
4/

20
25

B
R

IA
N

 B
A

IR
W

IN
T

E
R

 G
A

M
E

 W
O

R
K

E
R

S
44

0.
00

00
00

06
59

56
03

/1
4/

20
25

C
A

S
E

Y
 W

A
LL

E
R

H
E

A
LT

H
 IN

S
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
24

0.
00

00
00

06
59

57
03

/1
4/

20
25

C
H

R
IS

T
IA

N
 T

Y
M

E
S

O
N

H
E

A
LT

H
 IN

S
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
21

5.
00

00
00

06
59

58
03

/1
4/

20
25

C
M

 R
E

G
E

N
T

  L
LC

C
O

B
R

A
-F

E
B

R
U

A
R

Y
 2

02
5

23
5.

00

00
00

06
59

59
03

/1
4/

20
25

C
M

 R
E

G
E

N
T

  L
LC

LI
F

E
LO

N
G

 T
E

R
M

 D
IS

A
B

IL
IT

Y
2,

92
9.

74

00
00

06
59

60
03

/1
4/

20
25

C
O

M
C

A
S

T
 C

A
B

LE
C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
-H

S
38

.0
7

00
00

06
59

61
03

/1
4/

20
25

D
E

LT
A

 D
E

N
T

A
L 

O
F

 
P

E
N

N
S

Y
LV

A
N

IA
E

M
P

LO
Y

E
E

 C
O

N
T

R
IB

U
T

IO
N

S
S

E
LF

-P
A

Y
S

76
1.

84

00
00

06
59

62
03

/1
4/

20
25

E
A

S
T

 L
Y

C
O

M
IN

G
 S

O
C

C
E

R
 

A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
IO

N
JH

 G
IR

LS
 S

O
C

C
E

R
 T

O
U

R
N

A
M

E
N

T
 

F
E

E
12

5.
00

00
00

06
59

63
03

/1
4/

20
25

E
A

S
T

 L
Y

C
O

M
IN

G
 S

O
C

C
E

R
 

A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
IO

N
JH

 B
O

Y
S

 S
O

C
C

E
R

 T
O

U
R

N
A

M
E

N
T

 F
E

E
12

5.
00

00
00

06
59

64
03

/1
4/

20
25

E
N

G
IE

 P
O

W
E

R
 &

 G
A

S
 L

LC
M

S
H

S
10

,4
51

.1
8

00
00

06
59

65
03

/1
4/

20
25

E
R

IC
 G

E
E

M
IL

E
A

G
E

 R
E

IM
B

U
R

S
E

M
E

N
T

44
.8

0

00
00

06
59

66
03

/1
4/

20
25

E
S

S
 N

O
R

T
H

E
A

S
T

 L
LC

R
E

G
 E

D
 S

U
B

S
T

IT
U

T
E

S
-S

C
H

IC
K

R
E

G
 E

D
 S

U
B

S
T

IT
U

T
E

S
-M

S
15

,4
70

.7
6

00
00

06
59

67
03

/1
4/

20
25

G
LE

N
N

 D
R

IC
K

F
LE

E
T

 S
P

E
C

IA
LI

S
T

 2
/2

4/
25

-3
/1

/2
5

F
LE

E
T

 S
P

E
C

IA
LI

S
T

 2
/1

7/
25

-2
/2

2/
25

94
5.

00

00
00

06
59

68
03

/1
4/

20
25

G
R

O
V

E
 C

IT
Y

 A
R

E
A

 S
C

H
O

O
L 

D
IS

T
R

IC
T

A
LT

 E
D

 T
U

IT
IO

N
 (

1)
 S

T
U

D
E

N
T

-
JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 2

02
5

2,
24

0.
00

04
/0

7/
20

25
 0

1:
31

:0
2 

P
M

LO
Y

A
LS

O
C

K
 T

O
W

N
S

H
IP

 S
C

H
O

O
L 

D
IS

T
P

ag
e 

4 
of

 1
2

* 
- 

N
on

-N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

t  
 +

 -
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t C

ar
d 

N
on

-N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

 #
 -

 P
ay

ab
le

 w
ith

in
 P

ay
m

en
t  

P
 -

 P
re

no
te

  D
 -

 D
ire

ct
 D

ep
os

it 
 C

 -
 C

re
di

t C
ar

d 
 ^

 -
 V

irt
ua

l P
ay

m
en

t



F
U

N
D

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
IN

G
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
B

an
k 

A
cc

o
u

n
t:

 G
F

 -
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L 

F
U

N
D

   
  P

ay
m

en
t 

D
at

es
: 

03
/0

1/
20

25
 -

 0
3/

31
/2

02
5 

   
O

m
it

 D
at

es
: 

20
25

-0
3-

30
   

   
   

P
ay

m
en

t 
C

at
eg

o
ri

es
: 

R
eg

ul
ar

 C
he

ck
s,

 N
on

-n
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

ts
, D

ire
ct

 D
ep

os
its

, M
an

ua
l C

he
ck

s,
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t C

ar
ds

, C
re

di
t C

ar
ds

 
  S

o
rt

:  
P

ay
m

en
t 

N
u

m
b

er

P
ay

m
en

t 
#

P
ay

m
n

t 
D

t
V

en
d

o
r 

N
am

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 O
f 

P
u

rc
h

as
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 O

f 
P

u
rc

h
as

e
A

m
o

u
n

t

00
00

06
59

69
03

/1
4/

20
25

H
C

 N
Y

E
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

P
S

C
 M

O
T

O
R

 1
/4

 H
P

D
IS

C
O

N
N

E
C

T
 C

O
V

E
R

1,
87

8.
39

00
00

06
59

70
03

/1
4/

20
25

H
IG

H
M

A
R

K
 B

LU
E

 S
H

IE
LD

V
IS

IO
N

-E
M

P
LO

Y
E

E
 P

A
ID

R
E

T
IR

E
E

/S
E

LF
 P

A
Y

S
1,

70
8.

14

00
00

06
59

71
03

/1
4/

20
25

H
IL

LY
A

R
D

/M
ID

-A
T

LA
N

T
IC

S
P

R
A

Y
 C

LE
A

N
E

R
-M

S
S

P
R

A
Y

 C
LE

A
N

E
R

-H
S

1,
17

5.
86

00
00

06
59

72
03

/1
4/

20
25

H
U

M
P

H
R

E
Y

S
 P

E
S

T
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L 

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
M

S
H

S
45

.0
0

00
00

06
59

73
03

/1
4/

20
25

IN
D

E
P

E
N

D
E

N
T

 S
C

H
O

O
L 

B
U

S
IN

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
B

U
S

 D
R

IV
E

R
'S

 A
S

S
O

C
-

V
O

L 
D

E
D

U
C

T
IO

N
S

5.
00

00
00

06
59

74
03

/1
4/

20
25

JO
H

N
 W

H
E

E
LE

R
A

T
H

LE
T

IC
 T

R
IP

S
20

.0
0

00
00

06
59

75
03

/1
4/

20
25

JO
S

E
P

H
 W

. S
M

IT
H

 II
I

H
E

A
LT

H
 IN

S
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
21

5.
00

00
00

06
59

76
03

/1
4/

20
25

JO
S

T
E

N
S

  I
N

C
.

H
S

 D
IP

LO
M

A
S

 (
96

)
H

S
 D

IP
LO

M
A

S
62

4.
85

00
00

06
59

77
03

/1
4/

20
25

K
E

Y
S

T
O

N
E

 A
D

V
E

R
T

IS
IN

G
 

S
P

E
C

IA
LI

T
IE

S
C

E
R

A
M

IC
 M

U
G

S
 F

O
R

 C
A

R
E

E
R

 E
X

P
O

1,
09

8.
00

00
00

06
59

78
03

/1
4/

20
25

K
IM

 M
A

S
S

E
T

T
I

W
IN

T
E

R
 G

A
M

E
 W

O
R

K
E

R
S

1,
17

0.
00

00
00

06
59

79
03

/1
4/

20
25

LA
N

C
E

R
 F

O
U

N
D

A
T

IO
N

LA
N

C
E

R
 F

O
U

N
D

A
T

IO
N

 
C

O
N

T
R

IB
U

T
IO

N
S

25
8.

00

00
00

06
59

80
03

/1
4/

20
25

LA
R

R
Y

 B
R

E
O

N
A

T
H

LE
T

IC
 T

R
IP

10
.0

0

00
00

06
59

81
03

/1
4/

20
25

LI
N

D
A

 L
aC

O
E

W
IN

T
E

R
 G

A
M

E
 W

O
R

K
E

R
S

H
E

A
LT

H
 IN

S
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
1,

16
0.

00

00
00

06
59

82
03

/1
4/

20
25

LO
Y

A
LS

O
C

K
 T

O
W

N
S

H
IP

U
G

I I
N

V
O

IC
E

S
P

P
&

L 
E

LE
C

T
R

IC
 IN

V
O

IC
E

S
3,

47
3.

43

00
00

06
59

83
03

/1
4/

20
25

LO
Y

A
LS

O
C

K
 T

W
P

 E
D

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
IO

N
A

LS
 A

S
S

N
LT

E
S

P
A

-V
O

LU
N

T
A

R
Y

 D
E

D
U

C
T

IO
N

S
66

6.
87

00
00

06
59

84
03

/1
4/

20
25

LY
C

O
M

IN
G

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 O

F
F

IC
E

H
O

M
E

S
T

E
A

D
 A

P
P

L 
P

O
S

T
A

G
E

 &
 

E
N

V
E

LO
P

E
S

29
9.

53

00
00

06
59

85
03

/1
4/

20
25

LY
N

N
 D

A
T

R
E

S
W

IN
T

E
R

 G
A

M
E

 W
O

R
K

E
R

S
80

0.
00

00
00

06
59

86
03

/1
4/

20
25

M
A

R
C

O
 T

E
C

H
N

O
LO

G
IE

S
 L

LC
M

X
-M

46
5N

 M
S

/H
S

 L
IB

R
A

R
Y

S
T

A
P

LE
 C

A
R

T
R

ID
G

E
-S

C
H

IC
K

37
0.

14

00
00

06
59

87
03

/1
4/

20
25

M
A

R
K

 E
N

G
LE

R
W

IN
T

E
R

 G
A

M
E

 W
O

R
K

E
R

S
27

0.
00

00
00

06
59

88
03

/1
4/

20
25

M
A

R
K

 G
O

D
F

R
E

Y
A

T
H

LE
T

IC
 T

R
IP

S
20

.0
0

00
00

06
59

89
03

/1
4/

20
25

M
A

T
T

H
E

W
 A

 R
E

IT
Z

C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
N

T
 F

E
E

 2
/1

0/
25

-2
/2

1/
25

1,
60

0.
00

04
/0

7/
20

25
 0

1:
31

:0
2 

P
M

LO
Y

A
LS

O
C

K
 T

O
W

N
S

H
IP

 S
C

H
O

O
L 

D
IS

T
P

ag
e 

5 
of

 1
2

* 
- 

N
on

-N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

t  
 +

 -
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t C

ar
d 

N
on

-N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

 #
 -

 P
ay

ab
le

 w
ith

in
 P

ay
m

en
t  

P
 -

 P
re

no
te

  D
 -

 D
ire

ct
 D

ep
os

it 
 C

 -
 C

re
di

t C
ar

d 
 ^

 -
 V

irt
ua

l P
ay

m
en

t



F
U

N
D

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
IN

G
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
B

an
k 

A
cc

o
u

n
t:

 G
F

 -
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L 

F
U

N
D

   
  P

ay
m

en
t 

D
at

es
: 

03
/0

1/
20

25
 -

 0
3/

31
/2

02
5 

   
O

m
it

 D
at

es
: 

20
25

-0
3-

30
   

   
   

P
ay

m
en

t 
C

at
eg

o
ri

es
: 

R
eg

ul
ar

 C
he

ck
s,

 N
on

-n
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

ts
, D

ire
ct

 D
ep

os
its

, M
an

ua
l C

he
ck

s,
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t C

ar
ds

, C
re

di
t C

ar
ds

 
  S

o
rt

:  
P

ay
m

en
t 

N
u

m
b

er

P
ay

m
en

t 
#

P
ay

m
n

t 
D

t
V

en
d

o
r 

N
am

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 O
f 

P
u

rc
h

as
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 O

f 
P

u
rc

h
as

e
A

m
o

u
n

t

00
00

06
59

90
03

/1
4/

20
25

M
A

Y
E

R
 e

LE
C

T
R

IC
 S

U
P

P
LY

 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

 IN
C

T
O

G
G

LE
S

18
1.

22

00
00

06
59

91
03

/1
4/

20
25

M
E

C
H

T
LY

 C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L 
D

O
O

R
 

LL
C

P
R

IV
A

C
Y

 L
O

C
K

S
E

T
S

 &
 S

P
IN

D
LE

 
S

C
R

E
W

95
0.

00

00
00

06
59

92
03

/1
4/

20
25

M
E

IE
R

 S
U

P
P

LY
 C

O
H

S
 K

IT
C

H
E

N
 S

W
E

E
P

 3
8"

 G
A

S
K

E
T

 
T

H
R

E
S

H
O

LD
85

.5
0

00
00

06
59

93
03

/1
4/

20
25

M
IC

H
A

E
L 

S
IL

V
A

G
N

I
A

T
H

LE
T

IC
 T

R
IP

10
.0

0

00
00

06
59

94
03

/1
4/

20
25

P
A

T
R

IC
IA

 C
O

Z
Z

A
H

E
A

LT
H

 IN
S

 P
R

E
M

IU
M

24
0.

00

00
00

06
59

95
03

/1
4/

20
25

P
P

L 
E

LE
C

T
R

IC
 U

T
IL

IT
IE

S
E

LE
C

T
R

IC
-S

C
H

IC
K

4,
13

8.
25

00
00

06
59

96
03

/1
4/

20
25

P
R

O
 S

U
P

P
LY

T
O

W
E

LS
 &

 T
O

IL
E

T
 T

IS
S

U
E

H
S

1,
20

6.
64

00
00

06
59

97
03

/1
4/

20
25

R
O

B
O

T
IC

S
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
 &

 C
O

M
P

 
F

O
U

N
D

.
62

33
10

67
62

33
45

54
36

0.
00

00
00

06
59

98
03

/1
4/

20
25

R
O

N
 A

D
E

R
H

O
LD

W
IN

T
E

R
 G

A
M

E
 W

O
R

K
E

R
S

40
.0

0

00
00

06
59

99
03

/1
4/

20
25

S
T

A
P

LE
S

60
23

74
65

30
60

24
69

31
50

64
.4

4

00
00

06
60

00
03

/1
4/

20
25

T
IM

 S
N

Y
D

E
R

W
IN

T
E

R
 G

A
M

E
 W

O
R

K
E

R
S

0.
00

00
00

06
60

01
03

/1
4/

20
25

T
R

A
N

E
  U

S
 IN

C
M

S
H

S
1,

58
0.

46

00
00

06
60

02
03

/1
4/

20
25

U
N

IT
E

D
 P

A
R

C
E

L 
S

E
R

V
IC

E
P

O
S

T
A

G
E

4.
40

00
00

06
60

03
03

/1
4/

20
25

V
E

R
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

E
LE

S
S

V
E

R
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

E
LE

S
S

-M
A

C
H

/M
A

C
H

 
U

N
LI

M
IT

E
D

21
0.

28

00
00

06
60

04
03

/1
4/

20
25

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

  K
R

O
U

T
H

E
A

LT
H

 IN
S

 P
R

E
M

IU
M

21
5.

00

00
00

06
60

05
03

/1
4/

20
25

W
E

S
 B

R
IN

K
W

IN
T

E
R

 G
A

M
E

 W
O

R
K

E
R

S
53

0.
00

00
00

06
60

06
03

/2
7/

20
25

A
H

O
LD

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L 
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

T
O

K
E

N
 E

C
O

N
O

M
Y

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

-J
T

W
E

LL
N

E
S

S
 E

V
E

N
T

69
9.

91

00
00

06
60

07
03

/2
7/

20
25

A
LA

N
 H

U
F

F
A

T
H

LE
T

IC
 T

R
IP

S
30

.0
0

00
00

06
60

08
03

/2
7/

20
25

A
M

A
Z

O
N

 C
A

P
IT

A
L 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
T

A
B

LE
39

6.
69

00
00

06
60

09
03

/2
7/

20
25

A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
 W

E
LD

IN
G

 &
 G

A
S

  I
N

C
.

A
C

E
T

Y
LE

N
E

 C
Y

LI
N

D
E

R
S

-R
E

N
T

A
L

12
5.

59

00
00

06
60

10
03

/2
7/

20
25

A
U

D
R

E
Y

 E
A

R
N

E
S

T
T

E
E

N
 L

IN
K

 T
R

IP
-H

S
10

.0
0

04
/0

7/
20

25
 0

1:
31

:0
2 

P
M

LO
Y

A
LS

O
C

K
 T

O
W

N
S

H
IP

 S
C

H
O

O
L 

D
IS

T
P

ag
e 

6 
of

 1
2

* 
- 

N
on

-N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

t  
 +

 -
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t C

ar
d 

N
on

-N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

 #
 -

 P
ay

ab
le

 w
ith

in
 P

ay
m

en
t  

P
 -

 P
re

no
te

  D
 -

 D
ire

ct
 D

ep
os

it 
 C

 -
 C

re
di

t C
ar

d 
 ^

 -
 V

irt
ua

l P
ay

m
en

t



F
U

N
D

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
IN

G
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
B

an
k 

A
cc

o
u

n
t:

 G
F

 -
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L 

F
U

N
D

   
  P

ay
m

en
t 

D
at

es
: 

03
/0

1/
20

25
 -

 0
3/

31
/2

02
5 

   
O

m
it

 D
at

es
: 

20
25

-0
3-

30
   

   
   

P
ay

m
en

t 
C

at
eg

o
ri

es
: 

R
eg

ul
ar

 C
he

ck
s,

 N
on

-n
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

ts
, D

ire
ct

 D
ep

os
its

, M
an

ua
l C

he
ck

s,
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t C

ar
ds

, C
re

di
t C

ar
ds

 
  S

o
rt

:  
P

ay
m

en
t 

N
u

m
b

er

P
ay

m
en

t 
#

P
ay

m
n

t 
D

t
V

en
d

o
r 

N
am

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 O
f 

P
u

rc
h

as
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 O

f 
P

u
rc

h
as

e
A

m
o

u
n

t

00
00

06
60

11
03

/2
7/

20
25

B
A

R
R

Y
 K

IN
LE

Y
A

T
H

LE
T

IC
 T

R
IP

10
.0

0

00
00

06
60

12
03

/2
7/

20
25

B
E

N
E

D
IC

T
S

 B
U

S
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
D

E
LU

X
E

 M
O

T
O

R
C

O
A

C
H

-G
IR

LS
 B

B
 

S
T

A
T

E
S

 P
LA

Y
O

F
F

S
2,

34
3.

00

00
00

06
60

13
03

/2
7/

20
25

B
LA

S
T

 IU
 1

7
S

O
U

T
H

 A
C

A
D

E
M

Y
 2

4-
25

 M
ID

 Y
E

A
R

 
B

IL
LI

N
G

-(
1)

 S
T

U
D

E
N

T
D

U
A

L 
D

IA
G

N
O

S
IS

 2
4-

25
 M

ID
 Y

E
A

R
 

B
IL

LI
N

G
67

,0
67

.5
6

00
00

06
60

14
03

/2
7/

20
25

B
R

IA
N

 L
O

W
M

IL
LE

R
A

T
H

LE
T

IC
 T

R
IP

10
.0

0

00
00

06
60

15
03

/2
7/

20
25

C
A

R
L 

P
R

O
B

S
T

H
S

 F
IE

LD
 T

R
IP

-C
E

N
T

R
E

 C
T

Y
 

C
O

U
R

T
H

O
U

S
E

10
.0

0

00
00

06
60

16
03

/2
7/

20
25

C
A

S
E

Y
 W

A
LL

E
R

H
E

A
LT

H
 IN

S
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
24

0.
00

00
00

06
60

17
03

/2
7/

20
25

C
H

R
IS

T
IA

N
 T

Y
M

E
S

O
N

H
E

A
LT

H
 IN

S
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
21

5.
00

00
00

06
60

18
03

/2
7/

20
25

C
M

 R
E

G
E

N
T

  L
LC

LI
F

E
LO

N
G

 T
E

R
M

 D
IS

A
B

IL
IT

Y
2,

98
3.

42

00
00

06
60

19
03

/2
7/

20
25

C
O

M
C

A
S

T
 C

A
B

LE
C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
-H

S
48

.0
7

00
00

06
60

20
03

/2
7/

20
25

D
E

LT
A

 D
E

N
T

A
L 

O
F

 
P

E
N

N
S

Y
LV

A
N

IA
E

M
P

LO
Y

E
E

 C
O

N
T

R
IB

U
T

IO
N

S
S

E
LF

-P
A

Y
S

75
7.

56

00
00

06
60

21
03

/2
7/

20
25

D
IA

K
O

N
 L

U
T

H
E

R
N

 S
O

C
IA

L 
M

IN
IS

T
R

IE
S

C
O

U
N

S
E

LI
N

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 2
/3

/2
5-

2/
27

/2
5

C
O

U
N

S
E

LI
N

G
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 1
/6

/2
5-

1/
30

/2
5

2,
18

0.
00

00
00

06
60

22
03

/2
7/

20
25

D
O

R
O

T
H

Y
 W

H
IT

E
 M

E
R

T
Z

Q
T

LY
 L

O
C

A
L 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 T

A
X

 
P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

2,
89

6.
00

00
00

06
60

23
03

/2
7/

20
25

D
O

U
B

LE
 D

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 &

 
E

X
C

A
V

A
T

IO
N

A
N

D
 R

O
LL

 G
IR

LS
 S

O
F

T
B

A
LL

 F
IE

LD
3,

92
0.

00

00
00

06
60

24
03

/2
7/

20
25

D
U

A
N

E
 H

E
V

E
R

LY
JR

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 B
A

N
D

 T
R

IP
10

.0
0

00
00

06
60

25
03

/2
7/

20
25

E
D

U
C

E
R

E
O

N
LI

N
E

 C
LA

S
S

E
S

-H
S

26
,0

14
.0

0

00
00

06
60

26
03

/2
7/

20
25

E
G

O
LD

 F
A

X
F

A
X

 O
V

E
R

A
G

E
 C

H
A

R
G

E
 2

/1
9/

25
-

3/
18

/2
5

34
.4

0

00
00

06
60

27
03

/2
7/

20
25

E
N

G
IE

 P
O

W
E

R
 &

 G
A

S
 L

LC
H

S
M

S
12

,4
12

.5
2

00
00

06
60

28
03

/2
7/

20
25

E
Q

U
IT

Y
 R

O
O

F
IN

G
 L

LC
H

S
M

S
97

2.
14

00
00

06
60

29
03

/2
7/

20
25

E
S

S
 N

O
R

T
H

E
A

S
T

 L
LC

R
E

G
 E

D
 S

U
B

S
T

IT
U

T
E

S
-M

S
R

E
G

 E
D

 S
U

B
S

T
IT

U
T

E
S

-S
C

H
IC

K
15

,5
12

.2
0

00
00

06
60

30
03

/2
7/

20
25

F
A

S
T

E
N

A
L 

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
F

IN
IS

H
 C

O
U

P
LI

N
G

 N
U

T
 &

 E
Y

E
 B

O
LT

89
.3

9

04
/0

7/
20

25
 0

1:
31

:0
2 

P
M

LO
Y

A
LS

O
C

K
 T

O
W

N
S

H
IP

 S
C

H
O

O
L 

D
IS

T
P

ag
e 

7 
of

 1
2

* 
- 

N
on

-N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

t  
 +

 -
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t C

ar
d 

N
on

-N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

 #
 -

 P
ay

ab
le

 w
ith

in
 P

ay
m

en
t  

P
 -

 P
re

no
te

  D
 -

 D
ire

ct
 D

ep
os

it 
 C

 -
 C

re
di

t C
ar

d 
 ^

 -
 V

irt
ua

l P
ay

m
en

t



F
U

N
D

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
IN

G
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
B

an
k 

A
cc

o
u

n
t:

 G
F

 -
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L 

F
U

N
D

   
  P

ay
m

en
t 

D
at

es
: 

03
/0

1/
20

25
 -

 0
3/

31
/2

02
5 

   
O

m
it

 D
at

es
: 

20
25

-0
3-

30
   

   
   

P
ay

m
en

t 
C

at
eg

o
ri

es
: 

R
eg

ul
ar

 C
he

ck
s,

 N
on

-n
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

ts
, D

ire
ct

 D
ep

os
its

, M
an

ua
l C

he
ck

s,
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t C

ar
ds

, C
re

di
t C

ar
ds

 
  S

o
rt

:  
P

ay
m

en
t 

N
u

m
b

er

P
ay

m
en

t 
#

P
ay

m
n

t 
D

t
V

en
d

o
r 

N
am

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 O
f 

P
u

rc
h

as
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 O

f 
P

u
rc

h
as

e
A

m
o

u
n

t

00
00

06
60

31
03

/2
7/

20
25

F
IN

K
'S

 P
A

IN
T

 S
T

O
R

E
P

A
IN

T
-S

C
H

IC
K

 H
A

LL
W

A
Y

53
.6

9

00
00

06
60

32
03

/2
7/

20
25

G
LE

N
N

 D
R

IC
K

F
LE

E
T

 S
P

E
C

IA
LI

S
T

 3
/1

72
5-

3/
22

/2
5

F
LE

E
T

 S
P

E
C

IA
LI

S
T

 3
/1

0/
25

-3
/1

5/
25

1,
62

0.
00

00
00

06
60

33
03

/2
7/

20
25

H
IG

H
M

A
R

K
 B

LU
E

 S
H

IE
LD

V
IS

IO
N

-E
M

P
LO

Y
E

E
 P

A
ID

R
E

T
IR

E
E

 S
E

LF
 P

A
Y

S
1,

71
6.

19

00
00

06
60

34
03

/2
7/

20
25

H
IL

LY
A

R
D

/M
ID

-A
T

LA
N

T
IC

S
ID

E
 S

K
IR

T
 S

E
T

C
LU

T
C

H
 A

S
S

E
M

B
LY

25
1.

63

00
00

06
60

35
03

/2
7/

20
25

JO
H

N
 W

H
E

E
LE

R
A

T
H

LE
T

IC
 T

R
IP

30
.0

0

00
00

06
60

36
03

/2
7/

20
25

JO
S

E
P

H
 W

. S
M

IT
H

 II
I

H
E

A
LT

H
 IN

S
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
21

5.
00

00
00

06
60

37
03

/2
7/

20
25

JO
S

T
E

N
S

JU
N

IO
R

 C
LA

S
S

 C
A

P
 A

N
D

 G
O

W
N

S
80

.9
0

00
00

06
60

38
03

/2
7/

20
25

JU
S

T
IN

 V
A

N
F

LE
E

T
R

E
IM

B
U

R
S

E
 3

 C
R

E
D

IT
S

3,
11

4.
00

00
00

06
60

39
03

/2
7/

20
25

LA
K

E
S

H
O

R
E

 L
E

A
R

N
IN

G
P

R
E

K
 S

U
P

P
LI

E
S

-P
U

C
K

E
Y

29
.9

9

00
00

06
60

40
03

/2
7/

20
25

LA
N

C
E

R
 F

O
U

N
D

A
T

IO
N

LA
N

C
E

R
 F

O
U

N
D

A
T

IO
N

 
C

O
N

T
R

IB
U

T
IO

N
S

25
6.

00

00
00

06
60

41
03

/2
7/

20
25

LA
R

S
O

N
  K

E
LL

E
T

T
 &

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

S
F

IN
A

L 
B

IL
LI

N
G

 F
O

R
 A

U
D

IT
5,

59
9.

72

00
00

06
60

42
03

/2
7/

20
25

LE
C

C
E

 E
LE

C
T

R
IC

T
R

O
U

B
LE

S
H

O
T

 &
 R

E
P

A
IR

 L
IG

H
T

IN
G

 
C

O
N

T
R

O
L 

P
A

N
E

L-
S

C
H

IC
K

1,
11

8.
00

00
00

06
60

43
03

/2
7/

20
25

LI
N

D
A

 L
aC

O
E

H
E

A
LT

H
 IN

S
 P

R
E

M
IU

M
24

0.
00

00
00

06
60

44
03

/2
7/

20
25

LI
S

A
 F

IS
H

E
R

M
IL

E
A

G
E

 R
E

IM
B

U
R

S
E

M
E

N
T

19
2.

30

00
00

06
60

45
03

/2
7/

20
25

LO
Y

A
LS

O
C

K
 C

A
F

E
T

E
R

IA
 F

U
N

D
D

IS
T

 W
ID

E
 S

A
F

E
T

Y
 &

 S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y
 

B
R

E
A

K
F

A
S

T
C

A
R

E
E

R
 E

X
P

O
 R

E
F

R
E

S
H

M
E

N
T

S
-

V
 C

A
M

P
M

A
N

1,
33

1.
00

00
00

06
60

46
03

/2
7/

20
25

M
A

D
IS

O
N

 E
N

E
R

G
Y

 IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
 

II 
LL

C
H

S
M

S
5,

97
3.

89

00
00

06
60

47
03

/2
7/

20
25

M
A

R
C

O
 T

E
C

H
N

O
LO

G
IE

S
 L

LC
M

X
-4

11
1N

 D
S

C
 U

P
S

T
A

IR
S

K
Y

O
C

E
R

A
-P

20
40

W
 D

S
C

 
19

2.
85

00
00

06
60

48
03

/2
7/

20
25

M
A

R
K

 G
O

D
F

R
E

Y
F

A
N

 B
U

S
-G

IR
LS

 B
B

 IN
 P

O
T

T
S

V
IL

LE
10

.0
0

00
00

06
60

49
03

/2
7/

20
25

M
A

S
T

E
R

LI
B

R
A

R
Y

C
O

M
 L

LC
M

L 
S

C
H

E
D

U
LE

S
 S

O
F

T
W

A
R

E
 3

/1
/2

5-
2/

28
/2

6
1,

80
0.

00

00
00

06
60

50
03

/2
7/

20
25

M
A

Y
E

R
 e

LE
C

T
R

IC
 S

U
P

P
LY

 
C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

 IN
C

T
H

N
 1

2 
S

O
L 

B
LK

 C
U

 5
00

S
/R

D
O

M
E

-T
O

P
 B

U
LK

 2
50

/P
K

-
B

A
S

E
B

A
LL

 F
IE

LD
81

6.
47

00
00

06
60

51
03

/2
7/

20
25

M
C

C
O

R
M

IC
K

 L
A

W
 F

IR
M

LT
S

D
-0

00
00

 F
E

B
R

U
A

R
Y

 2
02

5
B

O
A

R
D

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

S
 B

IL
LI

N
G

S
90

4.
50

04
/0

7/
20

25
 0

1:
31

:0
2 

P
M

LO
Y

A
LS

O
C

K
 T

O
W

N
S

H
IP

 S
C

H
O

O
L 

D
IS

T
P

ag
e 

8 
of

 1
2

* 
- 

N
on

-N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

t  
 +

 -
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t C

ar
d 

N
on

-N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

 #
 -

 P
ay

ab
le

 w
ith

in
 P

ay
m

en
t  

P
 -

 P
re

no
te

  D
 -

 D
ire

ct
 D

ep
os

it 
 C

 -
 C

re
di

t C
ar

d 
 ^

 -
 V

irt
ua

l P
ay

m
en

t



F
U

N
D

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
IN

G
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
B

an
k 

A
cc

o
u

n
t:

 G
F

 -
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L 

F
U

N
D

   
  P

ay
m

en
t 

D
at

es
: 

03
/0

1/
20

25
 -

 0
3/

31
/2

02
5 

   
O

m
it

 D
at

es
: 

20
25

-0
3-

30
   

   
   

P
ay

m
en

t 
C

at
eg

o
ri

es
: 

R
eg

ul
ar

 C
he

ck
s,

 N
on

-n
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

ts
, D

ire
ct

 D
ep

os
its

, M
an

ua
l C

he
ck

s,
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t C

ar
ds

, C
re

di
t C

ar
ds

 
  S

o
rt

:  
P

ay
m

en
t 

N
u

m
b

er

P
ay

m
en

t 
#

P
ay

m
n

t 
D

t
V

en
d

o
r 

N
am

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 O
f 

P
u

rc
h

as
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 O

f 
P

u
rc

h
as

e
A

m
o

u
n

t

00
00

06
60

52
03

/2
7/

20
25

M
IC

H
A

E
L 

S
IL

V
A

G
N

I
A

T
H

LE
T

IC
 T

R
IP

S
20

.0
0

00
00

06
60

53
03

/2
7/

20
25

M
IR

A
B

IT
O

 E
N

E
R

G
Y

 P
R

O
D

U
C

T
S

G
A

S
O

LI
N

E
-1

77
73

69
B

IO
D

IE
S

E
L 

17
77

35
1

4,
84

6.
21

00
00

06
60

54
03

/2
7/

20
25

N
A

S
S

P
N

H
S

 M
E

M
B

E
R

S
H

IP
 P

IN
 &

 C
E

R
T

48
3.

99

00
00

06
60

55
03

/2
7/

20
25

N
O

R
T

H
 C

E
N

T
R

A
L 

S
IG

H
T

 S
R

V
C

S
H

R
E

D
D

IN
G

-S
C

H
IC

K
S

H
R

E
D

D
IN

G
 H

S
10

0.
00

00
00

06
60

56
03

/2
7/

20
25

P
A

 M
E

D
IA

 G
R

O
U

P
A

D
V

E
R

T
IS

IN
G

76
2.

84

00
00

06
60

57
03

/2
7/

20
25

P
A

F
P

C
M

E
M

B
E

R
S

H
IP

 F
E

E
-B

 B
E

IT
E

R
50

.0
0

00
00

06
60

58
03

/2
7/

20
25

P
A

T
R

IC
IA

 C
O

Z
Z

A
H

E
A

LT
H

 IN
S

 P
R

E
M

IU
M

24
0.

00

00
00

06
60

59
03

/2
7/

20
25

P
E

N
S

K
E

 T
R

U
C

K
 L

E
A

S
IN

G
 C

O
 L

P
O

M
 P

R
O

P
 T

R
U

C
K

 -
 B

A
R

T
LE

Y
20

7.
88

00
00

06
60

60
03

/2
7/

20
25

P
M

E
A

 A
LL

 S
T

A
T

E
 F

E
S

T
IV

A
L

P
M

E
A

 A
LL

 S
T

A
T

E
 F

E
S

T
IV

A
L 

R
E

G
 F

E
E

42
5.

00

00
00

06
60

61
03

/2
7/

20
25

P
M

E
A

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 8
P

M
E

A
 R

E
G

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
 -

 T
IN

I
17

5.
00

00
00

06
60

62
03

/2
7/

20
25

P
M

E
A

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 8
P

M
E

A
 R

E
G

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
15

0.
00

00
00

06
60

63
03

/2
7/

20
25

P
M

E
A

 M
P

A
 R

E
G

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
M

P
A

 R
E

G
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

 T
IN

I
23

5.
00

00
00

06
60

64
03

/2
7/

20
25

P
M

T
 M

A
C

H
IN

IN
G

 IN
C

P
LA

T
E

S
 F

O
R

 L
IG

H
T

 B
R

A
C

K
E

T
S

21
0.

00

00
00

06
60

65
03

/2
7/

20
25

P
P

L 
E

LE
C

T
R

IC
 U

T
IL

IT
IE

S
E

LE
C

T
R

IC
-S

C
H

IC
K

E
LE

C
T

R
IC

-2
10

1 
R

E
A

R
2,

88
7.

64

00
00

06
60

66
03

/2
7/

20
25

P
R

O
 S

U
P

P
LY

T
O

IL
E

T
 T

IS
S

U
E

10
00

 2
-P

LY
 T

O
IL

E
T

 T
IS

S
U

E
1,

59
5.

43

00
00

06
60

67
03

/2
7/

20
25

R
A

P
T

O
R

 T
E

C
H

N
O

LO
G

IE
S

R
A

P
T

O
R

 E
M

E
R

G
E

N
C

Y
 M

A
N

G
M

T
 

S
Y

S
T

E
M

 L
IC

E
N

S
E

4,
64

6.
66

00
00

06
60

68
03

/2
7/

20
25

R
IV

E
R

 R
O

C
K

 A
C

A
D

E
M

Y
 L

LC
9T

H
 IN

S
T

A
LL

M
E

N
T

 O
F

 1
0 

(5
) 

S
T

U
D

E
N

T
 S

LO
T

13
,5

97
.5

0

00
00

06
60

69
03

/2
7/

20
25

R
O

B
E

R
T

 M
 S

ID
E

S
S

E
R

V
IC

E
 E

LE
C

T
R

O
N

IC
 M

IL
A

G
E

-
Y

A
M

A
H

A
 S

P
E

A
K

E
R

S
-H

S
B

A
N

D
 S

U
P

P
LI

E
S

-T
IN

I
25

4.
00

00
00

06
60

70
03

/2
7/

20
25

R
O

H
R

E
R

 B
U

S
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
-

LE
W

IS
B

U
R

G
B

U
S

 P
A

R
T

S
68

5.
77

00
00

06
60

71
03

/2
7/

20
25

S
C

H
O

O
L 

H
E

A
LT

H
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
IO

N
A

E
D

 B
A

T
T

E
R

IE
S

 &
 A

D
U

LT
/C

H
IL

D
 

P
A

D
S

2,
38

5.
13

00
00

06
60

72
03

/2
7/

20
25

S
C

H
O

O
L 

S
P

E
C

IA
LT

Y
 L

LC
LO

P
E

Z
-M

E
D

IN
A

-L
E

A
R

N
IN

G
 S

U
P

P
O

R
T

T
W

IG
G

-G
IF

T
E

D
48

6.
13

04
/0

7/
20

25
 0

1:
31

:0
2 

P
M

LO
Y

A
LS

O
C

K
 T

O
W

N
S

H
IP

 S
C

H
O

O
L 

D
IS

T
P

ag
e 

9 
of

 1
2

* 
- 

N
on

-N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

t  
 +

 -
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t C

ar
d 

N
on

-N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

 #
 -

 P
ay

ab
le

 w
ith

in
 P

ay
m

en
t  

P
 -

 P
re

no
te

  D
 -

 D
ire

ct
 D

ep
os

it 
 C

 -
 C

re
di

t C
ar

d 
 ^

 -
 V

irt
ua

l P
ay

m
en

t



F
U

N
D

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
IN

G
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
B

an
k 

A
cc

o
u

n
t:

 G
F

 -
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L 

F
U

N
D

   
  P

ay
m

en
t 

D
at

es
: 

03
/0

1/
20

25
 -

 0
3/

31
/2

02
5 

   
O

m
it

 D
at

es
: 

20
25

-0
3-

30
   

   
   

P
ay

m
en

t 
C

at
eg

o
ri

es
: 

R
eg

ul
ar

 C
he

ck
s,

 N
on

-n
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

ts
, D

ire
ct

 D
ep

os
its

, M
an

ua
l C

he
ck

s,
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t C

ar
ds

, C
re

di
t C

ar
ds

 
  S

o
rt

:  
P

ay
m

en
t 

N
u

m
b

er

P
ay

m
en

t 
#

P
ay

m
n

t 
D

t
V

en
d

o
r 

N
am

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 O
f 

P
u

rc
h

as
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 O

f 
P

u
rc

h
as

e
A

m
o

u
n

t

00
00

06
60

73
03

/2
7/

20
25

S
IE

M
E

N
S

 IN
D

U
S

T
R

Y
 IN

C
S

C
H

IC
K

 H
E

A
T

E
R

S
31

8.
28

00
00

06
60

74
03

/2
7/

20
25

S
T

E
P

H
E

N
 H

A
F

E
LE

R
E

IM
B

U
R

S
E

 K
IT

C
H

E
N

E
T

T
E

 IT
E

M
S

 &
 

S
T

IC
K

E
R

S
11

8.
59

00
00

06
60

75
03

/2
7/

20
25

S
U

R
P

LU
S

 C
IT

Y
 IN

C
W

A
S

H
E

R
S

, N
U

T
S

, B
O

LT
S

 F
O

R
 

B
A

T
T

IN
G

 C
A

G
E

S
F

A
B

R
IC

 F
O

R
 G

R
A

D
U

A
T

IO
N

21
9.

04

00
00

06
60

76
03

/2
7/

20
25

S
U

S
Q

U
E

H
A

N
N

A
 T

R
A

IL
W

A
Y

S
 L

LC
D

E
LU

X
E

 M
O

T
O

R
C

O
A

C
H

-G
IR

LS
 B

B
  

S
T

A
T

E
 P

LA
Y

O
F

F
S

1,
83

5.
00

00
00

06
60

77
03

/2
7/

20
25

T
IM

 S
N

Y
D

E
R

W
IN

T
E

R
 G

A
M

E
 W

O
R

K
E

R
S

34
0.

00

00
00

06
60

78
03

/2
7/

20
25

T
Y

LE
R

 S
 G

R
A

N
T

 M
U

S
IC

 W
O

R
K

S
 

LL
C

S
C

H
IC

K
M

S
1,

19
3.

23

00
00

06
60

79
03

/2
7/

20
25

U
P

M
C

 F
R

E
D

D
IE

 F
U

 S
P

O
R

T
S

 
M

E
D

IC
IN

E
 C

T
R

E
X

T
R

A
 A

T
H

LE
T

IC
 T

R
A

IN
IN

G
 

C
O

V
E

R
A

G
E

34
0.

00

00
00

06
60

80
03

/2
7/

20
25

V
E

R
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

E
LE

S
S

V
E

R
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

E
LE

S
S

-M
A

C
H

/M
A

C
H

 
U

N
LI

M
IT

E
D

21
0.

28

00
00

06
60

81
03

/2
7/

20
25

V
E

R
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

E
LE

S
S

V
E

R
IZ

O
N

 W
IR

E
LE

S
S

-C
E

LL
 P

H
O

N
E

S
23

2.
35

00
00

06
60

82
03

/2
7/

20
25

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

  K
R

O
U

T
H

E
A

LT
H

 IN
S

 P
R

E
M

IU
M

21
5.

00

00
00

06
60

83
03

/2
7/

20
25

W
E

B
B

 W
E

E
K

LY
A

D
V

E
R

T
IS

IN
G

34
2.

00

00
00

06
60

84
03

/2
7/

20
25

W
E

X
 H

E
A

LT
H

  I
N

C
.

H
R

A
-H

S
A

 M
O

N
T

H
LY

-F
E

B
R

U
A

R
Y

 2
02

5
37

1.
75

00
00

06
60

85
03

/2
7/

20
25

W
IL

LI
A

M
S

P
O

R
T

 C
IT

Y
 J

A
Z

Z
 

O
R

C
H

E
S

T
R

A
W

C
JO

 J
A

Z
Z

 F
E

S
T

 M
U

S
IC

 E
D

 D
A

Y
15

0.
00

00
00

06
60

86
03

/2
7/

20
25

W
IL

M
IN

G
T

O
N

 T
R

U
S

T
F

LA
T

 F
E

E
78

0.
00

00
00

06
60

87
03

/2
7/

20
25

W
IN

D
S

T
R

E
A

M
01

14
89

50
4

01
14

90
80

4
30

.6
8

00
00

06
60

88
03

/2
7/

20
25

W
M

W
A

26
07

-0
33

9-
0

0.
00

00
00

06
60

89
03

/2
7/

20
25

W
O

R
K

 C
E

N
T

E
R

 S
U

S
Q

U
E

H
A

N
N

A
 

P
H

Y
S

IC
IA

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

S
T

U
D

E
N

T
 D

R
U

G
 T

E
S

T
IN

G
B

U
S

 D
R

IV
E

R
S

 D
R

U
G

 T
E

S
T

IN
G

2,
69

0.
00

00
00

06
60

90
03

/2
7/

20
25

Y
O

U
T

H
LI

G
H

T
   

IN
C

.
C

O
O

LE
Y

- 
C

O
U

N
S

E
LO

R
19

1.
07

00
00

06
60

91
03

/3
1/

20
25

P
M

E
A

 A
LL

 S
T

A
T

E
 F

E
S

T
IV

A
L

A
LL

 S
T

A
T

E
 C

H
O

IR
 R

E
G

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
41

5.
00

00
00

06
60

92
03

/3
1/

20
25

P
M

E
A

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 8
D

8 
M

O
D

E
R

N
 B

A
N

D
 R

E
G

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
60

.0
0

04
/0

7/
20

25
 0

1:
31

:0
2 

P
M

LO
Y

A
LS

O
C

K
 T

O
W

N
S

H
IP

 S
C

H
O

O
L 

D
IS

T
P

ag
e 

10
 o

f 1
2

* 
- 

N
on

-N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

t  
 +

 -
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t C

ar
d 

N
on

-N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

 #
 -

 P
ay

ab
le

 w
ith

in
 P

ay
m

en
t  

P
 -

 P
re

no
te

  D
 -

 D
ire

ct
 D

ep
os

it 
 C

 -
 C

re
di

t C
ar

d 
 ^

 -
 V

irt
ua

l P
ay

m
en

t



F
U

N
D

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
IN

G
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
B

an
k 

A
cc

o
u

n
t:

 G
F

 -
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L 

F
U

N
D

   
  P

ay
m

en
t 

D
at

es
: 

03
/0

1/
20

25
 -

 0
3/

31
/2

02
5 

   
O

m
it

 D
at

es
: 

20
25

-0
3-

30
   

   
   

P
ay

m
en

t 
C

at
eg

o
ri

es
: 

R
eg

ul
ar

 C
he

ck
s,

 N
on

-n
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

ts
, D

ire
ct

 D
ep

os
its

, M
an

ua
l C

he
ck

s,
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t C

ar
ds

, C
re

di
t C

ar
ds

 
  S

o
rt

:  
P

ay
m

en
t 

N
u

m
b

er

P
ay

m
en

t 
#

P
ay

m
n

t 
D

t
V

en
d

o
r 

N
am

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 O
f 

P
u

rc
h

as
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 O

f 
P

u
rc

h
as

e
A

m
o

u
n

t

00
00

06
60

93
03

/3
1/

20
25

W
M

W
A

26
07

-0
33

9-
0

6,
63

4.
74

* 
00

00
E

T
64

36
03

/0
4/

20
25

W
E

X
 H

E
A

LT
H

  I
N

C
.

H
S

A
 E

M
P

LO
Y

E
R

 C
O

N
T

R
IB

U
T

IO
N

-S
 

H
A

F
E

LE
2,

00
0.

00

* 
00

00
E

T
64

37
03

/0
4/

20
25

A
F

LA
C

A
F

LA
C

-S
H

O
R

T
 T

E
R

M
 D

IS
A

B
IL

IT
Y

53
9.

25

* 
00

00
E

T
64

38
03

/0
5/

20
25

P
S

E
R

S
P

S
E

R
S

-E
M

P
LO

Y
E

E
-R

E
T

P
S

E
R

S
-E

M
P

LO
Y

E
E

-R
E

T
-P

O
S

69
,9

44
.8

4

* 
00

00
E

T
64

39
03

/0
7/

20
25

V
O

Y
A

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
V

O
Y

A
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L-

R
E

T
 V

O
Y

-
E

M
P

LO
Y

E
E

V
O

Y
A

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L-
E

M
P

LO
Y

E
R

4,
54

3.
00

* 
00

00
E

T
64

40
03

/0
7/

20
25

P
A

 S
T

A
T

E
 IN

C
O

M
E

 T
A

X
P

A
 IN

C
O

M
E

 T
A

X
 W

IT
H

H
E

LD
13

,9
48

.0
6

* 
00

00
E

T
64

41
03

/0
7/

20
25

E
LE

C
T

R
O

N
IC

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
 

T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

F
IT

 W
IT

H
H

O
LD

IN
G

S
E

R
 S

O
C

IA
L 

S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y
10

3,
10

1.
73

* 
00

00
E

T
64

42
03

/0
7/

20
25

D
E

LT
A

 D
E

N
T

A
L 

O
F

 
P

E
N

N
S

Y
LV

A
N

IA
D

E
LT

A
 D

E
N

T
A

L 
C

LA
IM

S
 P

A
ID

3,
51

9.
30

* 
00

00
E

T
64

43
03

/0
6/

20
25

U
G

I U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

 IN
C

U
G

I -
 S

C
H

IC
K

2,
84

2.
60

* 
00

00
E

T
64

44
03

/0
6/

20
25

U
G

I U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

 IN
C

U
G

I-
H

S
U

G
I-

M
S

9,
42

8.
81

* 
00

00
E

T
64

45
03

/0
7/

20
25

W
E

X
 H

E
A

LT
H

  I
N

C
.

H
S

A
 E

M
P

LO
Y

E
E

 C
O

N
T

R
IB

U
T

IO
N

S
11

,7
20

.1
6

* 
00

00
E

T
64

46
03

/1
0/

20
25

U
G

I U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

 IN
C

U
G

I-
U

N
IT

 1
 S

C
H

IC
K

33
9.

10

* 
00

00
E

T
64

47
03

/1
8/

20
25

P
S

E
R

S
P

S
E

R
S

-P
O

S
 E

M
P

LO
Y

E
R

 
C

O
N

T
R

IB
U

T
IO

N
-#

28
62

51
2

86
.9

8

* 
00

00
E

T
64

48
03

/2
1/

20
25

P
S

E
R

S
P

S
E

R
S

-E
M

P
LO

Y
E

E
-R

E
T

P
S

E
R

S
-E

M
P

LO
Y

E
E

-R
E

T
-P

O
S

71
,7

51
.7

3

* 
00

00
E

T
64

49
03

/2
1/

20
25

P
A

 S
T

A
T

E
 IN

C
O

M
E

 T
A

X
P

A
 IN

C
O

M
E

 T
A

X
 W

IT
H

H
E

LD
15

,5
47

.2
9

* 
00

00
E

T
64

50
03

/2
1/

20
25

E
LE

C
T

R
O

N
IC

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
 

T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

F
IT

 W
IT

H
H

O
LD

IN
G

S
E

R
 S

O
C

IA
L 

S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y
11

6,
01

5.
73

* 
00

00
E

T
64

51
03

/2
1/

20
25

LO
Y

A
LS

O
C

K
 T

O
W

N
S

H
IP

 
E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

IO
N

LT
E

A
 V

O
LU

N
T

A
R

Y
 D

U
E

S
9,

01
3.

90

* 
00

00
E

T
64

52
03

/2
1/

20
25

T
S

A
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
IN

G
 G

R
O

U
P

  I
N

C
E

E
 C

O
N

T
R

IB
U

T
IO

N
S

E
R

 C
O

N
T

R
IB

. M
C

LA
U

G
H

LI
N

-K
M

28
,4

55
.4

1

* 
00

00
E

T
64

53
03

/2
1/

20
25

D
E

LT
A

 D
E

N
T

A
L 

O
F

 
P

E
N

N
S

Y
LV

A
N

IA
D

E
LT

A
 D

E
N

T
A

L 
C

LA
IM

S
 P

A
ID

2,
61

5.
50

* 
00

00
E

T
64

54
03

/2
1/

20
25

K
E

Y
S

T
O

N
E

 C
O

LL
E

C
T

IO
N

S
 

G
R

O
U

P
W

A
G

E
 G

A
R

N
IS

H
M

E
N

T
-9

46
58

4
12

4.
00

04
/0

7/
20

25
 0

1:
31

:0
2 

P
M

LO
Y

A
LS

O
C

K
 T

O
W

N
S

H
IP

 S
C

H
O

O
L 

D
IS

T
P

ag
e 

11
 o

f 1
2

* 
- 

N
on

-N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

t  
 +

 -
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t C

ar
d 

N
on

-N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

 #
 -

 P
ay

ab
le

 w
ith

in
 P

ay
m

en
t  

P
 -

 P
re

no
te

  D
 -

 D
ire

ct
 D

ep
os

it 
 C

 -
 C

re
di

t C
ar

d 
 ^

 -
 V

irt
ua

l P
ay

m
en

t



F
U

N
D

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
IN

G
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
B

an
k 

A
cc

o
u

n
t:

 G
F

 -
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L 

F
U

N
D

   
  P

ay
m

en
t 

D
at

es
: 

03
/0

1/
20

25
 -

 0
3/

31
/2

02
5 

   
O

m
it

 D
at

es
: 

20
25

-0
3-

30
   

   
   

P
ay

m
en

t 
C

at
eg

o
ri

es
: 

R
eg

ul
ar

 C
he

ck
s,

 N
on

-n
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

ts
, D

ire
ct

 D
ep

os
its

, M
an

ua
l C

he
ck

s,
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t C

ar
ds

, C
re

di
t C

ar
ds

 
  S

o
rt

:  
P

ay
m

en
t 

N
u

m
b

er

P
ay

m
en

t 
#

P
ay

m
n

t 
D

t
V

en
d

o
r 

N
am

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 O
f 

P
u

rc
h

as
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 O

f 
P

u
rc

h
as

e
A

m
o

u
n

t

* 
00

00
E

T
64

55
03

/2
1/

20
25

V
O

Y
A

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
V

O
Y

A
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L-

R
E

T
 V

O
Y

-
E

M
P

LO
Y

E
E

V
O

Y
A

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L-
E

M
P

LO
Y

E
R

5,
02

1.
23

* 
00

00
E

T
64

56
03

/2
1/

20
25

W
E

X
 H

E
A

LT
H

  I
N

C
H

S
A

 E
M

P
LO

Y
E

E
 C

O
N

T
R

IB
U

T
IO

N
S

11
,7

20
.1

6

* 
00

00
E

T
64

57
03

/2
5/

20
25

P
S

E
R

S
R

E
T

IR
E

M
E

N
T

1,
10

7,
65

1.
92

* 
00

00
E

T
64

58
03

/2
7/

20
25

M
A

R
C

O
 T

E
C

H
N

O
LO

G
IE

S
  L

LC
A

G
R

E
E

M
E

N
T

 0
25

-1
69

44
36

A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
 0

20
-1

84
14

08
 

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 S
H

A
R

P
 C

O
P

IE
R

S
6,

67
4.

09

* 
00

00
E

T
64

59
03

/2
8/

20
25

LY
C

O
M

IN
G

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 IN
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

A
C

T
IV

E
-D

IS
T

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
E

M
P

LO
Y

E
E

 C
O

N
T

R
IB

U
T

IO
N

S
25

9,
70

6.
32

* 
00

00
E

T
64

60
03

/2
8/

20
25

K
E

Y
S

T
O

N
E

 C
O

LL
E

C
T

IO
N

S
 

G
R

O
U

P
W

A
G

E
 G

A
R

N
IS

H
M

E
N

T
-9

46
58

4
12

4.
00

* 
00

00
E

T
64

61
03

/2
8/

20
25

A
F

LA
C

A
F

LA
C

-S
H

O
R

T
 T

E
R

M
 D

IS
A

B
IL

IT
Y

53
9.

25

* 
00

00
E

T
64

62
03

/2
8/

20
25

K
E

Y
S

T
O

N
E

 C
O

LL
E

C
T

IO
N

S
 

G
R

O
U

P
K

E
Y

S
T

O
N

E
 C

O
LL

E
C

T
IO

N
S

 G
R

O
U

P
47

,7
15

.7
0

10
 -

 G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
2,

42
5,

86
9.

49

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l A

ll 
F

u
n

d
s

2,
42

5,
86

9.
49

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l C

re
d

it
 C

ar
d

s
0.

00

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l D

ir
ec

t 
D

ep
o

si
ts

0.
00

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l M

an
u

al
 C

h
ec

ks
(1

2,
32

7.
51

)

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l O

th
er

 D
is

b
u

rs
em

en
t 

N
o

n
-n

eg
o

ti
ab

le
s

1,
90

4,
69

0.
06

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

C
ar

d
 O

th
er

 D
is

b
u

rs
em

en
t 

N
o

n
-n

eg
o

ti
ab

le
s

0.
00

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l R

eg
u

la
r 

C
h

ec
ks

53
3,

50
6.

94

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l V

ir
tu

al
 P

ay
m

en
ts

0.
00

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l A

ll 
P

ay
m

en
ts

2,
42

5,
86

9.
49

04
/0

7/
20

25
 0

1:
31

:0
2 

P
M

LO
Y

A
LS

O
C

K
 T

O
W

N
S

H
IP

 S
C

H
O

O
L 

D
IS

T
P

ag
e 

12
 o

f 1
2

* 
- 

N
on

-N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

D
is

bu
rs

em
en

t  
 +

 -
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t C

ar
d 

N
on

-N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

 #
 -

 P
ay

ab
le

 w
ith

in
 P

ay
m

en
t  

P
 -

 P
re

no
te

  D
 -

 D
ire

ct
 D

ep
os

it 
 C

 -
 C

re
di

t C
ar

d 
 ^

 -
 V

irt
ua

l P
ay

m
en

t



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND
CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS SUMMARY

 

WOODLANDS BANKS

3,447,871.92

Athletic Admissions 9,794.00                       
Earned Income Tax 259,653.24                    
Interest 15,002.61                     
Ipad Revenue 2,000.00                       
Local Services Tax 790.67                          
Miscellaneous Revenue 650.84                          
Recoverable Disbursements - Insurance 9,600.98                       
Recoverable Disbursements - Other 149.00                          
Business Privilege Tax 14,260.65                     
Real Estate Transfer 83,336.18                     
Donation/Grant 2,794.00                       
Pay to Play 870.00                          
IDEA 201,456.00                    

Total Receipts: 600,358.17                    

Transfer from PLGIT 5,000,000.00                 
Other Transfers
Returned ACH

Total Funds Available: 9,048,230.09
 

Disbursements: Accounts Payable Expenses 2,425,869.49                 
Net Payroll 652,191.60                    
Check #65852, posted in February and voided in March (500.00)                         

Total Disbursements: 3,077,561.09                 

5,970,669.00                 
Yield 4.75%

Ending Balance - Woodlands Federated Government Obligations T/M Fund 16,646.65                     
Yield 4.20%

Ending Balance - Woodlands 12 Month CD - Merrick Bank 250,000.00                    
Yield 4.25%

Ending Balance - Woodlands 12 Month CD - Charles Schwab 250,000.00                    
Yield 5.40%

Ending Balance - Woodlands 12 Month CD - Flagstar Bank 250,000.00                    
Yield 4.80%

Ending Balance - Woodlands 6 Month CD - PNC Bank 250,000.00                    
Yield 4.35%

Ending Balance - Woodlands 9 month CD - Wells Fargo Bank 250,000.00                    
Yield 4.20%

Ending Balance - Woodlands 18 Month CD - Oakstar Bank 250,000.00                    
Yield 4.15%

Ending Balance - Woodlands - 12 Month CD - Bank of America 250,000.00                    
Yield 5.35%

Ending Balance - Woodlands - 12 Month CD - Flagstar Bank 250,000.00                    
Yield 4.20%

FOR THE MONTH OF MARCH 31, 2025

BEGINNING BALANCE - MARCH 1, 2025 WOODLANDS CHECKING ACCOUNT GF:

Ending Balance - Woodlands Checking Account GF

4/7/2025 4:23 PM 1 of 4 P:\Staff Accountant Files\Board Reports\Treasurers Report 24-25



Ending Balance - PLGIT 12 Month CD HARMONY BANK 248,316.98                    
Yield 5.33%

Ending Balance - PLGIT 12 Month CD, BANK OF CHINA 247,840.09                    
Yield 5.80%

Ending Balance - PLGIT 12 Month CD, GBANK 243,283.34                    
Yield 4.45%

6,071,397.17                 

Yield 4.15%

14,798,153.23               
=================

TOTAL GENERAL FUND ENDING BALANCE MARCH 31, 2025:

Ending Balance - PLGIT General Fund

4/7/2025 4:23 PM 2 of 4 P:\Staff Accountant Files\Board Reports\Treasurers Report 24-25



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND
CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS SUMMARY
FOR THE MONTH OF MARCH 31, 2025  
Average Yield 4.15% PLGIT

10,283,773.97

Receipts:
Comm of PA - Medicaid Admin Claims 285.21
Comm of PA - Retirement Subsidy 591,338.21
Comm of PA - Special Ed Subsidy 46,627.31
Comm of PA - SD Transportation 49,967.00                     
Comm of PA - PA Pre-K Counts Program 16,285.71
Comm of PA - SHARRS Reimbursement 26,982.39
Federal Programs - Title I #013-250234 Improving Basic Programs 23,088.38
Federal Programs - Title II #020-250234 Improving Teacher Quality 3,379.92
Federal Programs - Title IV #144-250234 Student Support and Academic Enrichment 1,759.08
Interest 31,188.96                     

Total Receipts: 790,902.17                    

Total Funds Available: 11,074,676.14

Disbursements:

Wire Transfer to Woodlands General Fund #3262 5,000,000.00                 
February Purchase Card Transactions 3,278.97                       

Total Disbursements: 5,003,278.97                 

6,071,397.17
=================

CAPITAL RESERVE FUND
CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS SUMMARY
FOR THE MONTH OF MARCH 31, 2025
Average Yield 4.15%

 
PLGIT

1,013,339.58

Receipts: Transfer from GF -                                
Interest 3,578.05                       

Total Receipts: 3,578.05                       

Total Funds Available: 1,016,917.63

Disbursements:
Checks:

Total Disbursements: -                                

Less Outstanding Checks:

1,016,917.63
=================

BEGINNING BALANCE - MARCH 1, 2025 PLGIT CAPITAL RESERVE 

ENDING BALANCE - PLGIT CAPITAL RESERVE MARCH 31, 2025:

BEGINNING BALANCE - MARCH 1, 2025 PLGIT GENERAL FUND:

ENDING BALANCE - PLGIT GENERAL FUND MARCH 31, 2025:

4/7/2025 4:23 PM 3 of 4 P:\Staff Accountant Files\Board Reports\Treasurers Report 24-25



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL RESERVE CONSTRUCTION FUND
CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS SUMMARY
FOR THE MONTH OF MARCH 31, 2025
Average Yield 4.15%

PLGIT

BEGINNING BALANCE - MARCH 1, 2025 CAPITAL RESERVE CONSTRUCTION FUND 2,389,531.76                 

Receipts: Transfer from GF -                                
Interest 8,369.09                       

Total Receipts: 8,369.09                       

Total Funds Available: 2,397,900.85                 

Disbursements:
Checks:

1343 Hawbaker Engineering 3,107.50                       
1344 Marotta/Main Architects 7,262.50                       

Transfers:

Total Disbursements: 10,370.00                     

Prior Outstanding - Cleared in February

1338 Hawbaker Engineering 3,513.27
1342 PA Floor, Inc. 12,000.00

Total: 15,513.27                     

Less Outstanding Checks:

-                                

CAPITAL RESERVE CONSTRUCTION FUND MARCH 31, 2025: 2,372,017.58                 
=================

TOTAL ENDING BALANCE - MARCH 31, 2025 CAPITAL RESERVE FUND: 3,388,935.21
=================

4/7/2025 4:23 PM 4 of 4 P:\Staff Accountant Files\Board Reports\Treasurers Report 24-25



Loyalsock Township School District
Student Activity Fund Account Balances

Middle School

Student Activity

 Fund Amount   
as of 3/31/2025 

 Fund Amount   
as of 

12/31/2024 
 Fund Amount   
as of 9/30/24 

Band 1,302.90$                    1,584.15$                  2,089.15$                  
Cheerleading 619.87                         1,110.17                    1,438.81                    
6th Grade Student Activity 844.19                         844.19                       844.19                       
7th Grade Student Activity 953.25                         953.25                       953.25                       
8th Grade Student Activity 1,637.23                      1,637.23                    1,009.23                    
Yearbook 1,650.75                      1,331.59                    1,331.59                    
MS Football 50.09                           50.09                         50.09                         
MS Student Council 705.82                         705.82                       705.82                       
MS Spanish Club 127.55                         127.55                       127.55                       
MS Track & Field 85.93                           85.93                         85.93                         
MS FBLA 275.48                         275.48                       275.48                       
MS PBIS 5,198.15                      7,726.73                    5,678.97                    
MS Vex Robotics (282.97)                       839.45                       1,859.65                    
Clearinghouse Interest 27.96                           26.00                         23.86                         

Total 13,196.20$         17,297.63$        16,473.57$        

High School

 Fund Amount    
as of 3/31/2025 

 Fund Amount   
as of 

12/31/2024 
 Fund Amount   
as of 9/30/24 

Student Activity

Athletic Training 1,353.80$                    1,353.80$                  1,353.80$                  
Band 295.46                         295.46                       224.56                       
Baseball 1,138.96                      1,138.96                    1,138.96                    
Boys Basketball 332.70                         332.70                       332.70                       
Boys Soccer 6,493.03                      6,793.03                    5,804.38                    
Chorus 311.53                         311.53                       311.53                       
Class of 2028 3,641.00                      1,560.00                    -                            
Spirit Club 292.38                         292.38                       292.38                       
Green House Club 30.09                           30.09                         30.09                         
Class of 2024 1,083.01                      1,083.01                    1,083.01                    
Wellness Club -                              -                            -                            
Class of 2027 225.00                         -                            -                            
Class of 2025 4,983.52                      7,953.52                    8,200.50                    
Class of 2026 4,935.05                      5,022.57                    3,792.57                    
International Thespian Society 1,685.43                      1,685.43                    1,685.43                    
Eco-Act 202.04                         202.04                       202.04                       
Girl's Basketball 7,410.94                      9,762.21                    7,470.00                    
Girl's Soccer 9,141.28                      9,141.28                    9,046.47                    
Golf 365.84                         365.84                       223.89                       
History Club 587.71                         587.71                       587.71                       
KeyClub 1,726.00                      366.40                       556.40                       
Leo Club 55.12                           55.12                         55.12                         
National Honor Society 1,105.22                      985.87                       985.87                       
Scholastic Challenge 1,004.43                      1,004.43                    1,004.43                    
S.A.D.D. 1,746.37                      1,746.37                    1,557.37                    
Softball Club 10,394.42                    11,699.58                  11,545.38                  
Spanish Club 2,350.20                      2,350.20                    2,100.20                    
Student Assembly Account 3,806.15                      3,806.15                    2,322.00                    
Student Council 2,668.15                      2,537.15                    1,871.14                    
Girls Tennis 350.90                         350.90                       337.82                       
Varsity Cheerleaders 2,824.57                      2,824.57                    4,504.53                    
Volleyball 4,808.74                      5,751.56                    4,920.74                    

Quarter Ended March 31, 2025

4/7/2025 1:51 PM P:\Staff Accountant Files\Board Reports\Student Activity Quarterly Report 24-25



Yearbook 19,319.81                    18,259.81                  13,989.81                  
Ski Club 651.66                         651.66                       612.46                       
Football 40.83                           40.83                         40.83                         
Cultures of the World 98.74                           98.74                         157.70                       
Track and Field 8,504.68                      8,259.99                    7,655.85                    
GSA 298.86                         298.86                       298.86                       
Yr Book/Brick Fundraiser 1,214.25                      1,214.25                    1,214.25                    
National Art Honor Society 937.73                         937.73                       937.73                       
Cross Country 443.15                         443.15                       432.43                       
Interact 57.16                           57.16                         304.66                       
FBLA 2,117.17                      129.63                       (0.37)                         
Penn College Youth LDSH 1,367.53                      1,367.53                    1,367.53                    
Maroon Market 829.58                         1,077.70                    736.43                       
BIO-MED 117.10                         117.10                       117.10                       
Envirothon 91.08                           91.08                         91.08                         
Boys Tennis 29.73                           29.73                         29.73                         
Clearinghouse Fund (Interest) 42.91                           28.43                         13.79                         

113,511.01$       114,493.24$      101,540.89$      

Total All Funds 126,707.21$       131,790.87$      118,014.46$      

4/7/2025 1:51 PM P:\Staff Accountant Files\Board Reports\Student Activity Quarterly Report 24-25



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
        FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SINGLE AUDIT REPORTS 

      FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 



- 1 - 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 Page 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 2-4 
 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 5 
 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 
Government-Wide Financial Statements: 
 Statement of Net Position 6 
 Statement of Activities 7 
Fund Financial Statements: 
 Governmental Funds: 
 Balance Sheet  8 
 Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balances to Net Position of 

Governmental Activities 9 
 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 10 
 Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, 

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of 
Activities 11 

 Proprietary Fund: 
  Statement of Net Position 12 
  Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 13 
  Statement of Cash Flows 14 
 Fiduciary Funds: 
  Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 15 
  Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 16 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 17-47 
 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund 48 
Schedule of Changes in the District’s Total Other Postemployment Benefits 

Liability - District Plan 49-50 
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Other Postemployment 

Benefits Liability - Premium Assistance Program 51 
Schedule of the District’s Other Postemployment Benefits Plan Contributions - 

Premium Assistance Program 52 
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 53 
Schedule of the District’s Pension Plan Contributions 54 
 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 55 
 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 56 
 
SINGLE AUDIT REPORTS: 
Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and 

on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 57-58 

 
Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on 

Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 59-61 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 62-63 



- 2 -

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of School Directors
Loyalsock Township School District
Williamsport, Pennsylvania:

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, and each major fund of Loyalsock Township School District (District) as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and
each major fund of the District, as of June 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial 
position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent 
of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant 
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, 
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the 
District’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement 
date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly 
thereafter.



- 3 - 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditors’ report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user 
based on the financial statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and 
Government Auditing Standards, we: 
 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. 
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. 

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion 
is expressed. 

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis on page 5, Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General 
Fund on page 48, Schedule of Changes in the District’s Total Other Postemployment Benefits 
Liability - District Plan on page 49 and 50, Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the 
Net Other Postemployment Benefits Liability - Premium Assistance Program on page 51, 
Schedule of the District’s Other Postemployment Benefits Plan Contributions - Premium 
Assistance Program on page 52, Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net 
Pension Liability on page 53, and Schedule of the District’s Pension Plan Contributions on page 
54 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information is the 
responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential 
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,



- 4 -

economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 4, 2025, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance.

Montoursville, Pennsylvania
March 4, 2025



-5.1 - 

LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 
 
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of the Loyalsock Township School District’s 
(District) financial performance provides an overall review of the District’s financial activities for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. The intent of the MD&A is to provide user-friendly insight into 
management’s analysis of the District’s financial performance as a whole. Readers should also 
review the independent auditors’ report, notes to the basic financial statements, and financial 
statements to increase their understanding of the District’s financial performance. 
 
Figure A-1 shows how the required components of the Financial Section are arranged and relate to 
one another. 
 

FIGURE A-1 
Required Components of  

LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT’S 
Financial Report 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
Management’s 
Discussion and 

Analysis 

Required 
Supplementary 

Information 

 
Government-

Wide Financial 
Statements 

Fund 
Financial 

Statements

 
Notes to the 

Financial 
Statements

Basic 
Financial 

Statements 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

 

- 5.2 - 

Figure A-2 summarizes the major features of the District’s financial statements, including the portion 
of the District they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview 
section of management’s discussion and analysis explains the structure and contents of each of the 
statements. 
 

Figure A-2
Major Features of Loyalsock Township School District’s 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-
Wide 

Statements 
Governmental 

Funds

Fund Statements
Proprietary 

Funds 
 

Fiduciary Funds
Scope Entire District 

(except 
fiduciary funds) 

The activities of the 
District that are not 
proprietary or 
fiduciary, such as 
education, 
administration, and 
community services

Activities the 
District operates 
similar to private 
business – Food 
Services 

Instances in which 
the District is the 
trustee or agent to 
someone else’s 
resources – 
Scholarship Funds 

Required financial 
statements 

Statement of 
net position 
Statement of 
activities 

Balance Sheet 
Statement of 
revenues, 
expenditures, and 
changes in fund 
balance 

Statement of net 
position 
Statement of 
revenues, 
expenses and 
changes in net 
position 
Statement of cash 
flows 

Statement of 
fiduciary net 
position 
Statement of 
revenues, 
expenses, and 
changes in 
fiduciary net 
position 

Accounting basis 
and measurement 
focus 

Accrual 
accounting and 
economic 
resources 
focus 

Modified accrual 
accounting and 
current financial 
resources focus 

Accrual 
accounting and 
economic 
resources focus 

Accrual 
accounting and 
economic 
resources focus 

Type of 
asset/deferred 
outflows of 
resources/deferred 
inflows of 
resources/liability 
information 

All assets, and 
deferred 
outflows of 
resources, 
liabilities, and 
deferred 
inflows of 
resources both 
financial and 
capital, and 
short-term and 
long-term 

Generally assets 
and deferred 
outflows of 
resources expected 
to be used up and 
liabilities, and 
deferred inflows of 
resources that 
come due during 
the year or soon 
thereafter; no 
capital assets 
included 

All assets, 
deferred outflows 
of resources, 
liabilities, and 
deferred inflows 
or resources, both 
financial and 
capital, and short-
term and long-
term 

All assets, 
deferred outflows, 
liabilities, and 
deferred inflows of 
resources, both 
short-term and 
long-term 

Type of inflow-
outflow information 

All revenues 
and expenses 
during year, 
regardless of 
when cash is 
received or 
paid 

Revenues for which 
cash is received 
during or soon after 
the end of the year; 
expenditures when 
goods or services 
have been received 
and payment is due 
during the year or 
soon thereafter

All revenues and 
expenses during 
year, regardless 
of when cash is 
received or paid 

All revenues and 
expenses during 
year, regardless of 
when cash is 
received or paid 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 5.3 - 

Analysis of Overall Financial Position and Results of Operations Over the Past Fiscal Year 
 
Governmental Activities - On June 30, 2024, the District’s total net position from governmental 
activities was $1,354,945. At year end, the District’s total net position of Governmental Activities 
increased by approximately $1,710,000 from the previous year end. 
 
The District continued to experience increases in the costs for regular instruction, healthcare, 
retirement benefits and special education instruction. Healthcare and retirement benefit increases 
continue to be a long term concern for the District. The Board of School Directors was able to balance 
the budget without increasing real estate taxes as the final millage rate remained 15.35 mills, ($15.35 
on each $1,000 assessment) to the taxpayers.  
 
Business - Type Activities - Food Service had total net position of $1,432,350 as of June 30, 2024. 
At year end, the District’s total net position of the business-type activities increased by approximately 
$561,000 from the previous year end. 
 
Table 1 summarizes the assets, liabilities, and net position of the District at June 30, 2024, and June 
30, 2023 
 

Table 1
Net Position as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 

(Government-Wide)
      
  2024    2023  

 Governmental 
Activities  

Business-Type 
Activities  

Total  Governmental 
Activities  

Business-Type 
Activities 

Total

Assets    
Current assets $ 17,523,850 $1,331,243  $ 18,855,093 $ 21,282,389  $1,239,534  $ 22,521,923
Lease receivables, net 396,854  396,854 404,334   404,334
Capital assets, net 41,405,088 937,835  42,342,923 38,635,042  489,007  39,124,049
Total assets $ 59,325,792 $2,269,078  $ 61,594,870 $ 60,321,765  $1,728,541  $ 62,050,306

   
Deferred outflows of    
resources $   6,321,569 $   176,848  $ 6,498,417 $  5,458,253  $   151,046  $  5,609,299

   
Liabilities    
Current liabilities $   5,873,028 $     32,350  $   5,905,378 $   6,343,040  $     36,694  $   6,379,734
Long-term liabilities 56,592,195 961,328 57,553,523 57,411,424 937,965 58,349,389
Total liabilities $ 62,465,223 $   993,678 $ 63,458,901 $ 63,754,464 $   974,659 $ 64,729,123

   
Deferred inflows of    
resources $   1,827,193 $   19,898  $   1,847,091 $   2,381,051  $   33,230  $   2,414,281

Net Position    
Net investment in    
capital assets  $ 18,608,141  $   937,835  $ 19,545,976 $ 16,915,999  $   489,007  $ 17,405,006
Restricted for     
capital projects 1,595,567  1,595,567 1,914,492   1,914,492
Unrestricted (deficit) (18,848,763) 494,515  (18,354,248) (19,185,988)  382,691  (18,803,297)

Total net position $   1,354,945 $   1,432,350  $      2,787,295 $ (355,497)  $   871,698  $      516,201

   



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 5.4 - 

Table 2 summarizes the revenues, expenses, and change in net position of the District for the years 
ended June 30, 2024 and 2023. 
 

Table 2
Change in Net Position

Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 
(Government-Wide)

2024 2023
Governmental 

Activities
Business - Type 

Activities 
Total Governmental 

Activities 
Business - Type 

Activities 
Total 

Program Revenues:        
Charges for services  $     157,937 $   183,434  $     341,371  $     161,194   $   201,704 $     362,898 
Operating grants and 
contributions 6,052,088 1,269,021 7,321,109 5,943,996 1,234,567 7,178,563 
General Revenues:       
Property taxes  11,290,950   11,290,950  11,317,237  11,317,237 
Local earned income         

Taxes levied 4,249,993 4,249,993 4,121,773 4,121,773

Real estate transfer tax  471,052   471,052  1,320,353  1,320,353 

Other taxes levied  526,217   526,217  477,159  477,159 

Grants and entitlements  5,206,522   5,206,522  5,175,998  5,175,998 
Investment earnings  1,051,350 70,820  1,122,170  927,496  48,838 976,334 
Miscellaneous  12,891   12,891  29,575  29,575 

        
Total Revenues  29,019,000 1,523,275  30,542,275  29,474,781  1,485,109 30,959,890 

        
Program Expenses:         
Instruction  15,495,106   15,495,106  13,867,227  13,867,227 
Support Services:         
Instructional student support 
services

 
2,666,619 

  
2,666,619

  
2,582,267 

  
2,582,267 

Administrative and financial 
services

 
2,677,818 

  
2,677,818

  
2,423,431 

  
2,423,431 

Operation and maintenance 
of plant services 

 
3,938,134 

  
3,938,134 

  
3,324,692 

  
3,324,692 

Pupil transportation  603,575   603,575  573,410  573,410 
Community services  28,411   28,411  35,518  35,518 
Student activities  791,525   791,525  692,169  692,169 
Depreciation, unallocated  122   122  122  122 

        

Interest and amortization 
on long-term debt 623,510 623,510 692,314 692,314

Food service   1,465,788  1,465,788    1,295,757 1,295,757 
        

Total Expenses  26,824,820 1,465,788  28,290,608  24,191,150  1,295,757 25,486,907 
        

Excess (deficiency)         
before transfers  2,194,180 57,487  2,251,667  5,283,631  189,352 5,472,983 

Interfund transfers and          
capital contributions   (503,165) 503,165   (234,021)  234,021  

Gain (loss) on sale of real                    
estate      331,715  331,715 
Gain (loss) on disposal of         

capital assets  19,427   19,427  9,963  9,963 
        

Change in Net Position  $  1,710,442 $   560,652  $  2,271,094  $  5,391,288  $   423,373 $  5,814,661 

       



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

 

- 5.5 - 

Budgetary Variances

 Total General Fund Revenues exceeded the final budgeted revenues by approximately 
$1,856,000 or 6.96%. 

 Budgetary estimates differed in the following areas: 

 Local revenues - The revenue from local sources exceeded the final budget by 
approximately $863,000. Budget estimates vary in the following areas: 

• Earned Income Taxes - this amount exceeded our budget estimate by 
approximately $650,000 due to continuing economic growth that outpaced our 
evaluations. 

• Earnings on Interest - approximately $326,000 over budget due to increased 
interest rates for the District’s General Fund account and certificates of deposit. 

 State revenues - The revenue from state sources was more than the final budget by 
approximately $808,000. Budget estimates vary in the following areas: 

• Basic Education Funding - resulted in increased revenues of approximately 
$283,000 over the final budget. 

• Safety & Security Grant - resulted in increased revenues of approximately 
$184,000 over the final budget. 

• Retirement Recovery - resulted in increased revenues of approximately 
$270,000 over the final budget. 

 Federal revenues - The revenue from federal sources was more than the final budget by 
approximately $185,000.  Budget estimates vary in the following areas: 

• ESSER Funding - resulted in increased revenues of approximately $425,000 
over the final budget due to funds allocated toward the building project. 

• Med Assistance - revenues were less than our final budget by approximately 
$224,000 as a result of the district choosing not to withdrawal med assistance 
money. 

 Total General Fund Expenditures exceeded the final budgeted expenditures by 
approximately $2,291,000 or 9.56%. 

• The District financed equipment purchases with Apple Computer in fiscal years 
2022-2023 and 2023-2024. The total debt service payments to Apple Computer 
were approximately $283,000 in the current year. 

• Capital outlay of $387,924 consisted of ARP ESSER grant expenditures 
allocated for the building expansion projects. 

• The majority of the variances in expenditures occurred in the salary and benefits 
portion of the District’s budget.  Salaries and benefits are approximately 73% of 
the District’s expenditures. 

 Other Financing Uses, Net were lower the final budgeted other financing uses by 
approximately $291,000 or 9.59%. 

• The District transferred $500,000 to capital projects fund. 

• The District financed equipment purchases with Apple Computer in 2023-2024.  
The total financed purchase obligation was valued at $771,580. 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

 

- 5.6 - 

Significant Capital Activity

During the 2023-2024 school year, the District had the following significant capital activity: 
 

 The District had construction costs of approximately $3,072,000 for building expansion 
projects.  The projects were primarily financed through General Obligation Bonds, Series of 
2021 and General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2022. 

During the 2024-2025 school year, the District will continue with the approved construction 
projects.  The estimated cost to complete these projects is $2,400,000.

Currently Known Facts, Decisions or Conditions:

Governmental Activities - The District approved a budget that will have no increase of taxes for the 
2024-2025 school year.  The District continues to benefit from growth and refinancing of bond issues 
during times of historically low interest rates.  As the economy continues to recover from the COVID-
19 Pandemic, local and state revenues are expected to slightly increase from the previous year.  The 
District will no longer receive federal COVID relief funds to offset lost revenues from the pandemic.  
The Pennsylvania Department of Education’s adequacy funding will help offset this loss of federal 
funding in the coming year(s). 
 
The District has settled a contract with administrative personnel through June 30, 2027.  Additionally, 
addendums were made to both the professional and support staff contracts to raise wages to be 
more competitive with other local school districts.  The addendum(s) take effect the beginning of the 
24-25 school year. 
 
The Public School Employees Retirement System (PSERS) continues to project increased rates in 
employer contributions over the next several years.  The District contributed a rate of 34.00% for the 
2023-2024 school year.  The rate for the 2024-2025 school year is 33.90%.  The District has 
prepared for future rate increases if they occur and has currently committed $2,595,000 of fund 
balance for future retirement expenditures.   
 
Other than those issues listed in the MD&A or in the notes to the basic financial statements, there 
are no facts currently known to management that would materially impact the financial statements 
either favorably or unfavorably at this time. 
 
Contacting The District Financial Management 
 
Our financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, parents, students, investors, and 
creditors with a general overview of the District's finances and show the Board and administration’s 
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions regarding this report or wish to request 
additional financial information, please contact Dan Egly, Business Manager, Loyalsock Township 
School District, 1605 Four Mile Drive, Williamsport, PA, 17701. (570) 326-6508. 



ASSETS:
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 10,912,560$ 1,284,382$      12,196,942$ 
Investments 4,784,812     4,784,812     
Taxes receivable, net 323,623        323,623        
Due from other funds 9,221            9,221            
Due from other governments 1,352,887     39,257             1,392,144     
Other receivables 133,267        133,267        
Current portion of lease receivable 7,480            7,480            

Inventories  7,604               7,604            

Total current assets 17,523,850   1,331,243        18,855,093   

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Lease receivable, net 396,854        396,854        
Capital assets, net 41,405,088   937,835           42,342,923   

Total noncurrent assets 41,801,942   937,835           42,739,777   

TOTAL ASSETS 59,325,792$ 2,269,078$      61,594,870$ 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred loss on refunding debt, net 14,312$        14,312$        
Other postemployment benefits - district plan 168,073        168,073        

Other postemployment benefits - premium assistance program 242,998        7,000$             249,998        

Pensions 5,896,186     169,848           6,066,034     

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 6,321,569$   176,848$         6,498,417$   

LIABILITIES:
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Internal balances (13,466)$       13,466$           
Due to other funds 2,125            2,125$          
Due to other governments 359,913        359,913        
Accounts payable 209,383        3,346               212,729        
Accrued salaries and benefits 2,895,967     3,036               2,899,003     
Accrued interest payable 103,609        103,609        
Payroll deductions and withholdings 107,798        107,798        
Current portion of noncurrent liabilities 2,147,045     2,147,045     
Unearned revenue 52,486          12,502             64,988          
Other current liabilities 8,168             8,168            

Total current liabilities 5,873,028     32,350             5,905,378     

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Bonds payable, net 21,961,566   21,961,566   
Accumulated compensated absences, net 304,009        17,644             321,653        
Leases, net 70,957          70,957          
Financed purchase obligations, net 578,685        578,685        
Total other postemployment benefit liability - district plan 917,661        917,661        
Net other postemployment benefit liability - premium assistance program 1,280,125     36,876             1,317,001     
Net pension liability 31,479,192   906,808           32,386,000   

Total noncurrent liabilities 56,592,195   961,328           57,553,523   

TOTAL LIABILITIES 62,465,223$ 993,678$         63,458,901$ 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Other postemployment benefits - district plan 751,106$      751,106$      
Other postemployment benefits - premium assistance program 259,718        7,481$             267,199        
Pensions 431,006        12,417             443,423        
Leases 385,363                            385,363        

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 1,827,193$   19,898$           1,847,091$   

NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets 18,608,141$ 937,835$         19,545,976$ 
Restricted for capital projects 1,595,567     1,595,567     
Unrestricted (deficit) (18,848,763)  494,515           (18,354,248)  

TOTAL NET POSITION 1,354,945$   1,432,350$      2,787,295$   

LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
GOVERNMENT-WIDE

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2024

Total
Governmental

Activities
Business-Type

Activities

See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
- 6 -



F
un

ct
io

ns
/P

ro
gr

am
s

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

 A
C

T
IV

IT
IE

S
:

In
st

ru
ct

io
n

15
,4

95
,1

06
$ 

65
,5

76
$ 

   
 

3
,4

6
1,

1
36

$ 
 

(1
1,

9
68

,3
94

)
$ 

  
(1

1,
96

8,
39

4)
$ 

  
In

st
ru

ct
io

na
l s

tu
de

nt
 s

u
pp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
s

2,
66

6,
61

9
   

  
83

9,
35

6
   

   
 

(1
,8

27
,2

63
)

   
   

 
(1

,8
27

,2
63

)
   

   
 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

 a
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
u

pp
or

t s
er

vi
ce

s
2,

67
7,

81
8

   
  

34
3,

09
7

   
   

 
(2

,3
34

,7
21

)
   

   
 

(2
,3

34
,7

21
)

   
   

 
O

pe
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

m
a

in
te

na
nc

e
 o

f p
la

nt
 s

er
vi

ce
s

3,
93

8,
13

4
   

  
16

,7
55

   
   

 
66

8,
5

87
   

   
 

(3
,2

52
,7

92
)

   
   

 
(3

,2
52

,7
92

)
   

   
 

P
up

il 
tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

60
3,

57
5

   
   

  
24

3,
15

4
   

   
 

(3
60

,4
21

)
   

   
  

  
(3

60
,4

21
)

   
   

   
 

S
tu

de
nt

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
79

1,
52

5
   

   
  

75
,6

06
   

   
 

7
4,

0
33

   
   

   
(6

41
,8

86
)

   
   

  
  

(6
41

,8
86

)
   

   
   

 
C

o
m

m
un

ity
 s

er
vi

ce
s

28
,4

11
   

   
   

 
(2

8,
41

1)
   

   
  

   
 

(2
8,

41
1)

   
   

   
   

In
te

re
st

 a
nd

 a
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
on

 lo
n

g-
te

rm
 d

eb
t

62
3,

51
0

   
   

  
42

2,
72

5
   

   
 

(2
00

,7
85

)
   

   
  

  
(2

00
,7

85
)

   
   

   
 

D
e

pr
e

ci
at

io
n

, u
na

llo
ca

te
d 

*
12

2
   

   
   

   
  

 
  

   
   

   
   

   
 

  
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

(1
22

)
   

   
  

   
  

   
 

 
(1

22
)

   
   

   
   

   
  

T
ot

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l a

ct
iv

iti
es

26
,8

24
,8

20
   

15
7,

93
7

   
  

6
,0

5
2,

0
88

   
 

(2
0,

6
14

,7
95

)
   

  
  

   
   

  
   

  
(2

0,
61

4,
79

5)
   

  

B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
-T

Y
P

E
 A

C
T

IV
IT

IE
S

,
F

oo
d 

se
rv

ic
e

1,
46

5,
78

8
   

  
18

3,
43

4
   

  
1,

26
9,

02
1

   
 

 
(1

3,
33

3)
$ 

   
 

(1
3,

3
33

)
   

   
   

  
 

T
O

T
A

L
28

,2
90

,6
08

$  
3

41
,3

71
$ 

  
7,

32
1,

10
9

$ 
 

(2
0,

61
4,

79
5)

   
  

(1
3,

33
3)

   
   

 
(2

0,
62

8,
1

28
)

   
  

G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
 A

N
D

 T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

S
:

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
ta

xe
s,

 le
vi

e
d 

fo
r 

g
en

er
al

 p
ur

po
se

s
11

,2
90

,9
50

   
   

11
,2

90
,9

50
   

   
Lo

ca
l e

ar
ne

d 
in

co
m

e 
ta

xe
s 

le
vi

e
d

4,
24

9,
99

3
   

   
  

4,
24

9,
99

3
   

   
  

R
e

al
 e

st
a

te
 t

ra
ns

fe
r 

ta
x

47
1,

05
2

   
   

  
   

47
1,

05
2

   
   

   
  

O
th

er
 ta

xe
s 

le
vi

ed
, n

et
52

6,
21

7
   

   
  

   
52

6,
21

7
   

   
   

  
G

ra
n

ts
, e

nt
itl

em
e

nt
s,

 a
nd

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 n

ot
 r

es
tr

ic
te

d 
to

  s
pe

ci
fic

 p
ro

gr
am

s
5,

20
6,

52
2

   
   

  
5,

20
6,

52
2

   
   

  
In

ve
st

m
en

t e
ar

ni
n

gs
1,

05
1,

35
0

   
   

  
70

,8
20

   
   

  
1,

12
2,

17
0

   
   

  
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

in
co

m
e

12
,8

91
   

   
  

   
  

12
,8

91
   

   
   

   
 

G
ai

n 
on

 d
is

p
os

iti
on

 o
f c

a
pi

ta
l a

ss
et

s
19

,4
27

   
   

  
   

  
  

   
   

  
   

  
   

 
19

,4
27

   
   

   
   

 
T

ra
ns

fe
rs

(5
03

,1
65

)
   

   
  

  
50

3,
16

5
   

  
 

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

22
,3

25
,2

37
   

   
57

3,
98

5
   

  
 

22
,8

99
,2

22
   

  
 

1,
71

0,
44

2
   

   
  

56
0,

65
2

   
   

2,
27

1,
09

4
   

   
  

(3
55

,4
97

)
   

   
  

  
87

1,
69

8
   

  
 

51
6,

20
1

   
   

   
  

1,
35

4,
94

5
$ 

   
  

1,
43

2,
35

0
$

 
2,

78
7,

29
5

$ 
   

  

C
H

A
N

G
E

 IN
 N

E
T

 P
O

S
IT

IO
N

T
ot

al
 g

en
er

a
l r

e
ve

nu
es

 a
nd

 t
ra

n
sf

er
s

L
O

Y
A

L
S

O
C

K
 T

O
W

N
S

H
IP

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

-W
ID

E
S

T
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

 O
F

 A
C

T
IV

IT
IE

S
F

O
R

 T
H

E
 Y

E
A

R
 E

N
D

E
D

 J
U

N
E

 3
0

, 2
02

4
N

e
t (

E
xp

en
se

) 
R

e
ve

nu
e 

an
d

B
us

in
es

s-
T

yp
e

A
ct

iv
iti

es
G

ra
nt

s 
an

d
C

o
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

C
h

ar
ge

s 
fo

r

* 
 T

hi
s 

am
ou

nt
 e

xc
lu

d
es

 th
e 

de
pr

ec
ia

tio
n 

th
at

 is
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 t
he

 d
ire

ct
 e

xp
en

se
s 

of
 th

e 
fu

nc
tio

ns
 p

re
se

nt
ed

.

S
ee

 N
ot

es
 t

o 
th

e 
B

as
ic

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
e

nt
s

- 
7

 -

P
ro

gr
am

 R
ev

en
ue

s

T
ot

al
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l

A
ct

iv
iti

es

N
E

T
 P

O
S

IT
IO

N
, E

N
D

IN
G

N
E

T
 P

O
S

IT
IO

N
, B

E
G

IN
N

IN
G

C
h

an
ge

s 
in

 N
e

t P
os

iti
on

E
xp

en
se

s

O
pe

ra
tin

g 

S
er

vi
ce

s



ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 7,189,282$      3,723,278$ 10,912,560$  
Investments 4,784,812        4,784,812      
Taxes receivable, net 323,623           323,623         
Due from other funds 102,029           102,029         
Due from other governments 1,352,887        1,352,887      
Other receivables 133,267           133,267         
Lease receivable 404,334             404,334         

TOTAL ASSETS 14,290,234$    3,723,278$   $            18,013,512$  

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND
BALANCES:
LIABILITIES:
Due to other funds 81,467$           81,467$         
Due to other governments 359,913           359,913         
Accounts payable 132,272           77,111$      209,383         
Accrued salaries and benefits 2,895,967        2,895,967      
Payroll deductions and withholdings 107,798           107,798         
Unearned revenue 52,486             52,486           
Other current liabilities 8,168                 8,168             

Total liabilities 3,638,071        77,111                    3,715,182      

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Leases 385,363           385,363         
Promised donation 138,500           138,500         
Unavailable revenue - delinquent 
    property taxes 268,603                                      268,603         

Total deferred inflows of resources 792,466                                      792,466         

FUND BALANCES:
Restricted, by law or regulation 3,646,167   3,646,167      
Committed, for pension and other 
    postemployment benefits 2,995,000        2,995,000      
Assigned, for technology purchases 933,747           933,747         
Unassigned 5,930,950          5,930,950      

Total fund balances 9,859,697        3,646,167    13,505,864    

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES 14,290,234$    3,723,278$   $            18,013,512$  

LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Total
General Service Governmental

DebtCapital

FundsFund FundFund

JUNE 30, 2024

Projects

See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
- 8 -



TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES 13,505,864$  

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds balance sheet.  
These assets consist of:
Land 1,124,408      
Buildings, building improvements and land improvements 61,136,737    
Furniture and equipment 13,920,227    
Intangible right to use lease - furniture and equipment 248,138         
Construction in progress 95,100           
Accumulated depreciation (35,119,522)   

Deferred losses on refunding bonds are not current financial resources, and
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds balance sheet. 14,312           

Noncurrent liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore
are not reported in the governmental funds balance sheet. 
These liabilities consist of:
Accrued interest payable (103,609)        
Leases (129,110)        
Financed purchase obligations (667,577)        
Bonds payable in future years, net (23,961,566)   
Accumulated compensated absences (304,009)        
Total other postemployment benefit liability (2,197,786)     
Net pension liability (31,479,192)   

Deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to other postemployment 
benefits and pensions are not current financial resources, and therefore are not 
reported in the governmental funds balance sheet.
These deferrals consist of:
Other postemployment benefits (599,753)        
Pensions 5,465,180      

Some of the District’s revenues will be collected after year end but are not
available soon enough to pay for the current period’s expenditures, and therefore,
are deferred in the governmental funds balance sheet. 407,103         

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 1,354,945$    

JUNE 30, 2024

LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES

TO NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
- 9 -



REVENUES:
Local sources 17,913,741$ 272,688$       18,186,429$ 
State sources 9,487,471     9,487,471     
Federal sources 1,129,780       1,129,780     

Total revenues 28,530,992   272,688                            28,803,680   

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
    Instruction 16,381,131   19,126          16,400,257   
    Support services 8,271,729     1,051,998                         9,323,727     
    Noninstructional services 866,053                             866,053        
Capital outlay 387,924        2,575,440     2,963,364     
Debt service (principal and interest) 353,150         3,022,151$  3,375,301     

Total expenditures 26,259,987   3,646,564     3,022,151    32,928,702   

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 2,271,005     (3,373,876)    (3,022,151)  (4,125,022)    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Sale of capital assets 23,970          23,970          
Interfund transfers in 500,000 3,022,151 3,522,151
Interfund transfers out (3,522,151)    (503,165)       (4,025,316)    
Proceeds from extended term financing 771,581          771,581        
Refund prior year revenue (18,622)           (18,622)         

Total other financing sources (uses) (2,745,222)    (3,165)           3,022,151    273,764        

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING
USES (474,217)       (3,377,041)    (3,851,258)    

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 10,333,914   7,023,208                     17,357,122   

FUND BALANCES, ENDING 9,859,697$   3,646,167$     $                13,505,864$ 

LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Total
Governmental

Funds

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

General Fund

Debt
Service
Fund

Capital
Projects

Fund

See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
- 10 -



NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (3,851,258)$ 

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures.  However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives and reported as depreciation expense.  This is the amount by which capital outlays
exceeded depreciation expense, net of deletions, in the current period. 2,770,046    

Because some property taxes will not be collected for several months after the District's
fiscal year end, they are not considered as “available” revenues in the governmental funds. 76,821         

Because promised future donations will be collected in subsequent periods, they are not
considered as “available” revenues in the governmental funds. 138,500       

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental
funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current 
financial resources of governmental funds.  Neither transaction, however, has any effect
on net position.  Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums,
discounts and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas the amounts are deferred
and amortized in the statement of activities.  This amount is the net effect of these
differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items. 2,405,166    

Repayment of lease and financed purchase obligations principal is an expenditure in the  
governmental funds; however, leases and notes payable entered into during the year increase 
long-term liabilities and the repayment reduces long-term liabilities  in the statement of net position. (436,634)      

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses are measured by the amounts
earned during the year.  In the governmental funds, however, expenditures for these
items are measured by the amount of the financial resources used (essentially, the
amounts actually paid).
These expenses consist of:
Compensated absences and special termination benefits 6,430           
Other postemployment benefit related costs 72,019         
Pension related costs 517,674       

Interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported
in the governmental funds because interest is recognized as an expenditure in the funds
when it is due, and thus requires the use of current financial resources.  In the statement
of activities, however, interest expense is recognized as the interest accrues, regardless
of when it is due. 11,678         

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 1,710,442$  

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT

OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
- 11 -



ASSETS:
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,284,382$  
Due from other funds 79,342         
Due from other governments 39,257         
Inventories 7,604           

Total current assets 1,410,585    

NONCURRENT ASSETS,
Capital assets, net 937,835       

TOTAL ASSETS 2,348,420$  

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Other postemployment benefits - premium assistance program 7,000$         
Pensions 169,848       

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 176,848$     

LIABILITIES:
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 3,346$         
Accrued salaries and benefits 3,036           
Due to other funds 92,808         
Unearned revenue 12,502         

Total current liabilities 111,692       

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accumulated compensated absences, net 17,644         
Net other post employment benefit liability - premium assistance program 36,876         
Net pension liability 906,808       

Total noncurrent liabilities 961,328       

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,073,020$  

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Other postemployment benefits - premium assistance program 7,481$         
Pensions 12,417         

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 19,898$       

NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets 937,835$     
Unrestricted 494,515       

TOTAL NET POSITION 1,432,350$  

Food 
Service Fund

LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND
JUNE 30, 2024

See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
- 12 -



OPERATING REVENUES,
Food service revenue 183,434$      

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries 410,786        
Employee benefits 179,516        
Purchased property services 6,817            
Other purchased services 2,076            
Supplies 810,014        
Depreciation 54,338          
Dues and fees 2,241            

Total operating expenses 1,465,788     

OPERATING LOSS (1,282,354)   

NONOPERATING REVENUES:
Earnings on investments 70,820          
State sources 199,840        
Federal sources 1,069,181     

Total nonoperating revenues 1,339,841     

INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS 57,487          

TRANSFERS IN 503,165        

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 560,652        

NET POSITION, BEGINNING 871,698        

NET POSITION, ENDING 1,432,350$   

LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 

Food
Service Fund

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
PROPRIETARY FUND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
- 13 -



CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from users 176,570$      
Payments to suppliers for goods and services (689,664)       
Payments to employees (601,831)       
Payments for other operating expenditures (2,241)           

Net cash used by operating activities (1,117,166)    

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
State sources 198,563        
Federal sources 947,873        

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 1,146,436     

CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES,
Earnings on investments 70,820          

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 100,090        

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING 1,184,292     

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDING 1,284,382$   

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH USED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating loss (1,282,354)$  
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used by operating activities:
Depreciation 54,338          
Amortization 126,779        
Donated commodities 132,555        
Change in:
Due to/from other funds 3,256            
Inventories (4,844)           
Other postemployment benefits - premium assistance program deferred outflows of resources (3,151)           
Pension deferred outflows of resources (174,311)       
Accounts payable 1,167            
Accrued salaries and benefits 986               
Compensated absences 123               
Unearned revenue (6,499)           
Net other postemployment benefit liability - premium assistance program 280               
Net pension liability 22,960          
Other postemployment benefits - premium assistance program deferred inflows of resources 422               
Pension deferred inflows of resources 11,127          

Total adjustments 165,188        

NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (1,117,166)$  

NONCASH NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES,

NONCASH CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES,
Capital Projects Fund transferred $503,165 of equipment to Food Service Fund.

The District received $132,920 of food commodities.

Service Fund

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUND

Food

See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
- 14 -



ASSETS:
Cash 54,343$ 121,427$ 
Due from other funds 2,125       
Other receivable 196                        

TOTAL ASSETS 54,539$ 123,552$ 

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION:
LIABILITIES:
Due to other funds 9,221$     
Accounts payable               515          

Total liabilities               9,736       

NET POSITION:
Restricted for scholarships 54,539$ 
Restricted for student activities               113,816   

Total net position 54,539   113,816   

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 54,539$   123,552$ 

Trust Funds

LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Scholarship Custodial
JUNE 30, 2024

Funds

See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
- 15 -



ADDITIONS:
Gifts and contributions 13,075$ 
Investment income 92                          
Student activities receipts  107,641$  

Total additions 13,167   107,641    

DEDUCTIONS:
Scholarships awarded 19,132   
Student activities disbursements  116,053    

Total deductions 19,132   116,053    

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (5,965)    (8,412)      

NET POSITION, BEGINNING 60,504   122,228    

NET POSITION, ENDING 54,539$ 113,816$  

 

Custodial
Funds

Scholarship
Trust Funds

LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
- 16 -



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 17 - 

  1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 
 
 The financial statements of the Loyalsock Township School District (District) have 

been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental entities.  The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting 
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  The 
most significant of the District’s accounting policies are described below. 

 
 Reporting Entity 
 
 In evaluating how to define the District for financial reporting purposes, management 

has considered all potential component units.  The decision to include a potential 
component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in 
GAAP.  The criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity 
is the significance of their operational or financial relationship with the District.  Based 
upon the application of this criterion, the reporting entity will consist solely of the 
accounts and funds of the District. 

 
 Fund Accounting 
 
 The District uses funds to maintain its financial records during the fiscal year.  Fund 

accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial 
management by segregating transactions related to certain District functions or 
activities.  A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set 
of accounts.  The various funds of the District are grouped into the categories 
governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. 

 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

 
 These are the funds through which most governmental functions typically are financed.  

The funds included in this category are as follows: 
 
 General Fund 
 
 This fund is used to account for and report all financial resources not accounted for 

and reported in another fund.  The fund balance is available for any purpose provided 
it is expended or transferred according to the general laws of Pennsylvania. 

 
 Capital Projects Fund 
 
 This fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, 

committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or 
construction of capital facilities and other capital assets. 

 
 Debt Service Fund 
 
 This fund is used to account for resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned 

to expenditure for principal and interest. 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 18 - 

PROPRIETARY FUND 

 Enterprise Fund 
 
 This fund (food service fund) is used to account for operations that are financed and 

operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the 
governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods 
or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered 
primarily through user charges. 

 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

 
 Trust and Custodial Funds 
 
 These funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a trustee capacity or 

as a custodian for individuals.  These assets associated with the custodial funds are 
held for the benefit of student groups where the District does not have administrative or 
direct financial involvement with the assets and the assets are not derived from the 
District providing goods or services to the students. 

 
 Basis of Presentation and Accounting 
 
 Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
 The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about 

the District as a whole.  These statements include the financial activities of the District 
except for fiduciary funds.  The statements distinguish between those activities of the 
District that are governmental and those that are considered business-type activities. 

 
 The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources 

measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  This is the same approach 
used in the preparation of the proprietary fund financial statements but differs from the 
manner in which governmental fund financial statements are prepared.  Governmental 
fund financial statements therefore include a reconciliation with brief explanations to 
better identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the 
statements for governmental funds. Revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related 
cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are 
levied.  Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

 
 The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between direct 

expenses and program revenues for the business-type activity of the District and for 
each function or program of the District’s governmental activities.  Direct expenses are 
those that are specifically associated with a service, program or department and 
therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function.  Program revenues include 
charges paid by the recipient for the goods or services offered by the program and 
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular program.  Revenues, which are not classified as program 
revenues, are presented as general revenues of the District, with certain limited 
exceptions.  The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 19 - 

 extent to which each business segment or government function is self-financing or 
draws from the general revenues of the District. 

 
 As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the 

government-wide financial statements. 
 
 Fund Financial Statements 
 
 Fund financial statements report detailed information about the District.  The focus of 

governmental and proprietary fund financial statements is on major funds rather than 
reporting funds by type.  Each major fund is presented in a separate column.  
Nonmajor funds, if applicable, are aggregated and presented in a single column.  
Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type. 

 
 The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its 

measurement focus.  All governmental funds are accounted for using the current 
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.  
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current 
period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this 
purpose, the District considers delinquent real estate taxes and derived tax revenues 
to be available if they are collected within 60 days and 30 days of the end of the fiscal 
period, respectively.  Unearned revenues arise when a potential revenue does not 
meet both the “measurable” and “available” criteria for recognition in the current period.  
Unearned revenues also arise when resources are received by the District before it 
has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of 
qualifying expenditures.  In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria 
are met, or when the District has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for 
unearned revenue is removed from the balance sheet and revenue is recognized.  
Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the fund liability is 
incurred, if measurable, except expenditures for debt service, prepaid expenses, and 
other long-term obligations, which are recognized when paid.  The financial statements 
for governmental funds are a balance sheet, which generally includes only current 
assets and current liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, and a statement of 
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances, which reports on the sources 
(i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other 
financing uses) of current financial resources. 

 
 The proprietary fund is accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting and the 

flow of all economic resources (measurement focus).  This basis of accounting and 
measurement focus emphasizes the measurement of net income similar to the 
approach used by commercial enterprises, and revenues are recorded when earned 
and expenses are recorded when incurred.  With this measurement focus, all assets 
and liabilities associated with the operation of this fund are included on the statement 
of net position.  The statement of changes in net position presents increases (i.e., 
revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total position.  The statement of cash 
flows provides information about how the District finances and meets the cash flow 
needs of its proprietary activities. 

 
 Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating 

revenues and expenses which generally result from providing services and producing 
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principle ongoing 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 20 - 

 operations.  Operating expenses for the proprietary funds include the cost of personal 
and contracted services, supplies, utilities and depreciation on capital assets. All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating 
revenues and expenses. 

 
Fiduciary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and 
accrual basis of accounting. 

 
 Budgetary Procedures and Budgetary Accounting 
 
 An operating budget is adopted in each year for the general fund on the modified 

accrual basis of accounting. 
 
 At the fund level, actual expenses cannot exceed budgeted appropriations; however, 

with proper approval of the Board, budgetary transfers can be made.  The budgetary 
comparison schedule presented in this report reflects the final budget authorization, 
including all amendments and budgetary transfers. 

 
 The Pennsylvania School Code dictates specific procedures relative to adoption of the 

District’s budget and reporting of its financial statements, specifically: 
 

 The District, before levying annual school taxes, is required to prepare an 
operating budget for the succeeding fiscal year. 

 
 The District is required to publish notice by advertisement, at least once, in two 

newspapers of general circulation in the municipality in which it is located, and 
within fifteen days of final action, that the proposed budget has been prepared and 
is available for public inspection at the administrative office of the District. 

 
 The Board may make transfers of funds appropriated to any particular item of 

expenditure by legislative action.  An affirmative vote of two-thirds of all members 
of the Board is required. 

 
 Fund balances in budgetary funds may be appropriated based on resolutions 

passed by the Board, which authorized the District to make expenditures.  
Appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal period.  In order to preserve a portion of 
an appropriation for which an expenditure has been committed by a purchase order, 
contract or other form of commitment, an encumbrance is recorded.  Encumbrances 
outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balances. 

 
 Included in the general fund budget are program budgets as prescribed by the state 

and federal agencies funding the program. These budgets are approved on a 
program by program basis by the state or federal funding agency. 

 
 Capital budgets are not established for capital improvements and capital projects in 

the capital projects fund.  Additionally, all transactions of the capital projects fund 
are approved by the Board prior to commitment, thereby constructively achieving 
budgetary control. 

 
 The District does not adopt a formal budget for the proprietary fund and debt 

service fund. 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 21 - 

 Encumbrance Accounting 
 
 Encumbrances are not liabilities and, therefore, are not recorded as expenditures until 

receipt of material or service.  For budgetary purposes, appropriations lapse at fiscal 
year-end and outstanding encumbrances at year-end are reappropriated in the next 
year. As of June 30, 2024, the District had no outstanding encumbrances.  
Accordingly, no differences exist between actual results and the applicable budgetary 
data presented in the fund financial statements.  A reserve for encumbrances is not 
reported on the government-wide financial statements. 

 
 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
 Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, money market fund and liquid asset funds 

(Pennsylvania Local Government Investment Trust), carried at cost. 
 
 The District pools cash resources of its various funds to facilitate the management of 

cash.  Cash applicable to a particular fund is readily identifiable.  The balance in the 
pooled cash account is available to meet current operating requirements. 

 
 Investments 
 
 Investments held in governmental funds consist of certificates of deposit stated at cost 

which approximates fair value.  For purposes of determining realized gain or loss on 
sale, the cost of securities sold is determined by using the specific identification 
method.  The fair value of investments is estimated based on bid quotations received 
from securities dealers. 

 
 The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy 

established by GAAP.  The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure 
fair value of the asset.  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical 
assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are 
significant unobservable inputs (See Note 3). 

 
 Interfund Receivables and Payables 
 
 During the course of operations, transactions may occur between individual funds for 

goods provided or services rendered.  These receivables and payables are classified 
as “due from other funds” or “due to other funds” on the governmental funds balance 
sheet.  Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and 
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as 
“internal balances”. 

 
 Prepaid Expenses 
 
 Prepaid expenses represent payments made by the District in the current year to 

provide services occurring in the subsequent fiscal year. 
 
 Inventories 
 

Proprietary fund food inventories of $7,604 include $805 of food commodities donated 
by the federal government, which are valued at fair value.  All other food or supply 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 22 - 

inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or fair value and 
are expensed as consumed. 

 
 Transactions Between Funds 
 
 Legally authorized transfers are treated as interfund transfers and are included in the 

results of operations of both governmental and proprietary funds. 
 
 Taxes Receivable 
 
 Taxes receivable are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced 

by the estimated portion expected to be uncollectible.  Taxes which become payable 
during fiscal year 2024 and are uncollected as of June 30, 2024 are recorded as taxes 
receivable in the government-wide financial statements, net of amounts estimated to 
be uncollectible.  Management estimates the adequacy of the allowance for 
uncollectible taxes receivable based upon the historical experience in collecting these 
taxes.  There was no allowance for uncollectible taxes receivable as of June 30, 2024. 

 
 Capital Assets 
 
 Capital assets, which includes land and improvements, buildings and building 

improvements, furniture and equipment, including right-to-use assets, and construction 
in progress are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities 
columns in the government-wide financial statements and in the fund financial 
statements for proprietary funds.  Capital assets are valued at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available.  Donated assets are 
valued at their fair market value on the date donated.  The District defines capital 
assets as assets which have an original cost of $2,500 or more and an estimated 
useful life in excess of one year.  Repairs and maintenance are recorded as expenses.  
Renewals and betterments are capitalized. 

 
 Capital assets of the District are depreciated using the straight-line method over the 

following estimated useful lives: 
 
 Land improvements 20 years 

Buildings and building improvements 20-50 years 
Furniture and equipment (including right-to-use assets) 5-20 years 

 
 Long-Term Obligations 
 
 In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term 

obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities’ and 
business-type activities’ statement of net position.  Bonds payable are reported net of 
the applicable bond premium or discount.  Prepaid bond insurance is expensed over 
the life of the related debt.  Other bond issuance costs are expensed in the period 
incurred. 

 
 In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and 

discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period.  The face amount 
of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.  Issuance costs, whether or not 
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service 
expenditures. 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 23 - 

The District enters into financed purchase agreements for certain equipment.  These 
agreements transfer ownership of the underlying asset to the District by the end of the 
contract.  The District reports a financed purchase obligation and the underlying capital 
asset on its government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, where 
applicable.  In the governmental funds, the District recognizes proceeds from extended 
term financing and a capital outlay at the initiation of the agreement, and an outflow of 
resources as lease payments are made during the term of the agreement. 

 
 Leases 
 
 The District leases certain equipment from other entities and therefore is a leasee 

under the terms of these arrangements.  As a leasee, the District reports a lease 
liability and an intangible right-to-use asset (known as the lease asset) on its 
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, where applicable.  In the 
governmental fund financial statements, the District recognizes proceeds from 
extended term financing and a capital outlay at the initiation of the lease, and an 
outflow of resources as lease payments are made during the lease term. 

 
 The District leases real estate to another entity and therefore is a lessor under the 

terms of this arrangement.  As a lessor, the District reports a lease receivable and a 
deferred inflow of resources on its governmental fund and government-wide financial 
statements, where applicable.  As lease payments are received during the lease term, 
the District reduces the lease receivable, and recognizes interest revenue and an 
inflow of resources (rent revenue) in a systematic and rational manner.  Leases 
receivable are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by the 
estimated portion expected to be uncollectible.  Management estimates the adequacy 
of the allowance for uncollectible leases receivable based upon the historical 
experience in collecting lease payments.  No allowance was recorded at June 30, 
2024. 

 
 Bond Premium, Discount and Amortization 
 
 The premiums recognized upon the issuance of the 2017, 2020, 2021, and 2022 

bonds are being amortized utilizing the straight-line method, over the life of the bonds.  
The premium has been capitalized and included in bonds payable in the 
accompanying statement of net position.  The premium included in amortization 
expense included in the statement of activities amounted to $94,543 for the year 
ended June 30, 2024. 

 
 Loss on Refinancing and Amortization 
 
 The loss recognized on the refinancing of Series 2012A and 2014 bonds is being 

amortized utilizing the straight-line method over the life of the bonds.  The loss has 
been capitalized as a deferred outflow of resources in the accompanying statement of 
net position.  Amortization expense included in the statement of activities amounted to 
$39,376 for the year ended June 30, 2024. 

 
 Fund Equity 
 
 In the governmental fund financial statements, the fund balance amounts are classified 

based on the level of constraint placed upon funds, as follows: 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 24 - 

 Nonspendable - fund balance that cannot be spent because it is not in spendable 
form such as inventories, prepaids and long-term loans and notes receivable 
(unless the proceeds are restricted, committed, or assigned). 

 
 Restricted - fund balance includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific 
purposes stipulated by constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling 
legislation. 

 
 Committed - fund balance includes amounts that can be used only for the specific 
purposes determined by formal action of the Board of School Directors. 

 
 Assigned - fund balance includes amounts intended to be used by the government 
for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or 
committed.  The finance committee of the Board of School Directors has the 
authority to assign a fund balance. 

 
 Unassigned - fund balance is the residual classification for the government’s general 
fund and includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. 

 
 Unrestricted net position for proprietary funds represent the net position available for 

future distribution. 
 
 The District has formally adopted a minimum fund balance policy for the general fund.  

The policy states that if the unassigned general fund balance is below six percent of 
budgeted expenditures, the Board must use any available fund balance first to re- 
establish unassigned fund balance back to six percent of the budgeted expenditures 
for that fiscal year when any of these amounts are available for expenditure. 

 
 Fund Balance Flow Assumptions 
 

The District’s policy is to first apply restricted fund balance, then committed, assigned, 
and unassigned, respectively when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which 
amounts in any of these classifications could be used. 

 
 Net Position 
 
 In the government-wide financial statements, net position represents assets and 

deferred outflows of resources less liabilities and deferred inflows of resources.  Net 
investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings or deferred 
inflows of resources used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those 
assets and increased by any related deferred outflows of resources. 

 
 Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on its use 

either through the enabling legislation adopted by the District or through external 
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.  
When the District incurs an expense for which it may use either restricted or 
unrestricted net position, it uses restricted net position first unless unrestricted net 
position will have to be returned because it was not used. 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 25 - 

Pensions 
 
 For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and 

deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, pension expense, information about 
the fiduciary net position of the Public School Employees’ Retirement System (PSERS) 
and additions to/deductions from PSERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined 
on the same basis as they are reported by PSERS.  For this purpose, benefit 
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 

 
 Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 
 
 For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and 

deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about 
the fiduciary net position of PSERS and additions to/deductions from PSERS’s 
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by 
PSERS.  For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 

 
 Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources 
 
 In addition to assets, the statement of net position reports a separate section for 

deferred outflows of resources, as appropriate.  This separate financial statement 
element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that 
applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (i.e. 
expense) until that time. 

 
 In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and governmental funds balance 

sheet report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources, as appropriate.  This 
separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an 
acquisition of resources that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as 
an inflow of resources (i.e. revenue) until that time. 

 
 Net Position Flow Assumptions 
 
 Sometimes the District will fund outlays for a particular purpose with both restricted 

and unrestricted resources.  It is the District’s policy to consider restricted - net position 
to have been depleted before unrestricted - net position is applied. 

 
 Use of Estimates 
 
 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management 

to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and 
disclosures.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 
 Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
 
 The District’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, investments, 

taxes and other receivables, accounts payable and noncurrent liabilities.  The carrying 
value of these financial instruments approximates their fair values at June 30, 2024. 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 26 - 

Cash Flows 
 
 For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary fund considers all highly 

liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash 
equivalents. 

 
 Recent Accounting Standards to be Adopted 
 

 GASB issued the following pronouncements: 
 

 Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences, effective for fiscal years beginning 
after December 15, 2023. 

 Statement No. 102, Certain Risk Disclosures, effective for fiscal years beginning 
after June 15, 2024. 

 Statement No. 103, Financial Reporting Model Improvements, effective for fiscal 
years beginning after June 15, 2025. 

 Statement No. 104, Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets, effective for fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2025. 

 
 The District has not determined the effect on the financial statements due to adoption 

of these statements. 
 
  2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 
 
 Custodial Credit Risk 
 
 Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits 

may not be returned to it.  The District does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. 
 
 As of June 30, 2024, $5,349,078 of the District’s bank balance of $8,633,889 was 

exposed to custodial credit risk as follows: 
 
 Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution $5,349,078 
 
 Reconciliation to Financial Statements 
 
 Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution amount above $  5,349,078 
 Plus insured amount 3,284,811 
 Less outstanding checks         (69,171) 
 Carrying amount 8,564,718 
 Plus petty cash 169 
 Plus pooled cash equivalents in: 
 General Fund 1,927,697 
 Capital Projects Fund 3,723,277 
 Food Service Fund 1,191,663 
 Less nonnegotiable certificates of deposit considered investments by school code  (3,034,812) 
 
 Total cash and cash equivalents per financial statements $12,372,712 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 27 - 

  3. INVESTMENTS: 
 

State statutes authorize the District to invest in obligations of the U.S. treasury, 
agencies and instrumentalities of the U.S. government, deposits in savings accounts, 
certificates of deposit, the Pennsylvania Local Government Investment Trust (PLGIT), 
commercial paper, bankers’ acceptances, negotiable certificates of deposit, and 
insured bank deposit reciprocals as long as certain safeguards related to credit quality 
and maturity are met. 

 
 As of June 30, 2024, investments consist of the following: 
 

Description Maturities Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

PLGIT N/A $6,539,127 $6,539,127
Negotiable certificates of deposit 1-2 years 1,750,000 1,750,000
Government money market fund N/A 303,510 303,510  

Total $8,592,637 $ $8,592,637 $
 

PLGIT is a common law trust organized to provide Pennsylvania school districts with a 
convenient method of pooling their cash for temporary investment.  PLGIT functions 
similar to a money market fund, seeking to maintain a net asset value of $1 per share.  
Shares may be withdrawn at any time.  Portfolio securities are valued at amortized 
cost, which approximates fair value as of June 30, 2024.  PLGIT may invest in any 
securities authorized by Section 440.1 of the Pennsylvania School Code.  All 
investments in an external investment pool that is not SEC-registered are subject to 
oversight by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. 

 
Government money market fund consists of the Federated Hermes Government 
Obligations Tax-Managed Fund.  The fund is registered under the Investment 
Company Act of 1940 as an open-end management investment company.  The fund 
invests primarily in short-term U.S. Treasury and government agency securities, 
seeking to maintain a net asset value of $1 per share.  Shares may be withdrawn at 
any time. Portfolio securities are valued at amortized cost, which approximates fair 
value as of June 30, 2024. 

 
 Interest Rate Risk 
 
 The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities 

as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing 
interest rates. 

 
 Credit Risk 
 
 The District does not have a formal investment policy that would limit its investment 

choices to certain credit ratings.  As of June 30, 2024, the investments were rated as 
follows: 

 
Description Standard & Poor’s

  

PLGIT AAA

Government money market fund AAA

Certificates of deposit Not applicable



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 28 - 

 Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
 The District places no limit on the amount the District may invest in any one issuer.  

The District has no investments subject to concentration of credit risk. 
 
 Custodial Credit Risk 
 
 For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 

counterparty, the District will not be able to recover the value of its investments or 
collateral security that are in the possession of an outside party.  The District has no 
investments subject to custodial credit risk. 

 
 Reconciliation to Financial Statements 
 
 Total investments above $  8,592,637 
 Less deposit in investments pool considered cash equivalents (6,842,637) 
 Plus certificates of deposit considered investments by school code     3,034,812 
 
 Total investments per financial statements $  4,784,812 
 
  4. REAL ESTATE TAXES: 
 
 The tax on real estate, as levied by the School Board, was 15.35 mills ($15.35 per 

$1,000 of assessed valuation) for fiscal year 2024.  The original assessed value at July 
1, 2023, upon which the 2024 levy was based, was $770,514,420.  Assessed 
valuations of property are determined by Lycoming County and the elected tax 
collectors are responsible for collection.  The schedule for real estate taxes levied for 
each fiscal year is as follows: 

 
 July 1 Levy Date 
 July 1 - August 31 2% Discount Period 
 September 1 - October 31 Face Payment Period 
 November 1 - December 31 10% Penalty Period 
 January 1 Lien Date 
 
 Current tax collections for the year ended June 30, 2024 were 97.14% of the tax levy.  

Estimated collectible delinquent real estate taxes at June 30, 2024 amounted to 
$323,623. 

 
 Tax Abatement Program 
 
 The District provides a property tax abatement program, Clean and Green, to eligible 

taxpayers.  Clean and Green is a preferential tax assessment program that bases 
property taxes on use values rather than fair market values.  This ordinarily results in a 
tax savings for landowners.  The Pennsylvania General Assembly enacted the 
program in 1974 as a tool to encourage the protection of the Commonwealth’s 
valuable farmland, forest and open spaces.  A property must be ten acres in size and 
in agricultural use/agricultural reserve.  Agricultural use applications may be less than 
10 acres in size if the property is capable of generating at lease $2,000 annually in 
farm income.  The total amount of taxes abated under the Clean and Green program 
during the year ended June 30, 2024 amounted to approximately $68,000. 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 29 - 

  5. INTERFUND BALANCES: 
 
 As of June 30, 2024, interfund receivables and payables that resulted from various 

interfund transactions were as follows: 
 

Due from Due to
 Other Funds Other Funds
 
General Fund $102,029 $ 81,467
Food Service Fund 79,342 92,808
Custodial Funds 2,125 9,221
 
Total $183,496 $183,496

 
  6. DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS: 
 
 Amounts due from other governments represent receivables for revenues earned by 

the District or collections made by another governmental unit on behalf of the District.  
At June 30, 2024, the following amounts are due from other governments: 

 
 General Proprietary
 Fund Fund Total
  
Federal $     10,164 $34,463 $     44,627
State 770,181 4,794 774,975
Local      572,542 572,542
  
Total $1,352,887 $39,257 $1,392,144

 
  7. LEASE RECEIVABLE: 
 
 A summary of lease receivable is as follows: 
 

 Lease 
 Lease Lease Interest
Lease Receivable Revenue Revenue 
   
Land $404,334 $16,755 $13,671
   
Less amounts due in one year  7,480  
   
Noncurrent portion of lease receivable $396,854  

 
 The District leases land for a cellular tower to another entity with lease terms from July 

2022 to March 2047 at an interest rate of 3.35%.  The District uses U.S. Treasury
 Securities - Constant Maturities rates, as published by the Board of Governors of the 
Federal Reserve System, to determine the present value of lease payments at lease 
commencement.  There are no significant variable rent payments, residual value 
guarantees, or termination penalties.  The lease includes four renewal options for 5 
years each which the District has determined the lessee is reasonably certain to 
exercise, and have been included in the measurement of the lease receivable. 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 30 - 

  8. CAPITAL ASSETS: 
 
 A summary of changes in capital assets is as follows: 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2023 Additions Deletions June 30, 2024

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 1,124,408  $ 1,124,408 
Construction in progress 11,741,495 $ 3,071,730 $(14,718,125) 95,100 
 
Total capital assets, not being 
 depreciated 12,865,903 3,071,730 (14,718,125) 1,219,508 

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements 2,707,662 16,300 2,723,962
Buildings and building improvements 44,056,063 14,356,712 58,412,775 
Furniture and equipment 11,973,301 2,136,982  (190,056) 13,920,227 
Intangible right to use lease - furniture
 and equipment 248,138  248,138 
 
Total capital assets, being depreciated 58,985,164 16,509,994  (190,056) 75,305,102 
 
Less accumulated depreciation and 
 amortization: 
Land improvements (1,428,842) (125,521) (1,554,363) 
Buildings and building improvements (21,217,708) (1,345,560)  (22,563,268) 
Furniture and equipment (10,503,468) (551,469) 185,512 (10,869,425) 
Intangible right to use lease - furniture
 and equipment (66,007) (66,459)  (132,466) 
 
Total accumulated depreciation and 
 amortization (33,216,025) (2,089,009) 185,512 (35,119,522) 
 
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net  25,769,139 14,420,985 (4,544) 40,185,580 
 
Governmental activities capital assets, net $38,635,042 $17,492,715 $(14,722,669) $ 41,405,088 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Deposits on equipment $ 85,051 $ (6,608) $ 78,443 
 
Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Furniture and equipment 1,199,611 509,774 1,709,385 
Accumulated depreciation (795,655) (54,338)  (849,993) 
 
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 403,956 455,436  859,392 
 
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 489,007 $ 448,828 $  $ 937,835 

 
 Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows: 
 
 Instruction $   303,568 
 Instructional student support services 158,580 
 Administrative and financial support services 7,903 
 Operation and maintenance of plant services 1,541,683 
 Pupil transportation 77,153 
 Depreciation, unallocated             122 
 
 Total $2,089,009 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 31 - 

  9. COMPENSATED ABSENCES: 
 

District employees who are required to work on a twelve-month schedule are credited 
with vacation at rates which vary with length of service or job classification.  Vacation 
may be taken or accumulated within certain limits and is paid prior to retirement or 
termination at the employee’s current rate of pay.  Most District employees are credited 
with twelve sick days and three personal leave days annually. However, the 
accumulation of personal days is not compensated upon termination or retirement.  At 
the time of retirement, eligible Act 93 support personnel, education professionals, and 
education support professionals are entitled to benefits at varying rates based on 
unused sick leave.  In estimating the sick leave liability, the District determined 
employees who currently are eligible to receive benefits as well as other employees 
who are expected to become eligible in the future to receive such payments.  At June 
30, 2024, the estimated liability for accumulated compensated absences was 
$321,653. 

 
10. NONCURRENT LIABILITIES: 
 
 The following is a summary of changes in governmental and business-type activities 

noncurrent liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2024: 
 

   Amount
 Balance   Balance Due in
 July 1,2023 Additions Retirements Amortization June 30, 2024 One Year 

 
Governmental 
 Activities,
General obligation 
 bonds payable $25,915,000 $2,350,000 $23,565,000 $2,000,000
Plus net deferred 
 bond premium
 (discount) 491,109 $94,543  396,566
 
Total 26,406,109 2,350,000  94,543  23,961,566 2,000,000

Lease liability 183,574 54,464 129,110 58,153
Financed purchase
obligations 176,479 $ 771,581 280,483  667,577 88,892
Compensated 
 absences 310,439 63,656 70,086  304,009
Total OPEB liability 874,318 43,343  917,661
Net OPEB liability 1,270,405 9,720   1,280,125
Net pension liability 30,682,152 797,040    31,479,192
 
Total $59,903,476 $1,685,340 $2,755,033 $94,543 $58,739,240 $2,147,045
  
Business-Type  

Activities,  
Compensated   
 absences  $ 17,521 $ 1,383 $ 1,260  $ 17,644
Net OPEB liability  36,596               280   36,876
Net pension liability  883,848 22,960     906,808
   
Total  $ 937,965 $ 24,623 $ 1,260  $  $ 961,328 $ 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 32 - 

 General obligation bonds payable at June 30, 2024 are comprised of the following: 
 
 Series of 2020, due in varying installments through May 2027, with 

interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 3.0% per annum. $  4,795,000 
 
 Series of 2021, due in varying installments through May 2036, with 

interest rates at 2.0% per annum.   9,780,000 
 
 Series of 2022, due in varying installments through May 2038, with 

interest rates ranging from 2.05% to 3.375% per annum.     8,990,000 

 Total 23,565,000 
 
 Less amount due in one year   2,000,000 
 
 Plus deferred bond premium, net        396,566 
 
 Noncurrent portion of general obligation bonds payable $21,961,566 
 
 The annual requirements to amortize general obligation bonds payable at June 30, 

2024 are as follows: 
 

 Principal Interest Total
  
2025 $  2,000,000 $   625,049 $  2,625,049
2026 2,055,000  565,146 2,620,146
2027 1,420,000 503,594 1,923,594
2028 1,460,000 462,944 1,922,944
2029 1,495,000 428,944 1,923,944
2030-2034 8,005,000 1,605,119 9,610,119
2035-2039     7,130,000 560,337     7,690,337
  
Total $23,565,000 $4,751,133 $28,316,133

 Financed purchase obligations at June 30, 2024 is comprised of financed purchases 
for computer equipment with interest rates ranging from 0.0% to 1.49% per annum. 
Equipment with a net book value of $758,721 is pledged as collateral. The annual 
requirements to amortize financed purchase obligations at June 30, 2024 are as 
follows: 

 
 Principal Interest Total
  
2025 $ 88,892 $1,325 $ 90,217
2026 192,895  192,895
2027 192,895  192,895
2028   192,895   192,895
  
Total $667,577 $1,325 $668,902



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 33 - 

 The District leases a copier and mail equipment under the terms of the leases.  The 
annual requirements to amortize lease liability at June 30, 2024 are as follows: 

 
 Principal Interest Total
  
2025 $  58,153 $  8,075 $  66,228
2026 53,456 3,575 57,031
2027 10,654 1,103 11,757
2028 6,847 185 7,032

Total $129,110 $12,938 $142,048

The interest rates on the leases range from 6.43% to 26.41% and are imputed based 
on the lessor’s implicit rate of return. 

 
 The total interest expense related to governmental activities for the year ended June 

30, 2024 amounted to $623,510. No interest expense was capitalized during the year 
ended June 30, 2024. 

 
11. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB): 
 
 Single Employer Defined Benefit OPEB Plan 
 
 Plan Description 
 
 The District’s OPEB include a single employer defined benefit plan that provides 

postretirement healthcare benefits.  The School Board has the authority to establish 
and amend benefit provisions.  No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the 
criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75.  The plan does not issue any 
financial report and is not included in the report of any public employee retirement 
system or any other entity. 

 
 Teachers and administrative retirees who retire with at least 35 years of public school 

service in Pennsylvania are eligible to receive benefits up to age 65.  Teachers and 
administrative employees who were members of PSERS prior to July 1, 2011, may 
also qualify by retiring with 30 years of public school service in Pennsylvania once they 
have attained the age of 60 or have attained the age of 62 with 1 year of public school 
service in Pennsylvania.  The employee also shall have completed 15 years of service 
with the District.  Retired professional employees who are ineligible under the above 
requirements and choose to participate in the medical plan must pay 100% of the 
composite rate cost of such coverage. 

 
 Benefits Provided 
 
 The plan provides post-retirement medical, prescription drug, dental, and vision 

benefits.  The cost of such benefits coverage for retirees and spouses is determined by 
the contract provisions at the time of retirement. 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 34 - 

 Employees Covered by the Benefit Terms 
 
 At July 1, 2023, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 
 

Active participants 186
Retired participants 11
 
Total 197

 Funding Policy 
 
 The contribution requirements of plan members and the District are established and 

may be amended by the Board of School Directors.  The plan is funded on a pay-as-
you-go basis, i.e. premiums are paid annually to fund the health care benefits provided 
to current retirees.  Retiree contribution rates and amounts vary depending on 
classification and years of service with the District. The District paid premiums of
approximately $14,000 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024.  The retiree 
contributions made by plan members were approximately $55,000 for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2024. 

 
 Total OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 

Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 
 
 At June 30, 2024, the District reported a total OPEB liability of $917,661.  The total 

OPEB liability was measured as of July 1, 2023, and determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of July 1, 2022. 

 
 The District’s change in its total OPEB liability for the year ended June 30, 2024 was 

as follows: 
 

 Total 
 OPEB 
 Liability 
 
Balance as of July 1, 2023 (based on measurement date of July 1, 2022) $874,318
 
Changes for the year: 
Service cost 53,537
Interest 36,405
Changes of assumptions 10,948
Benefit payments (57,547)
 
Net change 43,343 

Balance as of June 30, 2024 (based on measurement date of July 1, 2023) $ 917,661
 
 For the year ended June 30, 2024, the District recognized OPEB expense of $28,846 

in the government-wide statement of activities, governmental activities. 
 
 At June 30, 2024, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 

inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 35 - 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
 of Resources of Resources
  
Changes in assumptions $101,304 $370,735
Differences between expected and actual experience  380,371
Benefit payments subsequent to the measurement date     66,769 

Total $168,073 $751,106

 $66,769 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from 
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a 
reduction of the total OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2025.  Other amounts 
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

 
Year ended June 30:
2025 $  (61,096)
2026 (61,097)
2027 (61,095)
2028 (61,098)
2029 (66,509)
Thereafter (338,907)

 
 Actuarial Assumptions 
 
 The total OPEB liability at July 1, 2023 was determined by rolling forward the plan’s 

total OPEB liability at July 1, 2022 to July 1, 2023 using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

 
 Actuarial cost method - entry age normal 
 Discount rate - 4.13% - S&P municipal bond 20-year high grade rate index at July 1, 
2023. The discount rate changed from 4.06% to 4.13%. 

 Salary growth - 2.5% cost of living adjustment, plus 1.5% real wage growth; and for 
teachers and administrators a merit increase which varies by age from 2.75% to 0%. 

 Percent of eligible retirees electing coverage - 90% of those receiving and 50% of all 
other employees are assumed to elect health coverage. 

 Percent married at retirement - 10% of employees. 
 Healthcare cost trends - 6.5% in 2022, 6.0% in 2023, and 5.5% 2024 through 2025, 
gradually decreasing from 5.4% in 2026 to 3.9% in 2075 and later based on the 
Society of Actuaries Long-Run Medical Cost Trend Model. 

 Mortality rates-PubT-2010 headcount-weighted mortality table including rates for 
contingent survivors for teachers.  PubG-2010 headcount-weighted mortality table 
including rates for contingent survivors for all other employees.  Incorporated into 
the tables are rates projected generationally using Scale MP-2021 to reflect 
mortality improvements. 

 
 Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 
 
 The following presents the total OPEB liability for June 30, 2024, calculated using 

current healthcare cost trends as well as what the total OPEB liability would be if 
health cost trends were 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the 
current rate: 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 36 - 

 Current
 1% Trend 1%
 Decrease Rate Increase 
  
Total OPEB liability (in thousands) $828 $918 $1,025

 
Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

 
 The following presents the total OPEB liability, calculated using the discount rate of 

4.13%, as well as what the total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (3.13%) or 1-percentage point higher 
(5.13%) than the current rate: 

 
 Current
 1% Discount 1%
 Decrease Rate Increase 
 3.13% 4.13% 5.13% 
  
Total OPEB liability (in thousands) $980 $918 $859

 
 Multiple Employer Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit OPEB Plan 
 
 Health Insurance Premium Assistance Program 
 
 PSERS (System) provides Premium Assistance which, is a governmental cost sharing, 

multiple-employer OPEB plan for all eligible retirees who qualify and elect to 
participate. Employer contribution rates for premium assistance are established to 
provide reserves in the health insurance account that are sufficient for the payment of 
premium assistance benefits for each succeeding year. Effective January 1, 2002 
under the provisions of Act 9 of 2001, participating eligible retirees are entitled to 
receive premium assistance payments equal to the lesser of $100 per month or their 
out-of-pocket monthly health insurance premium. To receive premium assistance, 
eligible retirees must obtain their health insurance through either their school employer 
or the PSERS’ health options program (HOP).  As of June 30, 2023, there were no 
assumed future benefit increases to participating eligible retirees. 

 
 Premium Assistance Eligibility Criteria 
 
 Retirees of the System can participate in the Premium Assistance program if they 

satisfy the following criteria: 
 

 Have 24 ½ or more years of service, or 
 Are a disability retiree, or 
 Have 15 or more years of service and retired after reaching superannuation age. 

 
 For Class DC members to become eligible for premium assistance, they must satisfy 

the following criteria: 
 

 Attain Medicare eligibility with 24 ½ or more eligibility points, or 
 Have 15 or more eligibility points and terminated after age 67, and 
 Have received all or part of their distributions. 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 37 - 

 Pension Plan Description 
 
 PSERS is a governmental cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan 

that provides retirement benefits to public school employees of the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania. The members eligible to participate in the System include all full-time 
public school employees, part-time hourly public school employees who render at least 
500 hours of service in the school year, and part-time per diem public school 
employees who render at least 80 days of service in the school year in any of the 
reporting entities in Pennsylvania. PSERS issues a publicly available financial report 
that can be obtained at www.psers.pa.gov. 

 
 Benefits Provided 
 
 Participating eligible retirees are entitled to receive premium assistance payments 

equal to the lesser of $100 per month or their out-of-pocket monthly health insurance 
premium. To receive premium assistance, eligible retirees must obtain their health 
insurance through either their school employer or the PSERS’ Health Options 
Program.  

 
 Employer Contributions 
 

The school districts’ contractually required contribution rate for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2024 was 0.75% of covered payroll, actuarially determined as an amount 
that, when combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of 
benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance 
any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions to the OPEB plan from the District were 
$74,057 for the year ended June 30, 2024. 

 
 OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 

Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 
 
 At June 30, 2024, the District reported a liability of $1,317,001 for its proportionate 

share of the net OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 
2023, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was 
determined by rolling forward the System’s total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2022 to 
June 30, 2023. The District’s proportion of the net OPEB liability was calculated 
utilizing the employer’s one-year reported covered payroll as it relates to the total one-
year reported covered payroll. At June 30, 2024, the District’s proportion was 0.0728%, 
which was an increase of 0.0018% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2023. 

 
 For the year ended June 30, 2024, the District recognized OPEB expense in the 

government-wide statement of activities as follows: 
 
 Governmental activities $37,890 
 Business-type activities     1,091 
 
 Total $38,981 
 
 At June 30, 2024, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 

inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 38 - 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
 of Resources of Resources 
   
Difference between expected and actual 
 experience $  8,625 $  13,051 
Changes in assumptions 113,809 249,245 
Net difference between projected and actual
 investment earnings 2,969  
Changes in proportion 49,142 4,714 
Difference between employer contributions
 and proportionate share of total contributions 1,396       189 
Contributions subsequent to the measurement   

date 74,057
  
Total $249,998 $267,199 

 
 $74,057 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from 

District contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a 
reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2025.  Other amounts 
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

 
Year ended June 30:
2025 $(17,086)
2026 (20,719)
2027 (28,912)
2028 (33,437)
2029 3,512
Thereafter 5,384

 
 Actuarial Assumptions 
 
 The total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2023, was determined by rolling forward the 

System’s total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2022 to June 30, 2023 using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

 
 Actuarial cost method - entry age normal - level % of pay. 
 Investment return - 4.13% - S&P 20 Year Municipal Bond Rate; previously 4.09%. 
 Salary growth - Effective average of 4.50%, comprised of inflation of 2.50% and 
2.00% for real wage growth and for merit or seniority increases. 

 Premium assistance reimbursement is capped at $1,200 per year. 
 Assumed healthcare cost trends were applied to retirees with less than $1,200 in 
premium assistance per year. 

 Mortality rates were based on a blend of 50% PubT-2010 and 50% PubG-2010 
Retiree Tables for Males and Females, adjusted to reflect PSERS’ experience and 
projected using a modified version of the MP-2020 Improvement Scale. 

 Participation rate: 
 

• Eligible retirees will elect to participate pre age 65 at 50% 
• Eligible retirees will elect to participate post age 65 at 70% 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 39 - 

 The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 valuation were based on the 
results of an actuarial experience study that was performed for the five year period 
ending June 30, 2020. 

 
 The following assumptions were used to determine the contribution rate: 
 

 The results of the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021 determined the employer 
contribution rate for fiscal year 2023. 

 Cost method: Amount necessary to assure solvency of premium assistance through 
the third fiscal year after the valuation date. 

 Asset valuation method: market value. 
 Participation rate: The actual data for retirees benefiting under the plan as of June 
30, 2021 was used in lieu of the 63% utilization assumption for eligible retirees. 

 Mortality Tables for Males and Females, adjusted to reflect PSERS’ experience and 
projected using a modified version of the MP-2015 Mortality Improvement Scale. 

 
 Investments consist primarily of short term assets designed to protect the principal of 

the plan assets. The expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was 
determined using the OPEB asset allocation policy and best estimates of geometric 
real rates of return for each asset class. 

 
 The OPEB plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested plan assets is 

established and may be amended by the PSERS Board. Under the program, as 
defined in the retirement code employer contribution rates for premium assistance are 
established to provide reserves in the health insurance account that are sufficient for 
the payment of premium assistance benefits for each succeeding year. 
 
 

 
Long-Term

 Target Expected Real 
 Allocation Rate of Return 
Asset Class,  
Cash 100.0%  1.2%

 
 The above was the PSERS Board’s adopted asset allocation policy and best estimates 

of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class as of June 30, 2023. 
 
 Discount Rate 
 

 The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 4.13%. Under the 
plan’s funding policy, contributions are structured for short term funding of premium 
assistance. The funding policy sets contribution rates necessary to assure solvency of 
premium assistance through the third fiscal year after the actuarial valuation date. The 
premium assistance account is funded to establish reserves that are sufficient for the 
payment of premium assistance benefits for each succeeding year. Due to the short 
term funding policy, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was not projected to be 
sufficient to meet projected future benefit payments, therefore the plan is considered a 
“pay-as-you-go” plan. A discount rate of 4.13% which represents the S&P 20 year 
municipal bond rate at June 30, 2023, was applied to all projected benefit payments to 
measure the total OPEB liability. 

 
 Sensitivity of the System Net OPEB Liability to Change in Healthcare Cost Trend 

Rates 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 40 - 

 Healthcare cost trends were applied to retirees receiving less than $1,200 in annual 
premium assistance. As of June 30, 2023, retirees premium assistance benefits are 
not subject to future healthcare cost increases. The annual premium assistance 
reimbursement for qualifying retirees is capped at a maximum of $1,200. As of June 
30, 2023, 92,677 retirees were receiving the maximum amount allowed of $1,200 per 
year. As of June 30, 2023, 522 members were receiving less than the maximum 
amount allowed of $1,200 per year. The actual number of retirees receiving less than 
the $1,200 per year cap is a small percentage of the total population and has a 
minimal impact on healthcare cost trends as depicted below. 

 
 The following presents the System net OPEB liability for June 30, 2023, calculated 

using current healthcare cost trends as well as what the System net OPEB liability 
would be if health cost trends were 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point 
higher than the current rate: 

 
 Current
 1% Trend 1%
 Decrease  Rate Increase
 
District’s proportionate share of the
 net OPEB liability (in thousands) $1,317 $1,317 $1,317

 
 Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in 

the Discount Rate 
 
 The following presents the net OPEB liability, calculated using the discount rate of 

4.13%, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (3.13%) or 1-percentage point higher 
(5.13%) than the current rate: 

 
 Current

1% Discount 1%
 Decrease  Rate Increase
 3.13% 4.13% 5.13% 
 
District’s proportionate share of the
 net OPEB liability (in thousands) $1,489 $1,317 $1,173

 
 OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
 Detailed information about PSERS’ fiduciary net position is available in PSERS annual 

comprehensive financial report which can be found on the System’s website at 
www.psers.pa.gov.

 
 Payables to the OPEB Plan 
 
 At June 30, 2024, the District had an accrued balance due to PSERS, including 

contributions related to OPEB of $20,238.  This amount represents the District’s 
contractually obligated contributions for wages earned in April 2024 through June 
2024. The balance was paid in September 2024. 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 41 - 

12. PENSION BENEFITS: 
 
 Plan Description 
 

 PSERS (System) is a governmental cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit 
pension plan that provides retirement benefits to public school employees of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.  The members eligible to participate in the System 
include all full-time public school employees, part-time hourly public school employees 
who render at least 500 hours of service in the school year, and part-time per diem 
public school employees who render at least 80 days of service in the school year in 
any of the reporting entities in Pennsylvania.  PSERS issues a publicly available 
financial report that can be obtained at www.psers.pa.gov. 

 
 Benefits Provided 
 
 PSERS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits.  Members are eligible for 

monthly retirement benefits upon reaching (a) age 62 with at least 1 year of credited 
service; (b) age 60 with 30 or more years of credited service; or (c) 35 or more years of 
service regardless of age.  Act 120 of 2010 (Act 120) preserves the benefits of existing 
members and introduced benefit reductions for individuals who become new members 
on or after July 1, 2011.  Act 120 created two new membership classes, Membership 
Class T-E (Class T-E) and Membership Class T-F (Class T-F).  To qualify for normal 
retirement, Class T-E and Class T-F members must work until age 65 with a minimum 
of 3 years of service or attain a total combination of age and service that is equal to or 
greater than 92 with a minimum of 35 years of service. 

 
 Act 5 of 2017 (Act 5) introduced a hybrid benefit with two membership classes and a 

separate defined contribution plan for individuals who become new members on or 
after July 1, 2019. Act 5 created two new hybrid membership classes, Membership 
Class T-G (Class T-G) and Membership Class T-H (Class T-H) and the separate 
defined contribution membership class, Membership Class DC (Class DC). To qualify 
for normal retirement, Class T-G and Class T-H members must work until age 67 with 
a minimum of 3 years of credited service. Class T-G may also qualify for normal 
retirement by attaining a total combination of age and service that is equal to or greater 
than 97 with a minimum of 35 years of credited service. 

 
 Benefits are generally between to 1% to 2.5%, depending upon membership class, of 

the member’s final average salary(as defined in the Code) multiplied by the number of 
years of credited service.  For members whose membership started prior to July 1, 
2011, after completion of five years of service, a member’s right to the defined benefits 
is vested and early retirement benefits may be elected.  For Class T-E and Class T-F 
members, the right to benefits is vested after ten years of service. 

 
 Participants are eligible for disability retirement benefits after completion of five years 

of credited service.  Such benefits are generally equal to 2% or 2.5%, depending upon 
membership class, of the member’s final average salary (as defined in the Code) 
multiplied by the number of years of credited service, but not less than one-third of 
such salary nor greater than the benefit the member would have had at normal 
retirement age.  Members over normal retirement age may apply for disability benefits. 

 
 Death benefits are payable upon the death of an active member who has reached age 

62 with at least one year of credited service (age 65 with at least three years 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 42 - 

 of credited service for Class T-E and Class T-F members) or who has at least five 
years of credited service (ten years for Class T-E and Class T-F members).  Such 
benefits are actuarially equivalent to the benefit that would have been effective if the 
member had retired on the day before death. 

 
 Member Contributions 
 
 The contribution rates based on qualified compensation for virtually all members are 

presented below: 
 

Member Contribution Rates
 Continuous Defined Benefit Defined Total
Membership Employment Contribution Contribution Contribution

Class Since Rate Rate Rate 
  
T-C Prior to July 22, 1983 5.25% Not applicable 5.25%
  6.25%
T-C On or after July 22, 1983 6.25% Not applicable 6.25%
T-D Prior to July 22, 1983 6.50% Not applicable 6.50%
T-D On or after July 22, 1983 7.50% Not applicable 7.50%
T-E On or after July 1, 2011 7.50% base rate with 

shared risk provision 
Not applicable Prior to 7/1/21: 

7.50% 
After 7/1/21: 

8.00%
T-F On or after July 1, 2011 10.30% base rate with 

shared risk provision 
Not applicable Prior to 7/1/21: 

10.30% 
After 7/1/21: 

10.80%
T-G On or after July 1, 2019 5.50% base rate with 

shared risk provision 
2.75% Prior to 7/1/21: 

8.25% 
After 7/1/21: 

9.00%
T-H On or after July 1, 2019 4.50% base rate with 

shared risk provision 
3.00% Prior to 7/1/21: 

7.50% 
After 7/1/21: 

8.25%
DC On or after July 1, 2019 Not applicable 7.50% 7.50%

 

 
 Employer Contributions 
 
 The school districts’ contractually required contribution rate for fiscal year ended June 

30, 2024 was 33.09%* of covered payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that, 
when combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of 
benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance 
any unfunded accrued liability.  Contributions to the pension plan from the District were 
$3,860,221 for the year ended June 30, 2024. 

Shared Risk Program Summary 
Membership Defined Benefit Shared Risk

Class Base Rate Increment Minimum Maximum 
   
T-E   7.50% +/- 0.50% 5.50%   9.50%
T-F 10.30% +/- 0.50% 8.30% 12.30%
T-G   5.50% +/- 0.75% 2.50%   8.50%
T-H   4.50% +/- 0.75% 1.50%   7.50%



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 43 - 

* This includes the defined contribution rate of 0.27% which is an estimated rate. 
 

 Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

 
 At June 30, 2024, the District reported a liability of $32,386,000 for its proportionate 

share of the net pension liability in the government-wide statement of net position.  The
net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total pension liability 
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by rolling forward the 
System’s total pension liability as of June 30, 2022 to June 30, 2023.  The District’s 
proportion of the net pension liability was calculated utilizing the employer’s one-year 
reported contributions as it relates to the total one-year reported contributions.  At June 
30, 2024, the District’s proportion was 0.0728%, which was an increase of 0.0018% 
from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2023. 

 
 For the year ended June 30, 2024, the District recognized pension expense in the 

government-wide statement of activities as follows: 
 
 Governmental activities $3,234,462 
 Business-type activities        93,174 
 
 Total $3,327,636 
 
 At June 30, 2024, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 

inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

 Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
 of Resources of Resources 
 
Difference between expected and actual 
 experience $ 7,339 $443,423
Changes in assumptions 483,243
Net difference between projected and actual 
 investment earnings 916,417 
Changes in proportion 751,250
Difference between employer contributions and
 proportionate share of total contributions 47,564
Contributions subsequent to the measurement
date 3,860,221  
 
Total $6,066,034 $443,423

 
 $3,860,221 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting 

from District contributions subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as 
a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2025.  Other 
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

 
Year ended June 30:
2025 $ 672,882
2026 (398,284)
2027 1,182,031
2028 305,761



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 44 - 

 Changes in Actuarial Assumptions  
 
 The total pension liability as of June 30, 2023 was determined by rolling forward the 

System’s total pension liability as of June 30, 2022 to June 30, 2023 using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

 
 Valuation date - June 30, 2022 
 Actuarial cost method - entry age normal - level % of pay 
 Investment return - 7.00%, includes inflation at 2.50%; previously 7.00% and 

2.75%, respectively. 
 Salary growth - effective average of 4.50%, comprised of inflation at 2.50% and 

2.00% for real wage growth and for merit or seniority increases. 
 Mortality rates were based on a blend of 50% PubT-2010 and 50% PubG-2010 

Retiree Tables for Males and Females, adjusted to reflect PSERS’ experience and 
projected using a modified version of the MP-2020 Improvement Scale. 

 Discount rate -7.00% as of June 30, 2022 and as of June 30, 2023. 
 

 Demographic and economic assumptions approved by the Board for use effective 
with the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation: 
 
 Salary growth rate - decreased from 5.00% to 4.50%. 

 
 Real wage growth and merit or seniority increases (components for salary 

growth) - decreased from 2.75% and 2.25% to 2.50% and 2.00%, respectively. 
 

 Mortality rates - Previously based on the RP-2014 Mortality Tables for Males 
and Females adjusted to reflect PSERS’ experience and projected using a 
modified version of the MP-2015 Mortality Improvement Scale.  Effective with 
the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation, mortality rates are based on a blend of 
50% PubT-2010 and 50% PubG-2010 Retiree Tables for Males and Females, 
adjusted to reflect PSERS’ experience and projected using a modified version 
of the MP-2020 Improvement Scale. 

 
 The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2023 valuation were based on the 

results of an actuarial experience study that was performed for the five year period 
ending June 30, 2020. 

 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined 
using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real 
rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) 
are developed for each major asset class.  These ranges are combined to produce the 
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return 
by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. 

 
 The pension plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested plan assets is 

established and may be amended by the PSERS Board.  Plan assets are managed 
with a long-term objective of achieving and maintaining a fully funded status for the 
benefits provided through the pension. 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 45 - 

Long-Term
 Target Expected Real 
 Allocation Rate of Return 
Asset Class:
Global public equity 30.0% 5.2%
Private equity 12.0% 7.9%
Fixed income 33.0% 3.2%
Commodities 7.5% 2.7%
Infrastructure/MLPs 10.0% 5.4%
Real estate 11.0% 5.7%
Absolute return 4.0% 4.1%
Cash 3.0% 1.2%
Leverage (10.5%) 1.2%
  
Total 100.0%  

 
 The above was the PSERS Board’s adopted asset allocation policy and best estimates 

of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class as of June 30, 2023. 
 
 Discount Rate 
 
 The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%.  The 

projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that 
contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rate and that 
contributions from employers will be made at contractually required rates, actuarially 
determined.  Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position 
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current 
plan members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the 
total pension liability. 

 
 Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes 

in the Discount Rate 
 
 The following presents the net pension liability, calculated using the discount rate of 

7.00%, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.00%) or a 1-percentage-point higher 
(8.00%) than the current rate: 

 
 Current
 1% Discount 1%
 Decrease Rate Increase
 6.00% 7.00% 8.00% 
 
District’s proportionate share of the net pension  
liability (in thousands) $41,981 $32,386 $24,291

 
 Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
 Detailed information about PSERS’ fiduciary net position is available in PSERS annual 

comprehensive financial report which can be found on the System’s website at 
www.psers.pa.gov. 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 46 - 

 Payables to the Pension Plan 
 
 At June 30, 2024, the District had an accrued balance due to PSERS, including 

contributions related to pension of $1,054,905.  This amount represents the District’s 
contractually obligated contributions for wages earned in April 2024 through June 
2024.  The balance was paid in September 2024. 

 
13. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK: 
 
 The District provides education and related services to the residents of Loyalsock 

Township, Pennsylvania.  Its service area is located within the geographic boundaries 
of the District.  The District assesses taxpayers, within its service area, based upon 
taxing powers at its disposal.  The ability of each of the District’s taxpayers to honor 
their assessed obligations to the District is dependent upon economic and other factors 
affecting the taxpayers. 

 
14. CONTINGENCIES: 
 
 Grants 
 
 The District participates in both state and federally assisted grant programs.  These 

programs are subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their 
representatives.  The District is potentially liable for any expenditures which may be 
disallowed pursuant to the terms of these grant programs.  It is the opinion of 
management that requests for reimbursements, if any, by either state or federal
 governments based on subsequent audits will not be material in relation to the 
District’s financial statements as of June 30, 2024. 

 
 Litigation 
 
 The District is subject to claims arising out of its normal operations.  In the opinion of 

management, after review and consultation with counsel, any proceedings that may be 
assessed will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the District 
or results of its operations. 

 
 Risk Management 
 
 The District is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts, theft of, damage to 

and destruction of assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees and natural 
disasters.  It is the policy of the District to purchase commercial insurance for the risks 
of loss to which it is exposed, including workers’ compensation and employee health 
and accident insurance.  Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded 
commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three years. 

 
15. JOINT VENTURES: 
 
 The District and other surrounding educational institutions created a joint venture, the 

Lycoming County Insurance Consortium Pooled Trust (Trust).  The District self-insures 
through the Trust for certain health care benefits provided to current and former 
employees.  The Trust has purchased an excess policy which covers employee health 
benefit claims in excess of $375,000.  Claims are recognized as an expense when paid 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 47 - 

 (cash basis) which is not materially different from the accrual basis.  For the year ended 
June 30, 2024, the District made payments for health care benefit claims of 
approximately $2,773,000 to the Trust.  Audited financial statements of the Trust are 
available. 

 
 The District and other surrounding educational institutions created a jointly governed 

organization, the Lycoming Career and Technology Center (Center), to provide 
vocational and technical education for students of the participating school districts.  
The governing board of the Center is comprised of a director from each participating 
school district.  For the year ended June 30, 2024, the District paid approximately 
$255,000 to the Center.  Audited financial statements of the Center are available. 

 
16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS: 
 
 Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 4, 2025, which is the date the 

financial statements were available to be issued. 



REVENUES:
Local sources 17,051,000$ 17,051,000$ 17,913,741$ 
State sources 8,679,570     8,679,570     9,487,471     
Federal sources 944,395        944,395        1,129,780     

Total revenues 26,674,965   26,674,965   28,530,992   

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
    Instruction 15,382,840   15,382,840   16,381,131   
    Support services 7,785,125     7,785,125     8,271,729     
    Noninstructional services 756,211        756,211        866,053        
Capital outlay 387,924        
Debt service (principal and interest) 45,000          45,000          353,150        

Total expenditures 23,969,176   23,969,176   26,259,987   

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 2,705,789     2,705,789     2,271,005     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Sale of capital assets 23,970          
Interfund transfers out (3,036,393)    (3,036,393)    (3,522,151)    
Proceeds from extended term financing 771,581        
Refund prior year revenue                                           (18,622)         

Total other financing uses, net (3,036,393)    (3,036,393)    (2,745,222)    

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES UNDER
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES (330,604)       (330,604)       (474,217)       

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 7,842,689     7,842,689     10,333,914   

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 7,512,085$   7,512,085$   9,859,697$   

LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND

Budgetary
Basis

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Original Final
          Budgeted Amounts      

Actual

See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
- 48 -



T
O

T
A

L
 O

P
E

B
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

Y
:

S
e

rv
ic

e
 c

os
t

54
$

   
  

  
  

8
3

$
   

  
  

  
8

4
$

   
  

  
1

2
4

$
   

  
12

5
$

   
  

8
3

$
   

  
  

8
0

$
   

  
  

 
In

te
re

st
36

  
   

  
  

  
2

7
  

   
  

  
  

2
2

  
   

  
  

6
6

  
   

  
  

5
7

  
   

  
  

4
2

  
   

  
  

3
1

  
   

  
  

 
C

h
a

ng
e

s 
o

f 
be

n
e

fit
 t

e
rm

s
  

  
   

  
  

   
 

1
3

7
  

   
  

  
(6

9
7)

  
   

 
69

9
  

   
  

D
iff

e
re

n
ce

 b
e

tw
ee

n
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

a
n

d 
a

ct
u

a
l e

xp
e

ri
en

ce
  

  
   

  
  

   
 

(2
0

9)
  

   
  

(2
49

)
  

   
 

(4
2

)
  

   
  

C
h

a
ng

e
s 

o
f 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

11
  

   
  

  
  

(2
5

2)
  

   
  

(3
2

)
  

   
  

 
97

  
   

  
  

(5
1

)
  

   
  

(1
82

)
  

   
6

0
  

   
  

  
 

B
e

ne
fit

 p
a

ym
e

nt
s

(5
8

)
  

   
  

  
(6

9)
  

   
  

  
(7

0)
  

   
  

 
(6

9
)

  
   

  
 

(7
3)

  
   

  
(6

1
)

  
   

  
(7

5)
  

   
  

  

N
E

T
 C

H
A

N
G

E
 IN

 T
O

T
A

L
 O

P
E

B
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

Y
43

  
   

  
  

  
(2

8
3)

  
   

  
4

  
   

  
  

  
(7

2
8)

  
   

 
5

8
  

   
  

  
5

3
9

  
   

  
9

6
  

   
  

  
 

T
O

T
A

L
 O

P
E

B
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

Y
, 

B
E

G
IN

N
IN

G
8

74
  

   
  

  
1,

1
5

7
  

   
 

1,
1

5
3

  
  

1
,8

8
1

  
  

1,
8

23
  

  
1

,2
84

  
  

1,
1

8
8

  
  

 

T
O

T
A

L
 O

P
E

B
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

Y
, 

E
N

D
IN

G
9

17
$

   
  

  
8

7
4

$
   

  
  

1
,1

5
7

$
  

1
,1

5
3

$
  

1,
8

81
$

  
1

,8
23

$
  

1,
2

8
4

$
  

 

C
O

V
E

R
E

D
-E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 P

A
Y

R
O

L
L

10
,4

44
$

  
1

0
,4

4
4

$
  

9
,3

28
$

  
9

,3
2

8
$

  
8,

7
14

$
  

8
,7

14
$

  
8,

2
5

4
$

  
 

T
O

T
A

L
 O

P
E

B
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

Y
 A

S
 A

 P
E

R
C

E
N

T
A

G
E

O
F

 C
O

V
E

R
E

D
-E

M
P

L
O

Y
E

E
 P

A
Y

R
O

L
L

8
.7

8%
8.

3
7

%
1

2.
4

0%
12

.3
6%

21
.5

9%
2

0.
9

2
%

1
5.

5
6%

N
o

te
s 

to
 S

ch
ed

u
le

:

D
is

co
u

n
t 

ra
te

 u
se

d
 in

 t
h

e
 m

e
a

su
re

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l O

P
E

B
 li

a
b

ili
ty

4
.1

3
%

4
.0

6
%

2
.2

8
%

1
.8

6
%

3
.3

6
%

2
.9

8
%

3
.1

3
%

  
 is

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
, 

th
e

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
is

 p
re

se
n

tin
g

 in
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 f
or

 t
h

os
e

 y
e

ar
s 

on
ly

 f
o

r 
w

h
ic

h
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 is

 a
va

ila
b

le
.

* 
T

h
is

 s
ch

ed
u

le
 is

 in
te

n
d

e
d 

to
 il

lu
st

ra
te

 t
h

e 
re

qu
ir

e
m

en
t 

to
 s

h
ow

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
1

0 
ye

a
rs

. 
H

o
w

e
ve

r,
 u

n
til

 a
 f

u
ll 

1
0-

ye
a

r 
tr

en
d

T
he

 a
m

o
un

ts
 p

re
se

n
te

d
 f

o
r 

e
a

ch
 f

is
ca

l y
e

ar
 w

e
re

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

d 
a

s 
o

f 
th

e
 m

e
a

su
re

m
e

nt
 d

at
e

 o
f 

th
e

 to
ta

l O
P

E
B

 li
a

b
ili

ty
,

w
h

ic
h

 is
 J

ul
y 

1
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
nt

 f
is

ca
l y

ea
r.

N
o

 a
ss

et
s 

ar
e

 a
cc

um
ul

a
te

d
 in

 a
 t

ru
st

 t
ha

t 
m

e
et

s 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ria
 in

 p
a

ra
g

ra
p

h
 4

 o
f 

G
A

S
B

 S
ta

te
m

en
t 

N
o

. 7
5

 to
 p

ay
 r

e
la

te
d

 b
e

n
e

fit
s.

L
O

Y
A

L
S

O
C

K
 T

O
W

N
S

H
IP

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 O
F

 C
H

A
N

G
E

S
 I

N
 T

H
E

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

'S
T

O
T

A
L

 O
T

H
E

R
 P

O
S

T
E

M
P

L
O

Y
M

E
N

T
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

 L
IA

B
IL

IT
Y

D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 P
LA

N
L

A
S

T
 1

0
 Y

E
A

R
S

*

Ju
n

e
 3

0
, 

20
2

4
Ju

n
e

 3
0

, 
20

2
3

Ju
n

e
 3

0
, 

2
02

2
Ju

n
e

 3
0

, 
20

2
1

(D
o

lla
r 

am
ou

n
ts

 in
 th

o
us

a
nd

s)
Ju

n
e

 3
0

, 
20

1
8

Ju
n

e
 3

0
, 

20
2

0
Ju

n
e 

3
0

, 2
0

19

- 
49

 -



  
 m

e
m

be
rs

 w
ho

 r
e

tir
e

 b
e

fo
re

 2
0

26
 r

e
ce

iv
e

 m
o

nt
h

ly
 p

ay
m

e
nt

s 
de

p
en

d
en

t 
o

n 
ye

a
rs

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e

 w
ith

 t
he

 D
is

tr
ic

t f
o

r 
8

 y
ea

rs
.

(c
on

tin
u

e
d)

C
h

a
ng

e
s 

o
f 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 u
se

d
 in

 t
he

 m
e

a
su

re
m

en
t 

o
f 

th
e

 to
ta

l O
P

E
B

 li
a

b
ili

ty
 b

eg
in

ni
n

g 
Ju

ly
 1

, 
2

02
2

:
  

 T
h

e
 tr

e
n

d 
a

ss
u

m
p

tio
n

 w
a

s 
u

pd
a

te
d

.
  

 A
ss

u
m

p
tio

n
s 

fo
r 

sa
la

ry
, m

or
ta

lit
y,

 w
ith

d
ra

w
a

l a
n

d
 r

e
tir

em
en

t 
w

e
re

 u
pd

a
te

d
 b

as
e

d 
o

n
 n

e
w

 P
S

E
R

S
 e

xp
e

ri
en

ce
 s

tu
d

y.

C
h

a
ng

e
s 

o
f 

be
n

e
fit

 t
e

rm
s 

u
se

d
 in

 t
h

e
 m

ea
su

re
m

e
n

t o
f 

th
e 

to
ta

l O
P

E
B

 li
ab

ili
ty

 b
e

g
in

n
in

g
 J

u
ly

 1
, 

20
2

2:
  

 T
e

a
ch

e
rs

 w
h

o
 r

e
tir

e 
b

e
fo

re
 2

02
5

 th
a

t h
a

ve
 1

5
 y

e
a

rs
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e
 r

e
ce

iv
e

 $
24

0
 p

e
r 

m
o

nt
h

 f
o

r 
8

 y
e

a
rs

. 
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

 s
u

p
po

rt
 s

ta
ff

  
 A

dm
in

is
tr

a
to

rs
 s

ub
si

d
y 

in
cr

e
a

se
d

 f
or

 a
 4

 y
ea

r 
pe

ri
o

d 
u

nt
il 

20
2

3.
  

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e
 s

up
p

or
t 

su
b

si
d

y 
e

n
ds

 J
un

e
 3

0
, 

20
2

1.
  

 T
e

a
ch

e
rs

 h
a

ve
 s

u
bs

id
y 

un
til

 2
0

2
1,

 a
ft

er
 t

h
at

 p
ay

 f
ul

l p
re

m
iu

m
.

C
h

a
ng

e
s 

o
f 

be
n

e
fit

 t
e

rm
s 

u
se

d
 in

 t
h

e
 m

ea
su

re
m

e
n

t o
f 

th
e 

to
ta

l O
P

E
B

 li
ab

ili
ty

 b
e

g
in

n
in

g
 J

u
ly

 1
, 

20
1

8:
  

 T
h

e
 s

u
b

si
d

y 
p

ro
vi

d
e

d 
fo

r 
te

a
ch

e
rs

 w
as

 u
pd

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
lie

s 
to

 f
u

tu
re

 r
et

ir
e

es
. 

 T
h

e
 s

u
bs

id
y 

fo
r 

C
h

a
ng

e
s 

o
f 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 u
se

d
 in

 t
he

 m
e

a
su

re
m

en
t 

o
f 

th
e

 to
ta

l O
P

E
B

 li
a

b
ili

ty
 b

eg
in

ni
n

g 
Ju

ly
 1

, 
2

02
0

:
  

 T
h

e
 m

a
rr

ia
g

e 
a

ss
u

m
p

tio
n

 a
t 

re
tir

e
m

e
nt

 d
e

cr
e

a
se

d
 f

ro
m

 2
0

%
 t

o
 1

0
%

.

 -
 5

0
 -

S
ee

 N
ot

e
s 

to
 th

e 
B

as
ic

 F
in

a
nc

ia
l S

ta
te

m
en

ts

L
O

Y
A

L
S

O
C

K
 T

O
W

N
S

H
IP

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 O
F

 C
H

A
N

G
E

S
 I

N
 T

H
E

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

'S
T

O
T

A
L

 O
T

H
E

R
 P

O
S

T
E

M
P

L
O

Y
M

E
N

T
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

 L
IA

B
IL

IT
Y

D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 P
LA

N
L

A
S

T
 1

0
 Y

E
A

R
S

*

  
 T

h
e

 tr
e

n
d 

a
ss

u
m

p
tio

n
 w

a
s 

u
pd

a
te

d
.

  
 A

ss
u

m
p

tio
n

s 
fo

r 
sa

la
ry

, m
or

ta
lit

y,
 w

ith
d

ra
w

a
l a

n
d

 r
e

tir
em

en
t 

w
e

re
 u

pd
a

te
d

 b
as

e
d 

o
n

 n
e

w
 P

S
E

R
S

 a
ss

u
m

p
tio

n
s.

  
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

to
rs

 is
 n

o
w

 a
ss

u
m

e
d 

to
 a

p
p

ly
 t

o 
fu

tu
re

 r
e

tir
e

e
s.

C
h

a
ng

e
s 

o
f 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 u
se

d
 in

 t
he

 m
e

a
su

re
m

en
t 

o
f 

th
e

 to
ta

l O
P

E
B

 li
a

b
ili

ty
 b

eg
in

ni
n

g 
Ju

ly
 1

, 
2

01
8

:
  

 T
h

e
 tr

e
n

d 
a

ss
u

m
p

tio
n

 w
a

s 
u

pd
a

te
d

.
  

 A
ss

u
m

p
tio

n
s 

fo
r 

sa
la

ry
, m

or
ta

lit
y,

 w
ith

d
ra

w
a

l a
n

d
 r

e
tir

em
en

t 
w

e
re

 u
pd

a
te

d
 b

as
e

d 
o

n
 n

e
w

 P
S

E
R

S
 a

ss
u

m
p

tio
n

s.

C
h

a
ng

e
s 

o
f 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 u
se

d
 in

 t
he

 m
e

a
su

re
m

en
t 

o
f 

th
e

 to
ta

l O
P

E
B

 li
a

b
ili

ty
 b

eg
in

ni
n

g 
Ju

ly
 1

, 
2

01
7

:

C
h

a
ng

e
s 

o
f 

be
n

e
fit

 t
e

rm
s 

u
se

d
 in

 t
h

e
 m

ea
su

re
m

e
n

t o
f 

th
e 

to
ta

l O
P

E
B

 li
ab

ili
ty

 b
e

g
in

n
in

g
 J

u
ly

 1
, 

20
2

0:



Ju
n

e
 3

0
, 

2
0

1
9

Ju
n

e
 3

0
, 

2
0

1
8

D
is

tr
ic

t’s
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 n
e

t 
O

P
E

B
 li

a
b

ili
ty

 (
a

ss
et

)
0

.0
7

2
8

%
0

.0
7

1
0

%
0

.0
7

0
8

%
0

.0
7

0
0

%
0

.0
7

0
3

%
0

.0
6

9
5

%
0

.0
7

0
2

%

D
is

tr
ic

t’s
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

a
te

 s
h

a
re

 o
f 

th
e

 n
e

t 
O

P
E

B
 li

a
b

ili
ty

 (
a

ss
e

t)
1

,3
1

7
$

  
  

 
1

,3
0

7
$

  
  

 
1

,6
7

9
$

  
  

1
,5

1
2

$
  

  
1

,4
9

5
$

  
  

 
1

,4
4

9
$

  
  

 
1

,4
3

0
$

  

D
is

tr
ic

t’s
 c

o
ve

re
d

-e
m

p
lo

ye
e

 p
a

yr
o

ll
1

1
,1

5
0

$
  

 
1

0
,4

3
4

$
  

 
1

0
,0

4
3

$
  

9
,8

2
8

$
  

  
9

,7
0

1
$

  
  

 
9

,3
5

8
$

  
  

 
9

,3
4

0
$

  

D
is

tr
ic

t’s
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

a
te

 s
h

a
re

 o
f 

th
e

 n
e

t 
O

P
E

B
 li

a
b

ili
ty

 (
a

ss
e

t)
 a

s 
a

 
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
its

 c
o

ve
re

d
-e

m
pl

o
ye

e
 p

a
yr

o
ll

1
1

.8
1

%
1

2
.5

3
%

1
6

.7
2

%
1

5
.3

8
%

1
5

.4
1

%
1

5
.4

8
%

1
5

.3
1

%

P
la

n
 f

id
u

ci
a

ry
 n

e
t 

p
o

si
tio

n
 a

s 
a

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l O

P
E

B
 li

a
b

ili
ty

7
.2

2
%

6
.8

6
%

5
.3

0
%

5
.6

9
%

5
.5

6
%

5
.5

6
%

5
.7

3
%

N
o

te
s 

to
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
:

* 
T

h
is

 s
ch

e
d

u
le

 is
 in

te
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 il

lu
st

ra
te

 t
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ire

m
e

n
t 

to
 s

h
o

w
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 f

o
r 

1
0

 y
e

a
rs

. 
H

o
w

e
ve

r,
 u

n
til

 a
 f

u
ll 

1
0

-y
e

a
r 

tr
e

n
d

is
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

, 
th

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

is
 p

re
se

n
tin

g
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 f

o
r 

th
o

se
 y

e
a

rs
 o

n
ly

 f
o

r 
w

h
ic

h
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 is

 a
va

ila
b

le
.

T
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

ts
 p

re
se

n
te

d
 f

o
r 

e
ac

h
 f

is
ca

l y
e

a
r 

w
e

re
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 a
s 

o
f 

th
e

 m
e

a
su

re
m

e
n

t 
d

a
te

 o
f 

th
e 

n
e

t 
O

P
E

B
 li

a
b

ili
ty

, 
w

h
ic

h
 is

 
Ju

n
e

 3
0

 o
f 

th
e

 im
m

e
d

ia
te

ly
 p

re
ce

d
in

g
 f

is
ca

l y
e

a
r.

D
is

co
u

n
t 

ra
te

 u
se

d
 in

 t
h

e
 m

e
a

su
re

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l O

P
E

B
 li

a
b

ili
ty

4
.1

3
%

4
.0

9
%

2
.1

8
%

2
.6

6
%

2
.7

9
%

2
.9

8
%

3
.1

3
%

C
h

a
n

g
e

s 
in

 a
ss

u
m

p
tio

n
s 

u
se

d
 in

 t
he

 m
e

a
su

re
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l O
P

E
B

 li
a

b
ili

ty
 b

e
g

in
n

in
g

 J
u

n
e

 3
0

, 
20

2
1

:
  

  
 T

h
e

 in
fla

tio
n

 a
ss

u
m

p
tio

n
 d

e
cr

e
a

se
d

 f
ro

m
 2

.7
5

%
 t

o
 2

.5
0

%
. 

P
a

yr
o

ll 
g

ro
w

th
 a

ss
u

m
p

tio
n

 d
e

cr
e

a
se

d
 f

ro
m

 3
.5

0
%

 t
o

 3
.2

5
%

.
  

  
 S

a
la

ry
 g

ro
w

th
 c

h
a

n
g

e
d

 f
ro

m
 a

n
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 a

ve
ra

g
e

 o
f 

5
.0

0
%

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s 

co
m

p
ris

e
d

 o
f 

2
.7

5
%

, 
re

a
l w

a
g

e 
g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 f
o

r 
m

e
rit

 o
r 

se
n

io
rit

y
  

  
 in

cr
e

a
se

s 
o

f 
2

.2
5

%
, 

to
 a

n
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 a

ve
ra

g
e

 o
f 

4
.5

0
%

, 
co

m
p

ris
e

d
 o

f 
in

fla
tio

n
 o

f 
2

.5
0

%
 a

n
d 

2
.0

0
%

 f
o

r 
re

a
l w

a
g

e
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 f
o

r 
m

e
rit

 o
r 

se
n

io
rit

y 
in

cr
e

a
se

s.
 

  
  

 M
o

ra
lit

y 
ra

te
s 

w
e

re
 m

o
d

ifi
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 R

P
-2

0
1

4
 M

o
rt

a
lit

y 
T

a
b

le
s 

fo
r 

M
a

le
s 

a
n

d
 F

e
m

a
le

s 
to

 a
 b

le
n

d
ed

 t
a

b
le

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 5
0

%
 P

u
b

T
-2

0
1

0
 E

m
p

lo
ye

e
 

  
  

 (
T

o
ta

l T
e

a
ch

e
r 

d
a

ta
se

t)
 a

nd
 5

0
%

 P
u

b
G

-2
0

1
0

 (
T

o
ta

l G
e

n
e

ra
l E

m
p

lo
ye

e
s 

d
a

ta
),

 a
d

ju
st

e
d

 t
o

 r
e

fle
ct

 P
S

E
R

S
' e

xp
e

rie
n

ce
 a

n
d

 p
ro

je
ct

e
d

 u
si

n
g

 a
 m

o
d

ifi
e

d
  

  
 v

e
rs

io
n

 M
P

-2
0

2
0

.
  

  
 F

o
r 

d
is

a
b

le
d

 a
n

n
u

ita
n

ts
 t

h
e 

ra
te

s 
w

e
re

 m
o

d
ifi

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 R
P

-2
0

1
4

 M
o

rt
a

lit
y 

T
a

b
le

s 
fo

r 
M

a
le

s 
a

n
d

 F
e

m
al

e
s 

to
 P

u
b

-2
0

1
0

 D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 M
o

rt
a

lit
y 

N
o

n
-S

a
fe

ty
  

  
 H

e
a

d
co

u
n

t 
W

e
ig

h
te

d
 t

a
b

le
, 

a
d

ju
st

e
d

 t
o

 r
e

fle
ct

 P
S

E
R

S
' e

xp
e

rie
n

ce
 a

n
d

 p
ro

je
ct

e
d

 u
si

n
g

 a
 m

od
ifi

e
d

 v
e

rs
io

n
 M

P
-2

0
2

0
.

(D
o

lla
r 

a
m

o
u

n
ts

 in
 t

h
o

u
sa

n
d

s)

L
O

Y
A

L
S

O
C

K
 T

O
W

N
S

H
IP

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 O
F

 T
H

E
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
'S

 P
R

O
P

O
R

T
IO

N
A

T
E

 S
H

A
R

E
 

O
F

 T
H

E
 N

E
T

 O
T

H
E

R
 P

O
S

T
E

M
P

L
O

M
E

N
T

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

S
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

Y
P

R
E

M
IU

M
 A

S
S

IS
T

A
N

C
E

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
L

A
S

T
 1

0
 Y

E
A

R
S

*

Ju
n

e
 3

0
, 

2
0

2
1

Ju
n

e
 3

0
, 

2
0

2
0

Ju
n

e
 3

0
, 

2
0

2
2

Ju
n

e
 3

0
, 

2
0

2
3

Ju
n

e
 3

0
, 

2
0

2
4

S
ee

 N
ot

es
 t

o 
th

e 
B

as
ic

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
e

nt
s

 -
 5

1 
-



C
o

n
tr

a
ct

u
a

lly
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

tio
n

7
4

$
   

   
   

8
4

$
   

   
   

8
4

$
   

   
   

8
2

$
   

   
   

 
8

3
$

   
   

 
8

0
$

   
   

 
7

7
$

   
   

 
7

7
$

   
   

 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

tio
n

s 
in

 r
e

la
tio

n
 to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
ct

u
a

lly
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

tio
n

7
4

   
   

   
  

8
4

   
   

   
  

8
4

   
   

   
  

8
2

   
   

   
   

8
3

   
   

   
8

0
   

   
   

7
7

   
   

   
7

7
   

   
   

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

tio
n

 d
e

fic
ie

n
cy

 (
e

xc
e

ss
)

  
$

   
   

 
  

$
   

   
 

  
$

   
   

 
  

$
   

   
  

  
$

   
  

  
$

   
  

  
$

   
  

  
$

   
  

D
is

tr
ic

t’s
 c

o
ve

re
d

-e
m

p
lo

ye
e

 p
a

yr
o

ll
1

1
,5

7
1

$
 

1
1

,1
5

0
$

 
1

0
,4

3
4

$
 

1
0

,0
4

3
$

   
9

,8
2

8
$

 
9

,7
0

1
$

 
9

,3
5

8
$

 
9

,3
4

0
$

  

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

tio
n

s 
a

s 
a

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

co
ve

re
d

-e
m

p
lo

ye
e

 p
a

yr
o

ll
0

.6
4

%
0

.7
5

%
0

.8
1

%
0

.8
2

%
0

.8
4

%
0

.8
2

%
0

.8
2

%
0

.8
2

%

N
o

te
s 

to
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
:

* 
T

h
is

 s
ch

e
d

u
le

 is
 in

te
n

d
e

d
 to

 il
lu

st
ra

te
 th

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t t
o

 s
h

o
w

 in
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 f
o

r 
1

0
 y

e
a

rs
. H

o
w

e
ve

r,
 u

n
til

 a
 f

u
ll 

1
0

-y
e

a
r 

tr
e

n
d

 is
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

,
th

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t i

s 
p

re
se

n
tin

g
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 f

o
r 

th
o

se
 y

e
a

rs
 o

n
ly

 f
o

r 
w

h
ic

h
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 is

 a
va

ila
b

le
.

L
O

Y
A

L
S

O
C

K
 T

O
W

N
S

H
IP

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

T
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct
u

a
lly

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
tio

n
 r

a
te

 is
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d

 a
s 

o
f 

th
e

 J
u

n
e

 3
0

 p
re

ce
d

in
g

 th
e

 f
is

ca
l y

e
a

r 
in

 w
h

ic
h

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

tio
n

s 
a

re
 m

a
d

e
.

Ju
n

e
 3

0
, 2

0
1

8
Ju

n
e

 3
0

, 2
0

2
3

Ju
n

e
 3

0
, 2

0
2

2
Ju

n
e

 3
0

, 2
0

2
1

Ju
n

e
 3

0
, 2

0
2

0
Ju

n
e

 3
0

, 2
0

1
9

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 O
F

 T
H

E
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
'S

 O
T

H
E

R
 P

O
S

T
E

M
P

L
O

Y
M

E
N

T
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
S

 P
L

A
N

 C
O

N
T

R
IB

U
T

IO
N

S
P

R
E

M
IU

M
 A

S
S

IS
T

A
N

C
E

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
L

A
S

T
 T

E
N

 Y
E

A
R

S
*

(D
o

lla
r 

a
m

o
u

n
ts

 in
 th

o
u

sa
n

d
s)

Ju
n

e
 3

0
, 2

0
1

7
Ju

n
e

 3
0

, 2
0

2
4

S
ee

 N
ot

es
 t

o 
th

e 
B

as
ic

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts
 -

 5
2 

-



D
is

tr
ic

t’s
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f t

h
e

 n
e

t p
e

n
si

o
n

 li
a

b
ili

ty
 (

a
ss

e
t)

0
.0

7
2

8
%

0
.0

7
1

0
%

0
.0

7
0

8
%

0
.0

6
9

9
%

0
.0

7
0

3
%

0
.0

6
9

5
%

0
.0

7
0

2
%

0
.0

7
2

4
%

0
.0

7
1

6
%

0
.0

7
0

9
%

D
is

tr
ic

t’s
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

a
te

 s
h

a
re

 o
f t

h
e

 n
e

t p
e

n
si

o
n

 li
a

b
ili

ty
 (

a
ss

e
t)

3
2

,3
8

6
$

   
3

1
,5

6
6

$
 

2
9

,0
6

8
$

 
3

4
,4

1
8

$
 

3
2

,8
8

8
$

 
3

3
,3

6
3

$
 

3
4

,6
7

1
$

   
   

3
5

,8
7

9
$

   
  

3
1

,0
1

4
$

   
  

2
8

,0
6

3
$

   

D
is

tr
ic

t’s
 c

o
ve

re
d

-e
m

p
lo

ye
e

 p
a

yr
o

ll
1

1
,1

5
0

$
   

1
0

,4
3

4
$

 
1

0
,0

4
3

$
 

9
,8

2
8

$
   

9
,7

0
1

$
   

9
,3

5
8

$
   

9
,3

4
0

$
   

   
  

9
,3

8
2

$
   

   
 

9
,2

1
5

$
   

   
 

9
,0

4
6

$
   

  

D
is

tr
ic

t’s
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

a
te

 s
h

a
re

 o
f t

h
e

 n
e

t p
e

n
si

o
n

 li
a

b
ili

ty
 (

a
ss

e
t)

 a
s 

a
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f i
ts

 c
o

ve
re

d
-e

m
p

lo
ye

e
 p

a
yr

o
ll

2
9

0
.4

6
%

3
0

2
.5

3
%

2
8

9
.4

4
%

3
5

0
.2

0
%

3
3

9
.0

2
%

3
5

6
.5

2
%

3
7

1
.2

1
%

3
8

2
.4

2
%

3
3

6
.5

6
%

3
1

0
.2

3
%

P
la

n
 fi

d
u

ci
a

ry
 n

e
t p

o
si

tio
n

 a
s 

a
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f t
h

e
 to

ta
l p

e
n

si
o

n
 li

a
b

ili
ty

6
1

.8
5

%
6

1
.3

4
%

6
3

.6
7

%
5

4
.3

2
%

5
5

.6
6

%
5

4
.0

0
%

5
1

.8
4

%
5

0
.1

4
%

5
4

.3
6

%
5

7
.2

4
%

N
o

te
s 

to
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
:

T
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

ts
 p

re
se

n
te

d
 fo

r 
e

a
ch

 fi
sc

a
l y

e
a

r 
w

e
re

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 a

s 
o

f t
h

e
 m

e
a

su
re

m
e

n
t d

a
te

 o
f t

h
e

 n
e

t p
e

n
si

o
n

 li
a

b
ili

ty
, w

h
ic

h
 is

 J
u

n
e

 3
0

 o
f t

h
e

 im
m

e
d

ia
te

ly
 p

re
ce

d
in

g
 fi

sc
a

l y
e

a
r.

P
e

n
si

o
n

 p
la

n
 e

m
p

lo
ye

r 
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 a
n

d
 e

m
p

lo
ye

r 
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

a
te

 s
h

a
re

:
  P

e
n

si
o

n
 p

la
n

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
 s

h
a

re
 is

 c
a

lc
u

la
te

d
 u

til
iz

in
g

 th
e

 D
is

tr
ic

t's
 o

n
e

-y
e

a
r 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

tio
n

s 
a

s 
it 

re
la

te
s 

to
 th

e
 to

ta
l o

n
e

-y
e

a
r 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

tio
n

s 
fo

r 
a

ll 
e

m
p

lo
ye

rs
.

  P
rio

r 
to

 th
e

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
 J

u
n

e
 3

0
, 2

0
2

0
, t

h
e

 p
e

n
si

o
n

 p
la

n
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

a
te

 s
h

a
re

 w
a

s 
ca

lc
u

la
te

d
 u

til
iz

in
g

 th
e

 D
is

tr
ic

t's
 o

n
e

-y
e

a
r 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 c
o

ve
re

d
 p

a
yr

o
ll 

a
s 

it 
re

la
te

d
 to

 th
e

 to
ta

l 
  o

n
e

-y
e

a
r 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 c
o

ve
re

d
 p

a
yr

o
ll 

fo
r 

e
m

p
lo

ye
rs

.

D
is

co
u

n
t r

a
te

 u
se

d
 in

 th
e

 m
e

a
su

re
m

e
n

t o
f t

h
e

 to
ta

l p
e

n
si

o
n

 li
a

b
ili

ty
7

.0
0

%
7

.0
0

%
7

.0
0

%
7

.2
5

%
7

.2
5

%
7

.2
5

%
7

.2
5

%
7

.2
5

%
7

.2
5

%
7

.5
0

%

C
h

a
n

g
e

s 
o

f b
e

n
e

fit
 te

rm
s:

   
W

ith
 th

e
 p

a
ss

a
g

e
 o

f A
ct

 5
 o

n
 J

u
n

e
 1

2
, 2

0
1

7
 c

la
ss

 T
-E

 a
n

d
 T

-F
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

re
 n

o
w

 p
e

rm
itt

e
d

 to
 e

le
ct

 a
 lu

m
p

 s
u

m
 p

a
ym

e
n

t o
f m

e
m

b
e

r 
co

n
tr

ib
u

tio
n

s 
u

p
o

n
 r

e
tir

e
m

e
n

t.

C
h

a
n

g
e

s 
in

 a
ss

u
m

p
tio

n
s 

u
se

d
 in

 th
e

 m
e

a
su

re
m

e
n

t o
f t

h
e

 to
ta

l p
e

n
si

o
n

 li
a

b
ili

ty
 b

e
g

in
n

in
g

 J
u

n
e

 3
0

, 2
0

2
1

:
   

T
h

e
 in

fla
tio

n
 a

ss
u

m
p

tio
n

 d
e

cr
e

a
se

d
 fr

o
m

 2
.7

5
%

 to
 2

.5
0

%
. P

a
yr

o
ll 

g
ro

w
th

 a
ss

u
m

p
tio

n
 d

e
cr

e
a

se
d

 fr
o

m
 3

.5
0

%
 to

 3
.2

5
%

.
   

S
a

la
ry

 g
ro

w
th

 c
h

a
n

g
e

d
 fr

o
m

 a
n

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e
 a

ve
ra

g
e

 o
f 5

.0
0

%
, w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s 

co
m

p
ris

e
d

 o
f i

n
fla

tio
n

 o
f 2

.7
5

%
, r

e
a

l w
a

g
e

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 fo

r 
m

e
rit

 o
r 

se
n

io
rit

y 
   

in
cr

e
a

se
s 

o
f 2

.2
5

%
, t

o
 a

n
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e

 a
ve

ra
g

e
 o

f 4
.5

0
%

, c
o

m
p

ris
e

d
 o

f i
n

fla
tio

n
 o

f 2
.5

0
%

 a
n

d
 2

.0
0

%
 fo

r 
re

a
l w

a
g

e
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 fo
r 

m
e

rit
 o

r 
se

n
io

rit
y 

in
cr

e
a

se
s.

   
M

o
rt

a
lit

y 
ra

te
s 

w
e

re
 m

o
d

ifi
e

d
 fr

o
m

 th
e

 R
P

-2
0

1
4

 M
o

rt
a

lit
y 

T
a

b
le

s 
fo

r 
M

a
le

s 
a

n
d

 F
e

m
a

le
s 

to
 a

 b
le

n
d

e
d

 ta
b

le
 b

a
se

d
 o

n
 5

0
%

 P
u

b
T

-2
0

1
0

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e

   
(T

o
ta

l T
e

a
ch

e
r 

d
a

ta
se

t)
 a

n
d

 5
0

%
 P

u
b

G
-2

0
1

0
 (

T
o

ta
l G

e
n

e
ra

l E
m

p
lo

ye
e

s 
d

a
ta

),
 a

d
ju

st
e

d
 to

 r
e

fle
ct

 P
S

E
R

S
' e

xp
e

rie
n

ce
 a

n
d

 p
ro

je
ct

e
d

 u
si

n
g

 a
 m

o
d

ifi
e

d
   

ve
rs

io
n

 M
P

-2
0

2
0

.
   

F
o

r 
d

is
a

b
le

d
 a

n
n

u
ita

n
ts

 th
e

 r
a

te
s 

w
e

re
 m

o
d

ifi
e

d
 fr

o
m

 th
e

 R
P

-2
0

1
4

 M
o

rt
a

lit
y 

T
a

b
le

s 
fo

r 
M

a
le

s 
a

n
d

 F
e

m
a

le
s 

to
 P

u
b

-2
0

1
0

 D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 M
o

rt
a

lit
y 

N
o

n
-S

a
fe

ty
   

H
e

a
d

co
u

n
t W

e
ig

h
te

d
 ta

b
le

, a
d

ju
st

e
d

 to
 r

e
fle

ct
 P

S
E

R
S

' e
xp

e
rie

n
ce

 a
n

d
 p

ro
je

ct
e

d
 u

si
n

g
 a

 m
o

d
ifi

e
d

 v
e

rs
io

n
 M

P
-2

0
2

0
.

C
h

a
n

g
e

s 
in

 a
ss

u
m

p
tio

n
s 

u
se

d
 in

 th
e

 m
e

a
su

re
m

e
n

t o
f t

h
e

 to
ta

l p
e

n
si

o
n

 li
a

b
ili

ty
 b

e
g

in
n

in
g

 J
u

n
e

 3
0

, 2
0

1
6

:
   

T
h

e
 in

fla
tio

n
 a

ss
u

m
p

tio
n

 d
e

cr
e

a
se

d
 fr

o
m

 3
.0

0
%

 to
 2

.7
5

%
.

   
S

a
la

ry
 g

ro
w

th
 c

h
a

n
g

e
d

 fr
o

m
 a

n
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e

 a
ve

ra
g

e
 o

f 5
.5

0
%

, w
h

ic
h

 w
a

s 
co

m
p

ris
e

d
 o

f i
n

fla
tio

n
 o

f 3
.0

0
%

, r
e

a
l w

a
g

e
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 fo
r 

m
e

rit
 o

r 
se

n
io

rit
y 

   
in

cr
e

a
se

s 
o

f 2
.5

0
%

, t
o

 a
n

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e
 a

ve
ra

g
e

 o
f 5

.0
0

%
, c

o
m

p
ris

e
d

 o
f i

n
fla

tio
n

 o
f 2

.7
5

%
 a

n
d

 2
.2

5
%

 fo
r 

re
a

l w
a

g
e

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 fo

r 
m

e
rit

 o
r 

se
n

io
rit

y 
in

cr
e

a
se

s.
   

M
o

rt
a

lit
y 

ra
te

s 
w

e
re

 m
o

d
ifi

e
d

 fr
o

m
 th

e
 P

R
-2

0
0

0
 C

o
m

b
in

e
d

 H
e

a
lth

y 
A

n
n

u
ita

n
t T

a
b

le
s 

(m
a

le
 a

n
d

 fe
m

a
le

) 
w

ith
 a

g
e

 s
e

t b
a

ck
 3

 y
e

a
rs

 fo
r 

b
o

th
 m

a
le

s 
a

n
d

 fe
m

a
le

s 
   

to
 th

e
 R

P
-2

0
1

4
 M

o
rt

a
lit

y 
T

a
b

le
s 

fo
r 

M
a

le
s 

a
n

d
 F

e
m

a
le

s,
 a

d
ju

st
e

d
 to

 r
e

fle
ct

 P
S

E
R

S
' e

xp
e

rie
n

ce
 a

n
d

 p
ro

je
ct

e
d

 u
si

n
g

 a
 m

o
d

ifi
e

d
 v

e
rs

io
n

 o
f t

h
e

 M
P

-2
0

1
5

   
M

o
rt

a
lit

y 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

t S
ca

le
.

   
F

o
r 

d
is

a
b

le
d

 a
n

n
u

ita
n

ts
 th

e
 R

P
-2

0
0

0
 C

o
m

b
in

e
d

 D
is

a
b

le
d

 T
a

b
le

s 
(m

a
le

 a
n

d
 fe

m
a

le
) 

w
ith

 a
g

e
 s

e
t b

a
ck

 7
 y

e
a

rs
 fo

r 
m

a
le

s 
a

n
d

 3
 y

e
a

rs
 fo

r 
fe

m
a

le
s 

to
 th

e
 

   
R

P
-2

0
1

4
 M

o
rt

a
lit

y 
T

a
b

le
s 

fo
r 

M
a

le
s 

a
n

d
 F

e
m

a
le

s,
 a

d
ju

st
e

d
 to

 r
e

fle
ct

 P
S

E
R

S
' e

xp
e

rie
n

ce
 a

n
d

 p
ro

je
ct

e
d

 u
si

n
g

 a
 m

o
d

ifi
e

d
 v

e
rs

io
n

 o
f t

h
e

 M
P

-2
0

1
5

 M
o

rt
a

lit
y 

   
Im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

t S
ca

le
.

Ju
n

e
 3

0
, 2

0
1

5
Ju

n
e

 3
0

, 2
0

1
6

L
O

Y
A

L
S

O
C

K
 T

O
W

N
S

H
IP

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 O
F

 T
H

E
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
'S

 P
R

O
P

O
R

T
IO

N
A

T
E

 S
H

A
R

E
 

O
F

 T
H

E
 N

E
T

 P
E

N
S

IO
N

 L
IA

B
IL

IT
Y

L
A

S
T

 1
0

 Y
E

A
R

S
(D

o
lla

r 
a

m
o

u
n

ts
 in

 th
o

u
sa

n
d

s)
Ju

n
e

 3
0

, 2
0

1
7

Ju
n

e
 3

0
, 2

0
2

4
Ju

n
e

 3
0

, 2
0

1
8

Ju
n

e
 3

0
, 2

0
2

3
Ju

n
e

 3
0

, 2
0

2
2

Ju
n

e
 3

0
, 2

0
2

1
Ju

n
e

 3
0

, 2
0

2
0

Ju
n

e
 3

0
, 2

0
1

9

S
e

e
 N

o
te

s 
to

 th
e

 B
a

si
c 

F
in

a
n

ci
a

l S
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
- 

5
3

 -



C
o

n
tr

a
ct

u
al

ly
 r

e
qu

ire
d 

co
n

tr
ib

ut
io

n
3,

8
60

$
  

 
3,

85
0

$
  

 
3

,5
63

$
  

 
3

,3
6

5
$

  
  

3
,2

9
0

$
  

 
3

,1
61

$
  

 
2,

97
2

$
  

 
2,

73
0

$
  

  
2,

34
6

$
  

 
1

,8
4

4
$

  
 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

tio
n

s 
in

 r
el

at
io

n
 t

o
 t

he
 c

o
nt

ra
ct

u
al

ly
 r

eq
u

ire
d 

co
n

tr
ib

u
tio

n
3

,8
60

  
  

 
3

,8
50

  
  

 
3

,5
63

  
  

 
3

,3
65

  
  

  
3

,2
90

  
  

 
3

,1
61

  
  

 
2

,9
72

  
  

 
2

,7
30

  
  

  
2

,3
46

  
  

 
1

,8
44

  
  

 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

tio
n

 d
ef

ic
ie

nc
y 

(e
xc

es
s)

  
$

  
  

  
  

$
  

  
  

  
$

  
  

  
  

$
  

  
  

 
  

$
  

  
  

  
$

  
  

  
  

$
  

  
  

  
$

  
  

  
 

  
$

  
  

  
  

$
  

  
  

D
is

tr
ic

t’s
 c

o
ve

re
d-

em
p

lo
ye

e
 p

a
yr

o
ll

1
1,

5
71

$
 

1
1

,1
50

$
 

1
0,

43
4

$
 

10
,0

4
3

$
  

9,
82

8
$

  
 

9
,7

01
$

  
 

9,
35

8
$

  
9,

34
0

$
  

  
9,

38
2

$
  

 
9

,2
1

5
$

  
 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

tio
n

s 
a

s 
a

 p
er

ce
nt

a
ge

 o
f 

co
ve

re
d

-e
m

pl
o

ye
e 

pa
yr

ol
l

3
3.

3
6%

3
4.

53
%

3
4.

1
5%

33
.5

1
%

3
3.

48
%

3
2.

58
%

31
.7

6%
2

9.
2

3%
2

5.
01

%
20

.0
1

%

N
o

te
s 

to
 S

ch
e

du
le

:

L
O

Y
A

L
S

O
C

K
 T

O
W

N
S

H
IP

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 O
F

 T
H

E
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
'S

 P
E

N
S

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

 C
O

N
T

R
IB

U
T

IO
N

S
L

A
S

T
 1

0
 Y

E
A

R
S

(D
ol

la
r 

a
m

ou
n

ts
 in

 t
h

o
us

an
d

s)

T
h

e 
co

n
tr

ac
tu

a
lly

 r
e

q
ui

re
d

 c
o

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
ra

te
 is

 c
al

cu
la

te
d 

a
s 

o
f 

th
e 

Ju
n

e 
3

0 
pr

ec
ed

in
g 

th
e

 f
is

ca
l y

e
ar

 in
 w

hi
ch

 c
o

nt
rib

u
tio

ns
 a

re
 m

a
de

.

Ju
n

e 
3

0,
 2

02
3

Ju
n

e 
3

0,
 2

02
2

Ju
n

e 
3

0,
 2

02
1

Ju
n

e 
3

0,
 2

02
0

Ju
n

e 
3

0,
 2

01
9

Ju
n

e 
3

0,
 2

01
8

Ju
n

e 
30

, 
2

01
7

Ju
n

e 
3

0,
 2

01
6

Ju
ne

 3
0

, 
20

1
5

Ju
n

e 
3

0,
 2

02
4

S
ee

 N
ot

es
 t

o
 t

h
e 

B
a

si
c 

F
in

a
n

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

e
nt

s
- 

54
 -



P
a

ss
e

d
-

T
h

ro
u

g
h

T
o

G
R

A
N

T
O

R
/P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 T
IT

L
E

S
u

b
re

ci
p

ie
n

ts

U
.S

. D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

 O
F

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

Im
p

a
ct

 A
id

 
D

8
4

.0
4

1
N

/A
0

7
/0

1
/2

3
-0

6
/3

0
/2

4
N

/A
1

8
,9

8
9

$
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

1
8

,9
8

9
$

   
   

1
8

,9
8

9
$

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

P
a

ss
e

d
 th

ro
u

g
h

 th
e

 P
e

n
n

sy
lv

a
n

ia
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t o

f 
E

d
u

ca
tio

n
:

   
T

itl
e

 I 
- 

G
ra

n
ts

 to
 L

o
ca

l E
d

u
ca

tio
n

a
l A

g
e

n
ci

e
s

I
8

4
.0

1
0

1
3

-2
3

0
2

3
4

0
9

/1
0

/2
2

-0
9

/3
0

/2
3

3
0

6
,1

6
0

$
   

8
9

,2
3

8
   

   
   

3
9

,1
9

4
$

   
   

 
5

0
,0

4
4

   
   

   
5

0
,0

4
4

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
T

itl
e

 I 
- 

G
ra

n
ts

 to
 L

o
ca

l E
d

u
ca

tio
n

a
l A

g
e

n
ci

e
s

I
8

4
.0

1
0

1
3

-2
4

0
2

3
4

0
9

/1
0

/2
3

-0
9

/3
0

/2
4

3
0

3
,6

6
0

   
  

2
3

3
,5

7
8

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
2

4
3

,2
8

5
   

   
2

4
3

,2
8

5
   

   
9

,7
0

7
$

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

   
T

o
ta

l T
itl

e
 I 

- 
G

ra
n

ts
 to

 L
o

ca
l E

d
u

ca
tio

n
a

l A
g

e
n

ci
e

s
3

2
2

,8
1

6
   

   
3

9
,1

9
4

   
   

   
2

9
3

,3
2

9
   

   
2

9
3

,3
2

9
   

   
9

,7
0

7
   

   
   

  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

   
T

itl
e

 II
 -

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 E
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 In
st

ru
ct

io
n

 S
ta

te
 G

ra
n

ts
I

8
4

.3
6

7
2

0
-2

3
0

2
3

4
0

9
/1

0
/2

2
-0

9
/3

0
/2

3
4

6
,9

3
5

   
   

 
(1

4
5

)
   

   
   

   
(1

4
5

)
   

   
   

   
 

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

T
itl

e
 II

 -
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 E

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 In

st
ru

ct
io

n
 S

ta
te

 G
ra

n
ts

I
8

4
.3

6
7

2
0

-2
4

0
2

3
4

0
9

/1
0

/2
3

-0
9

/3
0

/2
4

4
2

,3
7

3
   

   
 

4
1

,9
1

6
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
4

2
,3

7
3

   
   

   
4

2
,3

7
3

   
   

   
4

5
7

   
   

   
   

  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

   
T

o
ta

l T
itl

e
 II

 -
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 E

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 In

st
ru

ct
io

n
 S

ta
te

 G
ra

n
ts

4
1

,7
7

1
   

   
   

(1
4

5
)

   
   

   
   

 
4

2
,3

7
3

   
   

   
4

2
,3

7
3

   
   

   
4

5
7

   
   

   
   

  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

   
T

itl
e

 IV
 -

 S
tu

d
e

n
t S

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 A
ca

d
e

m
ic

 E
n

ric
h

m
e

n
t P

ro
g

ra
m

I
8

4
.4

2
4

1
4

4
-2

3
0

2
3

4
0

9
/1

0
/2

2
-0

9
/3

0
/2

3
2

2
,0

0
0

   
   

 
1

6
,0

1
2

   
   

   
1

6
,0

1
2

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

T
itl

e
 IV

 -
 S

tu
d

e
n

t S
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 A

ca
d

e
m

ic
 E

n
ric

h
m

e
n

t P
ro

g
ra

m
I

8
4

.4
2

4
1

4
4

-2
4

0
2

3
4

0
9

/1
0

/2
3

-0
9

/3
0

/2
4

2
3

,9
6

8
   

   
 

2
3

,9
6

8
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
2

3
,9

6
8

   
   

   
2

3
,9

6
8

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

   
T

o
ta

l T
itl

e
 IV

 -
 S

tu
d

e
n

t S
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 A

ca
d

e
m

ic
 E

n
ric

h
m

e
n

t P
ro

g
ra

m
3

9
,9

8
0

   
   

   
1

6
,0

1
2

   
   

   
2

3
,9

6
8

   
   

   
2

3
,9

6
8

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

   
C

O
V

ID
-1

9
 E

d
u

ca
tio

n
 S

ta
b

ili
za

tio
n

 F
u

n
d

 (
A

R
P

 E
S

S
E

R
)

I
8

4
.4

2
5

U
2

2
3

-2
1

0
2

3
4

0
3

/1
3

/2
0

-0
9

/3
0

/2
4

1
,9

3
4

,7
1

1
  

1
,6

5
3

,2
9

9
   

9
2

6
,1

5
5

   
   

 
7

2
7

,1
4

4
   

   
7

2
7

,1
4

4
   

   
   

C
O

V
ID

-1
9

 E
d

u
ca

tio
n

 S
ta

b
ili

za
tio

n
 F

u
n

d
 (

A
R

P
 E

S
S

E
R

 7
%

)
I

8
4

.4
2

5
U

2
2

5
-2

1
0

2
3

4
0

3
/1

3
/2

0
-0

9
/3

0
/2

4
1

5
0

,3
7

2
   

  
6

8
,3

5
1

   
   

   
4

4
,9

4
3

   
   

   
2

3
,4

0
8

   
   

   
2

3
,4

0
8

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

   
T

o
ta

l C
O

V
ID

-1
9

 E
d

u
ca

tio
n

 S
ta

b
ili

za
tio

n
 F

u
n

d
 A

R
P

 E
S

S
E

R
1

,7
2

1
,6

5
0

   
9

7
1

,0
9

8
   

   
 

7
5

0
,5

5
2

   
   

7
5

0
,5

5
2

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

P
a

ss
e

d
 th

ro
u

g
h

 B
L

a
S

T
 In

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 U
n

it 
#

1
7

:
   

ID
E

A
 E

S
E

A
 T

itl
e

 V
I

I
8

4
.0

2
7

N
/A

0
7

/0
1

/2
2

-0
9

/3
0

/2
3

N
/A

7
7

,2
2

2
   

   
   

7
7

,2
2

2
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

ID
E

A
 E

S
E

A
 T

itl
e

 V
I

I
8

4
.0

2
7

N
/A

0
7

/0
1

/2
3

-0
9

/3
0

/2
4

N
/A

2
0

0
,5

3
4

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
3

1
0

,3
8

5
   

   
3

1
0

,3
8

5
   

   
1

0
9

,8
5

1
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

   
T

o
ta

l I
D

E
A

 E
S

E
A

 T
itl

e
 V

I
2

7
7

,7
5

6
   

  
 

7
7

,2
2

2
   

   
   

3
1

0
,3

8
5

   
   

3
1

0
,3

8
5

   
   

1
0

9
,8

5
1

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
ID

E
A

 S
p

e
ci

a
l E

d
u

ca
tio

n
 -

 P
re

sc
h

o
o

l G
ra

n
ts

I
8

4
.1

7
3

N
/A

0
7

/0
1

/2
3

-0
6

/3
0

/2
4

N
/A

3
,4

2
9

   
   

   
  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
3

,4
2

9
   

   
   

  
3

,4
2

9
   

   
   

  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
T

o
ta

l S
p

e
ci

a
l E

d
u

ca
tio

n
 (

ID
E

A
) 

C
lu

st
e

r
2

8
1

,1
8

5
   

  
 

7
7

,2
2

2
   

   
   

3
1

3
,8

1
4

   
   

3
1

3
,8

1
4

   
   

1
0

9
,8

5
1

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

T
O

T
A

L
 U

.S
. D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
 O

F
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
 

2
,4

2
6

,3
9

1
   

1
,1

0
3

,3
8

1
   

 
1

,4
4

3
,0

2
5

   
1

,4
4

3
,0

2
5

   
 

1
2

0
,0

1
5

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

U
.S

. D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

 O
F

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 A
N

D
 H

U
M

A
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
P

a
ss

e
d

 th
ro

u
g

h
 P

e
n

n
sy

lv
a

n
ia

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t o
f 

H
u

m
a

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s:
   

M
e

d
ic

a
l A

ss
is

ta
n

ce
 P

ro
g

ra
m

I
9

3
.7

7
8

N
/A

0
7

/0
1

/2
3

-0
6

/3
0

/2
4

N
/A

5
6

9
   

   
   

   
  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
5

6
9

   
   

   
   

  
5

6
9

   
   

   
   

  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
T

o
ta

l M
e

d
ic

a
id

 C
lu

st
e

r
5

6
9

   
   

   
   

  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

5
6

9
   

   
   

   
  

5
6

9
   

   
   

   
  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

T
O

T
A

L
 U

.S
. D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
 O

F
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 H
U

M
A

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

5
6

9
   

   
   

   
  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
5

6
9

   
   

   
   

  
5

6
9

   
   

   
   

  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

U
.S

. D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

 O
F

 A
G

R
IC

U
L

T
U

R
E

T
e

a
m

 N
u

tr
iti

o
n

 G
ra

n
ts

D
1

0
.5

7
4

N
/A

1
1

/0
1

/1
1

-1
1

/0
1

/1
5

1
,0

0
0

   
   

   
 

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
(1

,0
0

0
)

   
   

   
 

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

(1
,0

0
0

)
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

P
a

ss
e

d
 th

ro
u

g
h

 th
e

 P
e

n
n

sy
lv

a
n

ia
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t o

f 
E

d
u

ca
tio

n
:

C
O

V
ID

-1
9

 N
S

L
P

-S
u

p
p

ly
 C

h
a

in
 A

ss
is

ta
n

ce
I

1
0

.5
5

5
N

/A
0

7
/0

1
/2

2
-0

6
/3

0
/2

3
4

8
,1

7
2

   
   

 
(6

,1
4

7
)

   
   

   
 

6
,1

4
7

   
   

   
  

6
,1

4
7

   
   

   
  

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
O

V
ID

-1
9

 N
S

L
P

-S
u

p
p

ly
 C

h
a

in
 A

ss
is

ta
n

ce
I

1
0

.5
5

5
N

/A
0

7
/0

1
/2

3
-0

6
/3

0
/2

4
4

0
,8

2
9

   
   

 
4

0
,8

2
9

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

4
0

,8
2

9
   

   
   

4
0

,8
2

9
   

   
   

N
a

tio
n

a
l S

ch
o

o
l L

u
n

ch
 P

ro
g

ra
m

I
1

0
.5

5
5

N
/A

0
7

/0
1

/2
2

-0
6

/3
0

/2
3

N
/A

3
4

,1
9

6
   

   
   

3
4

,1
9

6
   

   
   

N
a

tio
n

a
l S

ch
o

o
l L

u
n

ch
 P

ro
g

ra
m

I
1

0
.5

5
5

N
/A

0
7

/0
1

/2
3

-0
6

/3
0

/2
4

N
/A

6
5

1
,2

2
8

   
   

6
7

7
,2

8
1

   
   

6
7

7
,2

8
1

   
   

2
6

,0
5

3
   

   
   

P
a

ss
e

d
 th

ro
u

g
h

 th
e

 P
e

n
n

sy
lv

a
n

ia
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t o

f 
A

g
ric

u
ltu

re
:

   
N

a
tio

n
a

l S
ch

o
o

l L
u

n
ch

 P
ro

g
ra

m
I

1
0

.5
5

5
N

/A
0

7
/0

1
/2

3
-0

6
/3

0
/2

4
N

/A
(a

)
1

3
2

,9
2

0
   

   
(b

)
(4

4
0

)
   

   
   

   
 

1
3

2
,5

5
5

   
   

(c
)

1
3

2
,5

5
5

   
   

(d
)

(8
0

5
)

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
T

o
ta

l N
a

tio
n

a
l S

ch
o

o
l L

u
n

ch
 P

ro
g

ra
m

8
5

9
,1

7
3

   
   

2
7

,6
0

9
   

   
   

8
5

6
,8

1
2

   
   

8
5

6
,8

1
2

   
   

2
5

,2
4

8
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

P
a

ss
e

d
 th

ro
u

g
h

 th
e

 P
e

n
n

sy
lv

a
n

ia
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t o

f 
E

d
u

ca
tio

n
:

   
S

ch
o

o
l B

re
a

kf
a

st
 P

ro
g

ra
m

I
1

0
.5

5
3

N
/A

0
7

/0
1

/2
2

-0
6

/3
0

/2
3

N
/A

1
1

,5
1

5
   

   
   

1
1

,5
1

5
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
S

ch
o

o
l B

re
a

kf
a

st
 P

ro
g

ra
m

I
1

0
.5

5
3

N
/A

0
7

/0
1

/2
3

-0
6

/3
0

/2
4

N
/A

2
0

0
,8

0
1

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
2

0
9

,2
1

1
   

   
2

0
9

,2
1

1
   

   
8

,4
1

0
   

   
   

  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

   
T

o
ta

l S
ch

o
o

l B
re

a
kf

a
st

 P
ro

g
ra

m
2

1
2

,3
1

6
   

   
1

1
,5

1
5

   
   

   
2

0
9

,2
1

1
   

   
2

0
9

,2
1

1
   

   
8

,4
1

0
   

   
   

  
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

   
T

o
ta

l C
h

ild
 N

u
tr

iti
o

n
 C

lu
st

e
r

1
,0

7
1

,4
8

9
   

3
9

,1
2

4
   

   
   

1
,0

6
6

,0
2

3
   

1
,0

6
6

,0
2

3
   

3
3

,6
5

8
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
C

O
V

ID
-1

9
 S

ta
te

 P
a

n
d

e
m

ic
 E

le
ct

ro
n

ic
 B

e
n

e
fit

 T
ra

n
sf

e
r 

A
d

m
in

. C
o

st
s 

G
ra

n
t

I
1

0
.6

4
9

N
/A

0
7

/0
1

/2
3

-0
6

/3
0

/2
4

3
,2

5
6

3
,2

5
6

   
   

   
  

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
3

,2
5

6
   

   
   

  
3

,2
5

6
   

   
   

  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

T
O

T
A

L
 U

.S
. D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
 O

F
 A

G
R

IC
U

L
T

U
R

E
1

,0
7

4
,7

4
5

   
3

8
,1

2
4

   
   

   
1

,0
6

9
,2

7
9

   
1

,0
6

9
,2

7
9

   
3

2
,6

5
8

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

T
O

T
A

L
 F

E
D

E
R

A
L

 A
W

A
R

D
S

 
3

,5
0

1
,7

0
5

$
 

1
,1

4
1

,5
0

5
$

  
2

,5
1

2
,8

7
3

$
 

2
,5

1
2

,8
7

3
$

 
1

5
2

,6
7

3
$

   
 

  
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

S
O

U
R

C
E

 C
O

D
E

S
:

N
/A

  -
  N

o
t a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

D
   

  -
  D

ire
ct

 F
u

n
d

in
g

I  
   

  -
  I

n
d

ire
ct

 F
u

n
d

in
g

L
O

Y
A

L
S

O
C

K
 T

O
W

N
S

H
IP

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 O
F

 E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
 O

F
 F

E
D

E
R

A
L

 A
W

A
R

D
S

F
O

R
 T

H
E

 Y
E

A
R

 E
N

D
E

D
 J

U
N

E
 3

0
, 2

0
2

4

- 
5

5
 -

(a
) 

 T
o

ta
l a

m
o

u
n

t o
f 

co
m

m
o

d
iti

e
s 

re
ce

iv
e

d
.

(b
) 

 B
e

g
in

n
in

g
 in

ve
n

to
ry

 a
t J

u
ly

 1
, 2

0
2

3
.

(c
) 

 T
o

ta
l a

m
o

u
n

t o
f 

co
m

m
o

d
iti

e
s 

u
se

d
. 

(d
) 

 E
n

d
in

g
 in

ve
n

to
ry

 a
t J

u
n

e
 3

0
, 2

0
2

4
.

S
e

e
 N

o
te

s 
to

 S
ch

e
d

u
le

 o
f 

E
xp

e
n

d
itu

re
s 

o
f 

F
e

d
e

ra
l A

w
a

rd
s

F
O

O
T

N
O

T
E

S
:

P
a

ss
-T

h
ro

u
g

h
G

ra
n

t P
e

rio
d

R
e

ve
n

u
e

A
cc

ru
e

d
R

e
ce

iv
e

d
(U

n
e

a
rn

e
d

)
(U

n
e

a
rn

e
d

)
R

e
ve

n
u

e
F

o
r

R
e

ve
n

u
e

T
o

ta
l

A
cc

ru
e

d

G
ra

n
t

C
o

d
e

N
u

m
b

e
r

S
o

u
rc

e
G

ra
n

t
B

e
g

in
n

in
g

/
F

e
d

e
ra

l
A

ss
is

ta
n

ce
 L

is
tin

g
R

e
co

g
n

iz
e

d
E

xp
e

n
d

itu
re

s
Ju

n
e

 3
0

, 2
0

2
4

A
m

o
u

n
t

N
u

m
b

e
r

E
n

d
in

g
 D

a
te

T
h

e
 Y

e
a

r
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
0

2
3



 

- 56 - 

LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 
 
1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION: 
 
 The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (Schedule) includes the 

federal award activity of Loyalsock Township School District (District) under programs of 
the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2024.  The information in this 
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Because the 
Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the District, it is not 
intended to be and does not present the financial position, changes in net position, or 
cash flows of the District.  Some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from 
amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the financial statements. 

 
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 
 
 Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  

Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform 
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to 
reimbursement. 

 
3.  INDIRECT COST ALLOCATION PLAN: 
 
 The District has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under 

the Uniform Guidance. 



- 57-

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of School Directors
Loyalsock Township School District
Williamsport, Pennsylvania:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, 
the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and
each major fund, of Loyalsock Township School District (District), as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the District’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated
March 4, 2025.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the 
District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing 
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material 
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.  We identified a 
certain deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings 
and questioned costs as item 2024-001 that we consider to be a material weakness.



- 58-

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.  However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards.

District’s Response to Finding

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the 
District’s response to the finding identified in our audit and described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs.  The District’s response was not subjected to 
the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part 
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable 
for any other purpose.

Montoursville, Pennsylvania
March 4, 2025



- 59 -

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR

PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of School Directors
Loyalsock Township School District
Williamsport, Pennsylvania:

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Major Federal Program

We have audited Loyalsock Township School District’s (District) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that 
could have a direct and material effect on the District’s major federal program for the year 
ended June 30, 2024.  The District’s major federal program is identified in the summary of 
auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for 
the year ended June 30, 2024.

Basis for Opinion on Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained 
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance).  Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are 
further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our 
report.

We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, 
in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.  We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on 
compliance for the major federal program.  Our audit does not provide a legal determination of 
the District’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the 
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant 
agreements applicable to the District’s federal programs.



 

- 60 - 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with 
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and 
express an opinion on the District’s compliance based on our audit.  Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government 
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when 
it exists.  The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for 
that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  Noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of 
the report on compliance about the District’s compliance with the requirements of its major 
federal program as a whole. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government 
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we: 
 
 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 
 Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.  Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the District’s compliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. 

 
 Obtain an understanding of the District’s internal control over compliance relevant to the 

audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to 
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
District’s internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material 
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.   
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed 
to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance.  Given these limitations, during 
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we 



- 61 -

consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.  However, material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose.

Montoursville, Pennsylvania
March 4, 2025



 

- 62 - 

LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 
 
SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS 
 
Financial Statements 
 
Type of auditors’ report issued on whether 
the financial statements audited were prepared 
in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified opinion. 
 
Internal control over financial reporting: 
 Material weakness(es) identified?      x  yes        no 
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified 

 that are not considered to be material 
 weaknesses?        yes      x  no 

Noncompliance material to financial statements 
noted?   yes      x  no 
 
Federal Awards 
 
Internal control over major programs: 
 Material weakness(es) identified?        yes      x  no 
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified 

 that are not considered to be material 
 weakness(es)?        yes      x  none reported 
 
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major federal programs:  Unmodified 
opinion. 
 
Any audit findings disclosed that are 
required to be reported under 2 CFR 
section 200.516(a)?        yes      x  no 
 
Identification of major federal programs: 
 
Assistance Listing Number Name of Federal Program 
 

10.553/10.555 Child Nutrition Cluster
 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between type A and type B programs: $750,000 
 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?      x  yes    no 



LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

- 63 - 

SECTION II - FINDINGS RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT AS 
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED 
AUDITING STANDARDS AND GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
2024-001.    MISCLASSIFICATIONS 
 

Criteria:  Revenues and expenses should be accurately classified in the accounting 
records. 

 
 Condition:  The District incorrectly posted expense reimbursements to revenue 

accounts.  
 
 Cause:  The District’s year end closing procedures did not identify the 

misclassification. 
 
 Effect:  Custodial Funds revenues and expenses were overstated by $8,990. 
 
 Questioned Costs:  Not applicable. 
 
 Perspective Information:  Not applicable. 
 
 Identification of Repeat Findings:  Not applicable. 
 
 Recommendation:  The individuals who prepare and review year end closing 

procedures should ensure revenues and expenses are accurately classified. 
 
 Views of Responsible Officials:  Management agrees with the finding. 
 
 Planned Corrective Action:  See District’s corrective action plan. 
 
 
SECTION III - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS 
 
 None  reported. 
 



2025 Graduate List 
 

Dawn Dzifa Agbemabiese 
Davyn Joshua Allis 

Jackson Thomas Alvarado 
Evan Bradley Anderson 
Aniya Marie Andreacci 
Kaeden Allen Badger 
Fiona Grace Baker 

Sydney Love Bigelow 
Mallory Danielle Biichle 

Ezra Keegan Black 
Zachariah Charles Blackwell 

Kamell Anthony Blount 
Julia Lee Breon 

Kendall Elizabeth Brouse 
Rylie Patricia Brown 

Jordyn Sierra Buffington 
Zachary Thomas Burkhart 

Isabel Mae Butters 
Benjamin Norbert Cappel 
Lilyonna Elizabeth Clarke 

Kendall Adisyn Cohick 
Isaiah James Dance 

McKenna Paige Daniels 
Briar Ashlin Daugherty 
Jacob Walter Edmonds 

Julia Marie Ellis 
Julianna Kathleen Ellis 

Dakota James Fluck 
Mackenzie Mae Fox 

Lena Hazel Frederick 
Jenine Amer Ghayyada 
Merek James Goyette 

Gabriel Jay Greenaway 
Gavin Joseph Grieco 
Riley Robert Guthrie 

Samantha Evelyn Hauke 
Preston Isaac Heiser 

Luke Edward Helminiak 
Brianna Paige Helmrich 

Leah Marie Hill 
LaMiyah Kiara Reva Jamison 

Isiah Charles Jennings 
John Kenneth Kiehl 
Riley Nikole Kinsley 
Ruby Breslyn Klowas 

Lacey Angelina Kriebel 
Deryk Michael Kulp 

Anthony Terrizaar Lewis 
Julia Barbara Malek 

 
Trenton Maddison Mazzullo 

Hakeem Davere McClain 

Summer A R McClemons 
Ameerah Denise McCrae 

Michael Angelo Theodore Mercaldo 
Sofia Elle Mileto 
Ava Raye Miller 

Chase Michael Miller 
Connor James Moyer 

Lauren Elizabeth O'Malley 
Maria Ann Pardoe 

Aadi Jaiminbhai Patel 
Colby Lane Peters 

Blake Joshua Phillips 
Kenzie Nicole Phillips 

Abigail Grace Pietraski 
Lila Josephine Pinsky 
Cadyn William Plank 

Landen Anthoney Ransom-Rennicks 
Brian Jay Robbins 

Dani Nikole Robertson 
Kinley Paige Rodarmel 

Emma Laura Roman 
Aleaya Alyssabeth Saar 
Jack Cooper Sargent 
Brycen Adam Savoy 

Luke Gregory Cleveland Severn 
Ethan Stuart Simpson 
Caidence Nicole Smith 

Jayceon Tymek Sajmair Smith 
Finnegan Will Stetts 
Chase Joseph Stevens 
Mallory Grace Storm 

Cheyanne Maria Tedesco 
Morgan Elle Temple 

Ashton James Tompkins 
Lucy Rose Tripp 

Jaydn Lee Wagner 
Alex Michael Wagner-Pizza 
Logan Matthew Wanamaker 

Michael Corey Weaver 
Isaiah Luke West 

Dominic Simone White 
Adara Margaret Whitehead 

Juliana Michele Willis 
Adam Lee Winder 

Blake Mathas Wolfgong 
Chase Aaron Wright 



Loyalsock Township School District 
1605 Four Mile Drive 

Williamsport, PA 17701 
(570) 326-6508 

Fax:  (570) 326-0770 
 
 
 

2025 Summer Custodial/Maintenance Staff 
$14.00/hour 

 
 

  

All staff must submit all necessary 
 documentation prior to working. 

 

Allyia  Kennedy 

Lyndie  Peters 

*Blake Phillips 

Gianna Rupert 

 
 
*New for 2025 Summer Staff 
Current employees may serve as summer custodial/maintenance staff and will be compensated at the summer 
custodial/maintenance staff rate. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Quantity Unit Item # Description of Item Unit Price Total Price Price/Sport
Boys Basketball - Varsity

6 Brute Heavy Duty Nylon Nets 2.32$       13.92$     

24 Reversible Practice Jerseys "Lancer Basketball" both sides

Maroon/White #s1-5, 10, 12, 13, 14, 15, 20, 22

23, 24, 25, 30, 32, 34, 35, 40, 42, 44, 50, 52

3 Small, 10 Med, 11Lg 19.60$     470.40$   

1
18-ball carrier, 3 rows of 6 balls, Maroon Colored Metal, 
"Lancers" on end 478.00$   478.00$   

Total: 962.32$       

Boys Soccer - Varsity
3 ea A1008228 Adidas Stadium II Team Glove Bag 15.72$      47.16$      

2 24pk  A1104327 Nike Academy Team Soccer Ball - 24pk 401.28$    802.56$    

Total: 849.72$       

Girls/Boys Track & Field
5 700261 Maroon Pole Vault Grip Tape 11.57$      57.85$      

3 6082-01 Two Shot Carrier 4.84$        14.52$      

3 6081-12 Shot/Discus Carrier w/ Strap 4.84$        14.52$      

1 Blue Athletic Tape 81.97$      81.97$      

2 7233-25 8" Wide Composite Board 182.57$    365.14$    

Total: 534.00$       

Cross Country
1 Case (12) SKU 1460342 Dura Stripe Course Marking Paint 74.97$     74.97$     

Total: 74.97$         

Volleyball
1 Tandem Sport Blocking Pad 73.04$      73.04$      

Total: 73.04$         

2,494.05$    

LTSD Athletic Bids 2025-2026
BSN

Total BSN:



Quantity Unit Item # Description of Item Unit Price Total Price Price/Sport
Girls/Boys Track & Field

3 3417-05 Smart Hurdle 72.00$      216.00$     

456 7241-00 12 'x 38' Maroon  Vinyl Pit Cover 4.65$        2,119.00$  

Total: 2,335.00$   

2,335.00$   

LTSD Athletic Bids 2025-2026
MF ATHLETIC

MF ATHLETIC TOTAL:



Quantity Unit Item # Description of Item Unit Price Total Price Price/Sport
Baseball

12 New Helmets 32.95$        395.40$        
10 Game Balls 91.98$        919.80$        

Total: 1,315.20$   
Girls Softball - Varsity

3 Dozen 43147
Dudley Thunder Heat PIAA Softball (NFHS Leather 
Game Balls) $91.98 $275.94

6 DozenSKU DU-43068YD
Dudley 12 inch ZN Fastpitch Practice Softballs 47-375 
No Logo $69.99 $419.94

Total: 695.88$       

Girls Softball - JH

3 Dozen 43147
Dudley Thunder Heat PIAA Softball (NFHS Leather 
Game Balls) 91.98$    275.94$    

6 DozenSKU DU-43068YD
Dudley 12 inch ZN Fastpitch Practice Softballs 47-375 
No Logo 69.99$    419.94$    

Total: 695.88$       

Boys Basketball - Varsity

2
Sportsmans or MarkV Basketball Scorebook - MUST BE 
UPDATED VERSION WITH 5 FOULS PER QUARTER 3.89$       7.78$        

Total: 7.78$           

Boys Basketball - JH

3
Sportsmans or MarkV Basketball Scorebook - MUST BE 
UPDATED VERSION WITH 5 FOULS PER QUARTER 3.89$       11.67$      

Total: 11.67$         

Girls Basketball - Varsity

2 1471258
Mark V or Sportsmans Scorebooks - Must be updated with 5 
fouls per quarter 3.89$          7.78$            

2 1405765 Basketball Whiteboards 11.88$        23.76$          
Total: 31.54$         

Girls Basketball - JH

2 1471258
Mark V or Sportsmans Scorebooks - Must be updated with 5 
fouls per quarter 3.89$          7.78$            

Total: 7.78$           

Girls/Boys Tennis
4 case Item # 30139 Wilson Champon Tennis balls 86.16$        344.64$        

Total: 344.64$       

Volleyball
5 Tachikara SV-5WSC in Cardinal/White 29.95$        149.75$        

Total: 149.75$       

3,260.12$   

LTSD Athletic Bids 2025-2026
Pyramid School Products

Total Pyramid School 
Products:



Quantity Unit Item # Description of Item Unit Price Total Price Price/Sport
Baseball

72 Practice Baseballs 4.40$         316.80$       

1 Baseball Scorebook 3.20$        3.20$           
Total: 320.00$           

Softball - Varsity

2 SKU 1471557
12x6 Batting Mat Pro W/Inlaid Home Plate - 
Green 395.00$   790.00$      

Total: 790.00$           

Softball - JH

1 SKU 1471557 12x6 Batting Mat Pro W/Inlaid Home Plate - Clay 395.00$   395.00$      
Total: 395.00$           

Boys Basketball - Varsity

15
Wilson Boys Basketball - NCAA EVO NXT 
WZ1003301XB7 87.20$      1,308.00$   

7

Nike 1/4 Zip Coaching Shirts - Maroon with Columbia 
Blue Print "Loyalsock Basketball" on left chest; 2 
Large, 3XL, 1XXL, 1XXXL 54.40$      380.80$      

2 Slipp-Nott Replacement Sheets 31.95$      63.90$        

24 Reversible Practice Jerseys "Lancer Basketball" both sides

Maroon/White #s1-5, 10, 12, 13, 14, 15, 20, 22

23, 24, 25, 30, 32, 34, 35, 40, 42, 44, 50, 52

3 Small, 10 Med, 11Lg 19.60$      470.40$      

1
18-ball carrier, 3 rows of 6 balls, Maroon Colored 
Metal, "Lancers" on end 478.00$   478.00$      

Total: 2,701.10$        

Boys Basketball - JH
1 Slipp-Nott Replacement Sheets 31.95$      31.95$        

10 Reversible Practice Jerseys "Lancer Hoops" both sides

Maroon/Blue #s 1, 2, 5, 8, 9, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15 27.80$      278.00$      
White T-shirts with "Lancer Basketball" in carolina blue 
print

12 medium; 10 larges; 3 XL 6.75$        168.75$      
1 Hand Placement Ball 27.50$      27.50$        
1 Dummy Defender 94.40$      94.40$        
1 15-ball Stable Ball Rack 52.95$      52.96$        

Total: 653.56$           

Girls Basketball - Varsity
12 WZ1003301XB6 PIAA Basketball: NCAA EVO NXT 87.20$       1,046.40$     

1 1298680 Slipp-Nott Replacement Sheets (Small) 31.95$       31.95$         

Total: 1,078.35$        

Girls Basketball - JH
2  00860009678910 USU Weighted Basketball (Size 6) 29.90$       59.80$         

Total: 59.80$             

Boys Soccer - Varsity/JH

5 ea WS1001401XB05
PIAA Specific Game Ball - Wilson Vivido NFHS 
Official Match Soccer Ball 82.75$       413.75$       

Total: 413.75$           

LTSD Athletic Bids 2025-2026
Sportsman's

25



Girls Soccer - Varsity/JH

1 1461777 Select Club DB  ball pack - 20 Balls and 2 Duffel Bags 428.00$     428.00$       

30 Adidas maroon socks 6.00$         186.00$       

30 Adidas white socks 6.00$         186.00$       

1
Select Club DB  ball pack - 20 Balls and 2 Duffel Bags 
- BLUE size 4 428.00$     428.00$       

Total: 1,228.00$        

Football - Varsity

30 HS/MS 1003
Official PIAA Football Wilson GST (Branded W/LT 
LOGO in color, not letters) 97.90$       2,937.00$     

200 HS/MS Mouthguards (Maroon or Carolina Blue) 0.39$         78.00$         

24 HS/MS Helmet Pinnies (Yellow) 2.75$         66.00$         

Total: 3,081.00$        

Football - JH
20 MS NSP-FPAU19-AS SPECIFIED Maroon Integrated Football Pants (5 S, 10 M, 5 L) 22.10$       442.00$       

Total: 442.00$           

Girls/Boys Track & Field
2 6121-1.6 First Place Discus Blue 29.90$       59.80$         

1 6120-1.6 First Place Discus Red 32.40$       32.40$         

2 7012-100 Economy Tape Measure- 100' 8.20$         16.40$         

2 7012-165 Economy Tape Measure- 165' 13.50$       27.00$         

1 6601-05 Foam Hurdle Pad (Set of 5) 94.50$       94.50$         

Total: 230.10$           

Cross Country

7 1 1714291 Men's Warm up Jackets (3 small, 3 mediums, 1 large) 29.90$       209.30$       

7 2 2071161
Women's Warm Up Jackets (4 small, 2 medium, 1 
large) 29.90$       209.30$       

Total: 418.60$           

Volleyball
1 Scorebook 4.40$         4.40$           

1 Portable shoe traction pad 114.80$     114.80$       

Total: 119.20$           

11,930.46$      Total Sportsman's:



Vendor Address Total Cost

BSN Sports PO Box 49, Jenkintown, PA 19046 2,494.05$                         

M-F Athletic 1600 Division Road, West Warwick, RI 02893 $2,335.00

Pyramid School Products 6510 N 54th Street, Tampa, FL 33610-1908 $3,260.12

Riddell Sales 7501 Performance Lane, North Ridgeville, OH 44039 $0.00

Sportman's 829 Horner Street, Johnstown, PA 15902 11,930.46$                       

SV Sports.com 38 N. West End Blvd. Quakertown, PA 18951 $0.00

TOTAL 20,019.63$                      

LTSD Athletic Bids 2025-2026
Costs by Vendor



Sport Total Cost
Baseball 1,635.20$                                    

Boys Basketball-JH 665.23$                                       

Boys Basketball-Varsity 3,671.20$                                    

Cheerleading -$                                              

Cross Country 493.57$                                       

Football 3,523.00$                                    

Girls Basketball-JH 67.58$                                          

Girls Basketball-Varsity 1,109.89$                                    

Golf -$                                              

Boys Soccer-Varsity & JH 1,263.47$                                    

Girls Soccer-Varsity & JH 1,228.00$                                    

Softball-Varsity 1,485.88$                                    

Softball-JH 1,090.88$                                    

Boys/Girls Tennis 344.64$                                       

Boys/Girls Track & Field 3,099.10$                                    

Wrestling -$                                              

Volleyball 341.99$                                       

TOTAL 20,019.63$                                  

LTSD Athletic Bids 2025-2026
Costs per Sport



Quote Number: 2006

4/15/2025

2006 LOYALSOCK TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT I PLAY MEDIA CENTER

Loyalsock Township School District Loyalsock Township School District
1605 Four Mile Drive 2800 FOUR MILE DR
WILLIAMSPORT PA 17701 MONTOURSVILLE PA 17754

DAN EGLY
570.916.3356
degly@ltsd.k12.pa.us

Terms
Quote ValidAccount Execu ve

JAYME RHOADSPlease Make PO Out To:

STS INNOVATIVE INTERIORS
415 W. THIRD ST.

WILLIAMSPORT, PA 17701

814.574.0374 Reference Contract #
JRHOADS@STSINNOVATES.COM

CO STARS

ITEM # IMAGE PRODUCT NUMBER/DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE

***NOTICE*** 1 Ea. $0.00 $0.001
Tariffs & Pricing Impact Tariffs are determined by manufacturers
based on factors such as sourcing, locaƟon, and trade policies. As
these tariffs are beyond our control, any applicable tariff adjustments
imposed by manufacturers will be reflected in final pricing at the
Ɵme of order. We will communicate any significant changes promptly
to ensure transparency in pricing.

ARTCOBELL
D10B 44 Ea. $50.77 $2,233.882
Discover, 4L Chair, 16", A/B Shell
3
4
B

Nylon Glides
Titanium
Burgundy

ARTCOBELL
DSLP-4AAP.3.4 6 Ea. $96.43 $578.583
22" - 34" Adjustable Legs, 4-Legs, Nylon glide, Titanium/Chrome

ARTCOBELL
DTLP-4ATP.3.4 13 Ea. $116.48 $1,514.244
19"-29" Adjustable Legs, 4-Pack, Nylon glide, Titanium/Chrome

Page 1 of 8



ARTCOBELL
TA-CPMS50T4 19 Ea. $31.57 $599.835
Locking | 4-Pack | 50mm NEXT MOV Caster for DTT

ARTCOBELL
DST-KT3032E 6 Ea. $123.31 $739.866
Shape SD-Top, Kite, 3/4" Core, Banded Flat Edge (Legs and casters
must be specified separately).
1
WF
4
Adjustable
DSLP-4AAP
TA-CPMS50T4
4

Premium Laminates
Folkstone Markerboard
Titanium
Adjustable
22" - 34" Table-Height Post Legs
50mm NXT MOV Casters
Titanium/Chrome

ARTCOBELL
DTT-3P3060E 3 Ea. $435.63 $1,306.897
Shape Tbl Top, 3P120, Lam-Banded Flat Edge (Legs and casters must
be specified separately).
1
WF
4
Adjustable
DTLP-4ATP
TA-CPMS50T4
4

Premium Laminates
Folkstone Markerboard
Titanium
Adjustable
19" - 29" Table-Height Legs
50mm NXT MOV Caster
Titanium/Chrome

ARTCOBELL
DTT-HR48E 4 Ea. $225.71 $902.848
Shape Tbl Top, Half Round, 48, Lam-Banded Flat Edge (Legs and
casters must be specified separately).
1
WF
4
Adjustable
DTLP-4ATP
TA-CPMS50T4
4

Premium Laminates
Folkstone Markerboard
Titanium
Adjustable
19" - 29" Table-Height Legs
50mm NXT MOV Caster
Titanium/Chrome

ARTCOBELL
DTT-RC2448E 2 Ea. $212.48 $424.969
Shape Tbl Top, Rectangle, 24x48, Lam-Banded Flat Edge (Legs and
casters must be specified separately).
1
WF
4
Adjustable
DTLP-4ATP
TA-CPMS50T4
4

Premium Laminates
Folkstone Markerboard
Titanium
Adjustable
19" - 29" Table-Height Legs
50mm NXT MOV Caster
Titanium/Chrome

Page 2 of 8



ARTCOBELL
DTT-SQ42E 2 Ea. $258.13 $516.2610
Shape Tbl Top, Square, 42x42, Lam-Banded Flat Edge (Legs and
casters must be specified separately).
1
WF
4
Adjustable
DTLP-4ATP
TA-CPMS50T4
4

Premium Laminates
Folkstone Markerboard
Titanium
Adjustable
19" - 29" Table-Height Legs
50mm NXT MOV Caster
Titanium/Chrome

FOMCORE
F008-94X18X16-G1 1 Ea. $1,906.67 $1,906.6711
Bump Bench, 94"Lx18"Wx16"H, 1"Glide
A-000100
GR1
-
SIL
SPR_SILVERTEX-RASPB
--
SIL
SPR_SILVERTEX-RASPB
~
~

Felt Glide
Grade-1
Seat
Grade-1 (Silvertex Neo)
Raspberry
Side
Grade-1 (Silvertex Neo)
Raspberry
No Embroidery
No CAL 133 Fire Retardant

FOMCORE
F008-94X18X16-G1 1 Ea. $1,906.67 $1,906.6712
Bump Bench, 94"Lx18"Wx16"H, 1"Glide
A-000100
GR1
-
SIL
SPR_SILVERTEX-RASPB
--
SIL
SPR_SILVERTEX-RASPB
~
~

Felt Glide
Grade-1
Seat
Grade-1 (Silvertex Neo)
Raspberry
Side
Grade-1 (Silvertex Neo)
Raspberry
No Embroidery
No CAL 133 Fire Retardant

FOMCORE
F019-67X31X33-G1 1 Ea. $2,026.67 $2,026.6713
Linear Sofa,67"Lx31"Wx33"H,Seat height 16",1"Glides
A-000100
GR1
-
SIL
SPR_SILVERTEX-RASPB
--
SIL
SPR_SILVERTEX-RASPB
~
~

Felt Glide
Grade-1
Seat
Grade-1 (Silvertex Neo)
Raspberry
Back
Grade-1 (Silvertex Neo)
Raspberry
No Embroidery
No CAL 133 Fire Retardant

Page 3 of 8



FOMCORE
FK010-18X16X20-Z 1 Ea. $762.67 $762.6714
Dragon Head, 18"Lx16"Wx20"H,Zippered
GR1
-
SIL
SPR_SILVERTEX-LAGOO
--
SIL
SPR_SILVERTEX-LAGOO
1 EMB
~

Grade-1
Center
Grade-1 (Silvertex Neo)
Lagoon
Side
Grade-1 (Silvertex Neo)
Lagoon
1 Embroidery (Further specified by MFG)
No CAL 133 Fire Retardant

FOMCORE
FK011-28X16X18-Z 1 Ea. $533.33 $533.3315
Dragon Spine, 28"Lx16"Wx18"H,Zippered
GR1
-
SIL
SPR_SILVERTEX-LAGOO
--
SIL
SPR_SILVERTEX-LAGOO
1 EMB
~

Grade-1
Center
Grade-1 (Silvertex Neo)
Lagoon
Side
Grade-1 (Silvertex Neo)
Lagoon
1 Embroidery (Further specified by MFG)
No CAL 133 Fire Retardant

FOMCORE
FK012-20X16X14-Z 1 Ea. $304.00 $304.0016
Dragon Arc, 20"Lx16"Wx14"H,Zippered
GR1
-
SIL
SPR_SILVERTEX-LAGOO
--
SIL
SPR_SILVERTEX-LAGOO
1 EMB
~

Grade-1
Center
Grade-1 (Silvertex Neo)
Lagoon
Side
Grade-1 (Silvertex Neo)
Lagoon
1 Embroidery (Further specified by MFG)
No CAL 133 Fire Retardant

FOMCORE
FK013-14.5X16X18-Z 1 Ea. $304.00 $304.0017
Dragon Tail, 14.5"Lx16"Wx18"H,Zippered
GR1
-
SIL
SPR_SILVERTEX-LAGOO
--
SIL
SPR_SILVERTEX-LAGOO
1 EMB
~

Grade-1
Center
Grade-1 (Silvertex Neo)
Lagoon
Side
Grade-1 (Silvertex Neo)
Lagoon
1 Embroidery (Further specified by MFG)
No CAL 133 Fire Retardant

Subtotal for $16,561.35

Page 4 of 8



ITEM # IMAGE PRODUCT NUMBER/DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE

ZSERVICES

FREIGHT 1 Ea. $1,578.00 $1,578.0018
ARTCOBELL FREIGHT

INSTALLATION 1 Ea. $1,248.00 $1,248.0019
Delivery & InstallaƟon During Normal Business Hours

Subtotal for ZSERVICES $2,826.00

$19,387.35SUBTOTAL SELL

Approved By: GRAND TOTAL $19,387.35
Date:

Thank you for choosing STS Innovative Interiors.  We appreciate your business!

COSTARTS 035-E22-183
Any specificaƟons, concepts, and designs included with this proposal, are and shall remain the property of STS InnovaƟve Interiors. They shall be used only for the
specific project for which they have been prepared. Without the prior wriƩen authorizaƟon of STS InnovaƟve Interiors, they shall not be copied, disclosed to third
parƟes, used to perform, or complete this project by others, or used in connecƟon with any work or project other than the specific project for which they have been
prepared.

Page 5 of 8



TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SALE

Signature of Proposal, Sales Agreement, or receipt of Purchase Order binds client to the following terms and condiƟons. *Any federal, state or other special terms with STS
InnovaƟve Interiors, supersede these terms and condiƟons where applicable.

PRICES AND QUOTES: Prices and/or quotes for all products and services are good for thirty (30) days from the date of the iniƟal proposal, unless otherwise stated.

DEPOSITS / PAYMENT TERMS: New customers without credit approval are required to pay 100% before order placement. If credit approval is established, we require a 50%
deposit on all orders before order placement unless otherwise approved by accounƟng. Balance due in full Net 30. When a punch list is established, the customer is responsible
for paying 90% of the invoice and may hold back 10% unƟl the punch is complete. Upon compleƟon of the punch, the customer is responsible for paying the remaining balance
within 15 days.

CREDIT CARD PAYMENTS: We accept Visa, MasterCard, Discover, and American Express. A credit card processing fee of 3% will be charged with Discover and America Express.

PURCHASE ORDERS: Original copies of purchase orders should be sent to the seller, not to the manufacturer directly. The seller’s address and sales contact informaƟon are
printed on all quotes and proposals.

CHANGES / CANCELLATIONS: Quick-ship and special orders cannot be cancelled and are not returnable or refundable. Are sales are considered final once the following occurs; a
quote/proposal is signed, a deposit payment is received, or a purchase order is received. Any modificaƟon to the final proposal requires the creaƟon of a new signed proposal.

ESTIMATED DELIVERY TIME: EsƟmates are provided to the customer as a convenience based on the seller’s experience. No representaƟon or guarantee is made that the product
will in fact be available and/or delivered on any specific date.

INSTALLATION AND DELIVERY: Delivery Only: The seller receives and delivers the product to the customer’s locaƟon unassembled. InstallaƟon: The seller receives, delivers,
assembles, and installs the product at the customer’s locaƟon.

It is the customer’s responsibility to have a company representaƟve on site for inspecƟon of the delivered and/or installed product and sign delivery documents. The seller
relinquishes responsibility for the product to the end user at the Ɵme of delivery. If the seller is to deliver and install products, normal delivery Ɵme and installaƟon hours are
8:00 am to 5:00 pm Monday through Friday. Delivery and installaƟon performed at your request at hours other than those previously stated shall incur an addiƟonal charge.

Customer agrees to keep all delivery and installaƟon areas clean and free of debris so as not to inhibit safe and successful delivery and/or installaƟon of your products. A working
elevator must always be available in any building with mulƟple floors. AddiƟonal fees shall be incurred if elevators are not operaƟng at the Ɵme of delivery and installaƟon. Any
product that does not fit in the elevator and requires stair carry shall be at the expense of the client.

DAMAGES / CLAIMS: AŌer arrival at the delivery site, any loss or damage caused by weather or other trades or customer’s personnel shall be the responsibility of the customer.
The customer must noƟfy the seller in wriƟng of any claim for damages to goods within three days of delivery. In the event of damage, the seller reserves the right to repair
damaged products to the customer’s saƟsfacƟon or replace the product as appropriate to resolve the issue.

DROP SHIP DELIVERIES: Drop Ship: Product is directly shipped from the manufacturing facility to the customer’s locaƟon. Upon delivery the customer should examine the product
carefully. If there is any evidence of damage or shortage in transit, the customer shall require that the delivering carrier make the appropriate notaƟon on the freight bill before
signing it. If concealed damage is discovered aŌer receipt of shipment, the customer shall immediately noƟfy the carrier. Any claim for damages or shortage in transit must be
filed with the delivering carrier. The seller will not accept returns of merchandise damaged in transit. The customer’s recourse is with the delivering carrier.

 DELAYS / STORAGE: If delivery cannot be made as scheduled due to condiƟons imposed by the customer, the customer will be quoted and will pay any applicable warehousing
charges and/or double handling of the order. The product will be invoiced according to the original schedule and payment terms reflected in the quote. The product will be made
available for inspecƟon at the designated storage facility. Any concealed damage to products that can no longer be replaced free of charge by the manufacturer, which can vary
from 7-60 days depending on the manufacturer, will be the responsibility of the customer to replace. All applicable monthly storage fees will be due 15 days from the date the
product was placed into storage.
 WARRANTY: The seller makes no warranƟes either expressed or implied beyond those offered by the manufacturer(s). It is the seller’s intent to honor and execute any applicable
warranƟes based on the manufacturer’s currently stated program.

FORCE MAJEURE: The seller shall not be liable for any delay and/or installaƟon of products due to force majeure, which includes labor strikes, accidents, mechanical breakdowns
of building systems, acts of God, severe weather condiƟons, acts of terrorism, or any other delays beyond the control of the seller. At no Ɵme shall the seller be responsible for
any expenses incurred by you for any delay in delivery and or installaƟon caused by force majeure.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This agreement together with your signed quote and/or purchase order consƟtutes the final agreement between the customer and the seller. All prior and
contemporaneous negoƟaƟons and agreements between the customer and the seller are expressly merged into and superseded by this agreement.

APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE: This agreement shall be governed by the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. Any party bringing a legal acƟon or proceeding against any
other party arising out of or relaƟng to this agreement or the transacƟons it contemplates shall bring the legal acƟon or proceeding in the Court of Common Pleas of
Williamsport, Pennsylvania.

SEVERABILITY: If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this Agreement remain in full force, if the
essenƟal terms and condiƟons of this Agreement for each party remain valid, binding, and enforceable.

Page 6 of 8



CERTIFICATIONS
•       National Minority Supplier Development Council PT234143

•       Certified Small Disadvantaged Business (SBD)

•        Pennsylvania State Vendor # 126583

•        DGS Small Business Procurement Certification #126583-2012-07-SB-M

•        PA UCP Certified

•       COSTARS Contract #035-E22-183

CONTRACTS
•        STATE & LOCAL GOVERNMENT:
                PA State Contract / PA Costars

•       GOVERNMENT:
                GSA / Navy BPA / VA IDIQ

•        HEALTHCARE:
               HealthTrust / Vizient / Premier

•        EDUCATION (HIGHER ED & K-12):
              PA Costars / Omnia / E & I / ESD112 / Equalis

•        ALL INCLUSIVE:
               Omnia (NCPA)

Page 7 of 8



SA
LE

S:
 JA

YM
E 

RH
O

AD
S

28
00

 F
ou

r M
ile

 D
r. 

M
on

to
ur

sv
ill

e,
 P

A 
17

75
4

03
.2

0.
25

20
06

_2
5_

Sc
hi

ck
 M

ed
ia

 C
en

te
r

RE
V2

 0
3.

31
.2

5
RE

V3
 0

4.
14

.2
5

Lo
ya

lso
ck

 To
w

ns
hi

p 
Sc

ho
ol

 D
ist

ric
t

RE
V1

 0
3.

26
.2

5



D
L

D
L

ST
O

RA
GE

 R
O

O
M

LA
B 

RO
O

M

LI
BR

AR
IA

N
 A

RE
A

10
' -

0"
10

' -
0"

21
' -

10
"

5' -0"

39' -11"

10
' -

10
"

41
' -

10
"

17' -8-7/8"

14
' -

0"

21
' -

10
"

18
' -

0"

c:
\U

se
rs

\t
an

ne
\O

ne
Dr

iv
e 

- S
up

pl
yS

ou
rc

e 
In

c\
20

25
\2

00
6_

25
_L

oy
al

so
ck

 S
D_

Sc
hi

ck
 E

S 
M

ed
ia

 C
en

te
r\

0_
DE

SI
GN

ER
 F

IL
E\

AR
CH

\2
00

6_
25

_D
W

G_
RE

V3
_S

ch
ic

k 
M

ed
ia

 C
en

te
r.c

m
dr

w

2

SC
O

PE
 O

F 
W

O
RK

RE
V4

RE
V3

 0
4.

14
.2

5

SA
LE

S:
 JA

YM
E 

RH
O

AD
S

SC
AL

E:
 N

.T.
S.

PM
: B

S
20

06
_2

5_
Sc

hi
ck

 M
ed

ia
 C

en
te

r

RE
V1

 0
3.

26
.2

5

Lo
ya

lso
ck

 To
w

ns
hi

p 
Sc

ho
ol

 D
ist

ric
t

SC
O

PE
 O

F 
W

O
RK

DE
SI

GN
ER

: L
AS

RE
V2

 0
3.

31
.2

5
03

.2
0.

25



c:
\U

se
rs

\t
an

ne
\O

ne
Dr

iv
e 

- S
up

pl
yS

ou
rc

e 
In

c\
20

25
\2

00
6_

25
_L

oy
al

so
ck

 S
D_

Sc
hi

ck
 E

S 
M

ed
ia

 C
en

te
r\

0_
DE

SI
GN

ER
 F

IL
E\

AR
CH

\2
00

6_
25

_D
W

G_
RE

V3
_S

ch
ic

k 
M

ed
ia

 C
en

te
r.c

m
dr

w

FU
RN

IT
U

RE
 P

LA
N

3

SA
LE

S:
 JA

YM
E 

RH
O

AD
S

RE
V4

03
.2

0.
25

FU
RN

IT
U

RE
 P

LA
N

RE
V1

 0
3.

26
.2

5
RE

V3
 0

4.
14

.2
5

20
06

_2
5_

Sc
hi

ck
 M

ed
ia

 C
en

te
r

Lo
ya

lso
ck

 To
w

ns
hi

p 
Sc

ho
ol

 D
ist

ric
t

PM
: B

S

RE
V2

 0
3.

31
.2

5

DE
SI

GN
ER

: L
AS

SC
AL

E:



c:
\U

se
rs

\t
an

ne
\O

ne
Dr

iv
e 

- S
up

pl
yS

ou
rc

e 
In

c\
20

25
\2

00
6_

25
_L

oy
al

so
ck

 S
D_

Sc
hi

ck
 E

S 
M

ed
ia

 C
en

te
r\

0_
DE

SI
GN

ER
 F

IL
E\

AR
CH

\2
00

6_
25

_D
W

G_
RE

V3
_S

ch
ic

k 
M

ed
ia

 C
en

te
r.c

m
dr

w

FU
RN

IT
U

RE
 P

LA
N

4

Lo
ya

lso
ck

 To
w

ns
hi

p 
Sc

ho
ol

 D
ist

ric
t

RE
V2

 0
3.

31
.2

5

FU
RN

IT
U

RE
 P

LA
N

RE
V1

 0
3.

26
.2

5

20
06

_2
5_

Sc
hi

ck
 M

ed
ia

 C
en

te
r

03
.2

0.
25

DE
SI

GN
ER

: L
AS

PM
: B

S

RE
V3

 0
4.

14
.2

5

SC
AL

E:

RE
V4

SA
LE

S:
 JA

YM
E 

RH
O

AD
S



c:
\U

se
rs

\t
an

ne
\O

ne
Dr

iv
e 

- S
up

pl
yS

ou
rc

e 
In

c\
20

25
\2

00
6_

25
_L

oy
al

so
ck

 S
D_

Sc
hi

ck
 E

S 
M

ed
ia

 C
en

te
r\

0_
DE

SI
GN

ER
 F

IL
E\

AR
CH

\2
00

6_
25

_D
W

G_
RE

V3
_S

ch
ic

k 
M

ed
ia

 C
en

te
r.c

m
dr

w

5

FU
RN

IT
U

RE
 P

LA
N

03
.2

0.
25

RE
V1

 0
3.

26
.2

5

PM
: B

S

RE
V4

RE
V2

 0
3.

31
.2

5

SA
LE

S:
 JA

YM
E 

RH
O

AD
S

FU
RN

IT
U

RE
 P

LA
N

RE
V3

 0
4.

14
.2

5

DE
SI

GN
ER

: L
AS

Lo
ya

lso
ck

 To
w

ns
hi

p 
Sc

ho
ol

 D
ist

ric
t

20
06

_2
5_

Sc
hi

ck
 M

ed
ia

 C
en

te
r

SC
AL

E:



EACHENLAUB CO.

DATE: April 30, 2025 PROJECT: Loyalsock Township School District

High School — Team Rooms

T0: Dan Egly, Business Manager

570.916.3356 Cell

deg|y@ltsd.k12.pa.us

COSTARS-014-E23-315
RECREATIONAL AND FITNESS EQUIPMENT CONTRACT

To FURNISH AND INSTALL the following lockers as manufactured by DeBourgh Manufacturing of La Junta,

Colorado, USA:

Team Room- D139 Lockers

Quantity of (50 total) Apex Sport Lockers, Angle Iron Open Front Lockers, 24” wide, 22" deep, 72" high, solid 16

gauge top ventilation, 18 gauge welded slope tops, solid 16 gauge full width hat shelf, clothes rod, solid 16 gauge
sides and bottoms, solid 18 gauge backs, 4" closed base, (3) extra full—width shelf for ADA compliant openings.

Color: Maroon Peaks

Security compartment door l: 11" wide x 12" high, formed 16 gauge construction style, single point Sentry 3 latch

with fascia—S3 standard cup, solid ventilation pattern, 3" 5-knuckle hinge type, standard built in locks, lock hole

coverplate included. Color: Maroon Peaks

Foot Locker with Reinforced Lid 1: 24" wide x 22” deep, formed 16 gauge construction style, padlock hasp latch

type, louvered ventilation pattern for front panel, 16 gauge continuous piano hinged Locks provided by Owner,

Color: Maroon Peaks

Boys Locker Room-D142-Perimeter Lockers

Quantity of (60) Rebel Series Formed Lockers, 72" high locker unit-2 tier

Doorl: Quantity of (57) 15” wide x 15" deep x 36” high, formed 18 gauge construction style, diamond perforated
ventilation pattern, Sentry 3 latch with facia—S3 standard cup, piano hinge, vertical door stiffener. Locks provided by

Others. Color: Maroon Peaks

Door 2: Quantity of (3) 15" wide x 15" deep x 36” high, formed 18 gauge construction style, diamond perforated
ventilation style, Sentry 3 latch with facia-S3 standard cup, piano hinge, vertical door stiffener, solid shelf

ventilation. Locks provided by Others. Color: Maroon Peaks

Unit Information: Solid top ventilation, 18 gauge sloped tops, 18 gauge diamond perforated intermediate

partitions, (8) solid end panels, 4" closed base, 20 gauge solid back, solid bottomi Frame color: Maroon Peaks

www.cmeichenlaubco‘com T 412‘271'8346 l F 412824-7280 l P.O. Box 8790 - Pittsburgh - PA4 15221

C o s T A R smnvhrwm‘,
walnsyiva‘'nia Departnent‘ofGmnial Saviccs



@CHENLAUB CO.

Boys Locker Room-D142-lsland Lockers

Quantity of (20 total) Core Series Formed Lockers, 36" high Iocker unit-1 tier

Doorl: Quantity of (l9): 15" wide x 15" deep x 36" high, formed 16 gauge construction style, diamond perforated
ventilation pattern, Sentry 3 Iatch with facia-S3 standard cup, piano hinge, vertical door stiffener‘ Locks provided by

Others. Color: Maroon Peaks

DoorZ: Quantity of (1) 15" wide x 15” deep x 36" high, formed 16 gauge construction style, diamond perforated
ventilation style, Sentry 3 latch with facia-S3 standard cup, piano hinge, vertical door stiffener, solid shelf

ventilation. Locks provided by Othersi Color: Maroon Peaks

Unit information: Solid top ventilation, 18 gauge sloped tops, 18 gauge diamond perforated intermediate

partitions, (4) solid end panels, 4" closed base, 18 gauge solid back, solid bottom. Frame color: Maroon Peaks

Miscellaneous Benches:

Four (4) Bench Assembly, 9.5” x 5’, Heavy Duty Pedestals, Color: ASH gray
Two (2) Bench assembly, 9.5” x 6’, Heavy Duty Pedestals, Color: ASH gray
Three (3) Bench Assembly, 9‘5’ x 7’, Heavy Duty Pedestal, Color: ASH gray
One (1) Bench Assembly, 9.5” x 8’, Heavy Duty Pedestals, Color: ASH gray
Two (2) Bench Assembly, 20" x 42" with 4 Heavy Duty Pedestals-ADA Color: ASH gray

For the sum of.....................................................................................................................................................$144,759.00
Exclusions: Taxes. Any demolition of existing, dumpsters. Locks are by Others as noted,

The CM, Eichenlaub Company, as a certified womenrowned, operated and controlled business, appreciates this opportunity to serve you, We submit this proposal to sell
the material or equipment as described and priced above, Subject to all the terms and conditions stated. Terms: NET 30 DAYS. Prices are valid for 30 days. Invoices past
30 days will include 1.25% interest charges. A Purchase Order is required to process quote.

C.M. EICHENLAUB CO. ACCEPTED BY:

FOR:

Michael S. Maiden

Vice President of Sales

Cell: 717-329-3574

Email: mmaiden@cme-co.com

DATE:

www.cmeichenlaubco com T412'271-8346 i F 412824-7280 i P.O. Box 8790 ‘ Pittsburgh - PA - 15221


	05072025 school board agenda
	04092025 school board MINUTES
	04302025 school board special meeting minutes
	March 2025 financials expenditures
	March 2025 financials treasurers report
	Student Activity Quarterly Report 24-25
	6-30-24 Audited Financial Statements
	2025 graduate list
	summer custodians 2025
	Athletic Bids Board Report 2025-2026
	des media center quote tanner
	des media center
	Locker quote

